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DIRECTORS’ REPORT TO THE MEMBERS

Your Directors have pleasure in presenƟ ng the Thirty Seventh (37th) Annual Report on the business and operaƟ ons of the Company, 
together with the Audited Financial Statements for the year ended 31st March, 2018. 

FINANCIAL RESULTS

AƩ enƟ on of the Members is drawn to the noƟ fi caƟ on dated February 16, 2015, issued by the Ministry of Corporate Aff airs relaƟ ng 
to the Companies (Indian AccounƟ ng Standards) Rules, 2015. Pursuant to the said noƟ fi caƟ on, the Company has adopted Indian 
AccounƟ ng Standards (Ind AS) with eff ect from this year under review. The Company’s fi nancial performance during the year 2017-18 
as compared to the previous year 2016-17 is summarized below :

( ` In Lakhs)

ParƟ culars
Year ended 
31.03.2018

Year ended 
31.03.2017

Revenue from OperaƟ ons 10377.31 14959.68

Other Income 786.29 86.09

Profi t before excepƟ onal items and Tax 5.94 (47.93)

ExcepƟ onal Items 310.00 –

Profi t Before Tax (PBT) 315.94 (47.93)

Tax Expenses

(i)  Current Tax 59.51 31.00

(ii) Deferred Tax 8.82 5.32

Profi t /(Loss) AŌ er Tax (PAT) 247.61 (84.25)

The fi nancial statements for 2016 – 17 have been redrawn as per Ind AS. Accordingly, the fi gures stated above for 2016 – 17 may not be comparable with 
fi nancials for 2016 – 17 approved by the Board of Directors vide Report dated 21st July, 2017.

SUMMARY OF OPERATIONS

During the year under review, the revenue from operaƟ ons has been ` 10377.31 lakh as against ` 14959.68 lakh in the previous year 
2016-17. Profi t before tax (PBT) was ` 315.94 lakh this year against a loss of ` 47.93 lakh in the previous year and profi t aŌ er tax stood 
at ` 247.61 lakh against loss aŌ er tax of ` 84.25 lakh in the previous year. During the year under review, fi nance cost has increased to 
` 546.57 lakh from ` 366.48 lakh.  

FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Full version of the Annual Report 2017-18 containing complete Financial Statements, i.e., Balance Sheet, Statement of Profi t & Loss, 
other statements and Notes thereto prepared under Ind AS (Indian AccounƟ ng Standards) for the fi rst Ɵ me by the Company along with 
the Directors’ Report (including Management Discussion & Analysis and Corporate Governance Report) is available for inspecƟ on at the 
registered offi  ce of the Company during working hours up to the date of ensuing Annual General MeeƟ ng (AGM). It is also available at 
the Company’s website at hƩ p://www.jjautomoƟ ve.co.in. 

SHARE CAPITAL

During the year, the Company did not allot any shares nor did grant any stock opƟ ons or sweat equity. Your Company has redeemed 
85 lakh, 6% Non CumulaƟ ve Redeemable Preference Shares of ` 10/- each on 14th September, 2017. 
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Pursuant to the above redempƟ on the issued, subscribed and paid up share capital of your Company stood at 1.10 crore comprising 
11 lakh equity shares of ` 10/- each as on 31st March, 2018. None of the Directors of the Company hold any instruments converƟ ble 
into equity shares of the Company.

RESERVES

The Company has not transferred any amount to the General Reserve of the Company for the fi nancial year ended March 31, 2018.

DIVIDEND

In order to consolidate the posiƟ on of the Company, your Directors do not recommend any Dividend during the year under review.

SUBSIDIARY, ASSOCIATES AND JOINT VENTURES

Your Company does not have any Subsidiary, Associate Companies or Joint Ventures. Accordingly, the disclosure of the fi nancial 
statement of subsidiaries/associate companies/joint ventures as required pursuant to fi rst proviso to sub-secƟ on (3) of secƟ on 129 
read with rule 5 of Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014 in Form AOC-1 is not applicable. However, in accordance with SEBI (LisƟ ng 
ObligaƟ ons and Disclosure Requirements) RegulaƟ ons, 2015, the Company has formulated a Policy on determinaƟ on of Material 
Subsidiaries. The policy has been uploaded on the website of the Company at hƩ p://www.jjautomoƟ ve.co.in.

PUBLIC DEPOSITS

During the year under review your Company has neither accepted nor renewed any deposits in terms of Chapter V of the Companies 
Act, 2013 and Rules framed there under and as such no amount of interest and principal on deposit was outstanding as on the balance 
sheet date.

EXTRACT OF ANNUAL RETURN

As required pursuant to SecƟon 92(3) of the Companies Act, 2013 and rule 12(1) of the Companies (Management and 
AdministraƟon) rules, 2014, an extract of the Annual Return in Form MGT-9 is appended as Annexure A.

DETAILS OF APPOINTMENT AND RESIGNATION OF DIRECTORS

In terms of the provisions of SecƟon 149, 152 and other applicable provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 and the ArƟcles 
of AssociaƟon of the Company, Mr. K. P. Jhunjhunwala, Director of the Company, reƟres by rotaƟon at the ensuing Annual 
General MeeƟng and being eligible, offers himself for re-appointment.

A brief resume of the Director proposed to be re-appointed, the nature of his experƟse in specific funcƟonal areas, names of 
Companies in which he holds Directorships, CommiƩee Membership/Chairmanships, his shareholding, etc. are furnished in 
the Annexure to the noƟce of the ensuing AGM. The Directors recommend his re-appointment in the ensuing AGM.

During the year, no new Director was appointed in the Company and none of the exisƟng Directors have resigned from the 
Board, hence the composiƟon of the Board remains the same.

KEY MANAGERIAL PERSONNEL

Mr. Abhijit Das, Company Secretary and Compliance Officer of the Company, resigned w.e.f., 31st October, 2017. There were 
no other changes in the Key Managerial Personnel of the Company during the year.    

DECLARATION BY INDEPENDENT DIRECTORS 

Mr. S. P. Mukherjee, Mr. Surjit Singh, Mr. Kamal Nain Saraf and Mrs. Hilla Eruch Bhathena are Independent Directors on the 
Board of your Company. These Non-ExecuƟve Independent Directors have given declaraƟon to the company staƟng that 
they fulfill the condiƟons of Independence specified in SecƟon 149(6) of the Companies Act, 2013 and Rules made there 
under and the same have been placed and noted in the meeƟng of the Board of Directors held on 29th May, 2017. A format 
of leƩer of appointment to Independent Director as provided in Companies Act, 2013 and the LisƟng RegulaƟons has been 
issued and disclosed on the website of the Company at hƩp://www.jjautomoƟve.co.in.
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FAMILIARIZATION PROGRAMME FOR THE INDEPENDENT DIRECTORS

In compliance with the requirements of SEBI (LisƟng ObligaƟons and Disclosure Requirements) RegulaƟons, 2015, the 
Company has put in place a FamiliarizaƟon Programme for Independent Directors to enable them to familiarize with the 
working of the Company, and to gain a clear understanding of their roles, rights and responsibiliƟes for the purpose of 
contribuƟng significantly towards the growth of the Company, the industry in which the Company operates, business model 
etc. The iniƟaƟves undertaken by the Company in this respect have been disclosed in the Corporate Governance Report and 
are also available on the Company’s website hƩp://www.jjautomoƟve.co.in.

PERFORMANCE EVALUATION 

The Board of Directors has carried out an annual evaluaƟon of its own performance and that of its commiƩees and individual 
directors, pursuant to the provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 and SEBI (LisƟng ObligaƟons and Disclosure Requirements) 
RegulaƟons, 2015. 

The performance of the Board was evaluated by the Board aŌer seeking inputs from all the Directors on the basis of the 
criteria such as the board composiƟon and structure, effecƟveness of board processes, contribuƟon towards development 
of the strategy, etc. 

The performance of the CommiƩees was evaluated by the Board aŌer seeking inputs from the CommiƩee Members on the 
basis of the criteria such as the composiƟon of commiƩees, effecƟveness of commiƩee meeƟngs, etc. 

The Board in consultaƟon with NominaƟon and RemuneraƟon CommiƩee reviewed the performance of the individual 
directors on the basis of the criteria such as the contribuƟon of the individual director to the Board and CommiƩee MeeƟngs 
like preparedness on the issues to be discussed, contribuƟon at the meeƟngs and otherwise, independent judgment, etc. 

In a separate meeƟng of Independent Directors, performance of Non-Independent Directors, performance of the Board 
as a whole was evaluated, taking into account the views of ExecuƟve Director and Non-ExecuƟve Directors. The Directors 
expressed their saƟsfacƟon with the evaluaƟon process.

BOARD MEETINGS

The Board meets at regular intervals to discuss and decide on business strategies/policies and review the financial 
performance of the Company. The noƟce of each Board MeeƟng along with the agenda is given in wriƟng to each Director 
separately. This ensures Ɵmely and informed decisions by the Board. The interval between two meeƟngs was well within the 
maximum period menƟoned under SecƟon 173 of the Companies Act, 2013 and the SEBI (LisƟng ObligaƟons and Disclosure 
Requirements) RegulaƟons, 2015.

During the year, Twelve (12) Board MeeƟngs were held; the details of Board and CommiƩee MeeƟngs are given in the 
Corporate Governance Report as Annexure D to this report.

NOMINATION AND REMUNERATION POLICY

In accordance with SecƟon 178 of the Companies Act, 2013, the Board of Directors has in place a Policy on Directors’ 
appointment and remuneraƟon including criteria for determining qualificaƟons, posiƟve aƩributes, independence of a 
director and remuneraƟon policy for Key Managerial Personnel and others. The Policy of NominaƟon and RemuneraƟon 
CommiƩee has been framed to encourage diversity of thought, experience, knowledge, perspecƟve, age and gender in 
the Board. The RemuneraƟon Policy for Directors, Key Managerial Personnel and all other employees is aligned to the 
philosophy on the commitment of fostering a culture of leadership with trust. The RemuneraƟon Policy aims to ensure 
that the level and composiƟon of the remuneraƟon of the Directors, Key Managerial Personnel and all other employees is 
reasonably sufficient to aƩract, retain and moƟvate them to successfully run the Company. The Details of RemuneraƟon paid 
by the Company is given in MGT-9 of the Annual Report. 

The Company does not pay any remuneraƟon to the Non-ExecuƟve/Independent Directors of the Company other than 
siƫng fees for aƩending the meeƟng of the Board. RemuneraƟon paid to the Managing Director is governed by the relevant 
provisions of the Act. 
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The policy has been uploaded on the website of the Company at hƩp://www.jjautomoƟve.co.in and enclosed with this 
report as Annexure E.

DIRECTORS’ RESPONSIBILITY STATEMENT

To the best of their knowledge and belief and according to the informaƟon and explanaƟons obtained, in terms of SecƟon 
134 of the Companies Act, 2013, your Directors state that:

a) In the preparaƟon of the annual accounts, the applicable accounƟng standards have been followed and proper 
explanaƟons provided relaƟng to material departures, if any; 

b) Such accounƟng policies have been selected and applied consistently and judgments and esƟmates made that are 
reasonable and prudent so as to give a true and fair view of the state of affairs of the Company at the end of the 
financial year and of the profit of the Company for that period;

c) Proper and sufficient care has been taken for the maintenance of adequate accounƟng records in accordance with the 
provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 for safeguarding the assets of the Company and for prevenƟng and detecƟng 
fraud and other irregulariƟes;

d) The annual accounts have been prepared on a going concern basis;

e) Internal financial controls were followed by the Company and they are adequate and were operaƟng effecƟvely; and 

f) Proper systems have been devised to ensure compliance with the provisions of all applicable laws and such systems are 
adequate and operaƟng effecƟvely. 

STATUTORY AUDITOR AND THEIR REPORT

Pursuant to the provisions of SecƟon 139 of the Companies Act, 2013 and the recommendaƟon of the Board of Directors and 
the Audit CommiƩee the members in the 36th Annual General MeeƟng held on 14th September, 2017 had appointed M/s. 
Agrawal Subodh & Co., Chartered Accountants (ICAI Firm RegistraƟon Number 319260E) as the Statutory Auditors of the 
Company for a term of five consecuƟve years, to hold office from the conclusion of the 36th Annual General MeeƟng unƟl 
the conclusion of 41st Annual General MeeƟng of the Company to be held in the calendar year 2022, on such remuneraƟon 
as may be decided by the Audit CommiƩee of the Board, subject to annual raƟficaƟon by members at every Annual General 
MeeƟng. 

Member’s aƩenƟon is drawn to Item No. 3 of the NoƟce convening the 37th Annual General MeeƟng proposing raƟficaƟon 
of the appointment of M/s Agrawal Subodh & Co., Chartered Accountants as the Statutory Auditors of the Company.

The Report given by the Statutory Auditors on the financial statements of the Company for the financial year 2017-18, forms 
a part of the Annual Report 2017-18. There are no observaƟons (including any qualificaƟon, reservaƟon, adverse remark or 
disclaimer) of the Auditors in their Report that may call for any explanaƟon from the Directors.

SECRETARIAL AUDITOR & THEIR REPORT

In terms of SecƟon 204 of the Act and Rules made there under, Mr. Ashok Kumar Daga, PracƟcing Company Secretary, had 
been appointed Secretarial Auditor of the Company for the financial year 2017 - 18. The Secretarial Audit Report in Form 
MR-3, enclosed as Annexure B has no observaƟons (including any qualificaƟon, reservaƟon, adverse remark or disclaimer) 
and hence does not call for any explanaƟon from the Directors.

INSTANCES OF FRAUD, IF ANY REPORTED BY THE AUDITORS 

There have been no instances of fraud reported by the Auditors under SecƟon 143(12) of the Companies Act, 2013.

MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS REPORT

The Management Discussion and Analysis Report for the year under review as sƟpulated under RegulaƟon 34(2)(e) of SEBI 
(LisƟng ObligaƟons and Disclosure Requirements) RegulaƟons, 2015 is appended as Annexure C to this Report. 
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INTERNAL CONTROL SYSTEMS

• INTERNAL AUDIT AND THEIR ADEQUACY

 The Internal Auditors maintain their objecƟvity and independence. The scope and authority of the Internal Auditors 
includes evaluaƟon of efficacy and adequacy of internal control system, its compliance with operaƟng systems and 
policies of the Company and accounƟng procedures. The Internal Audit framework is reviewed regularly by the 
management and tested by M/s. Guha & MaƟlal, Internal Auditors and presented to the Audit CommiƩee. Based 
on the report of Internal Auditors, process owners undertake correcƟve acƟon in their respecƟve areas and thereby 
strengthen the controls. Significant audit observaƟons and correcƟve acƟons thereon are presented to the Audit 
CommiƩee of the Board. The Internal Auditors’ Reports have no observaƟons (including any qualificaƟon, reservaƟon, 
adverse remark or disclaimer) and hence does not call for any explanaƟon from the Directors.

• INTERNAL CONTROLS OVER FINANCIAL REPORTING (ICFR)

 The Company has in place adequate internal financial controls commensurate with the size, scale and complexity of 
its operaƟons. During the year such controls were tested and no reportable material weakness in the operaƟons was 
observed. The Company has policies and procedures for ensuring the orderly and efficient conduct of its business, 
including adherence to Company’s policies, the safeguarding of its assets, the prevenƟon and detecƟon of frauds 
and errors, the accuracy and completeness of the accounƟng records and the Ɵmely preparaƟon of reliable financial 
informaƟon. 

PARTICULARS OF LOANS, GUARANTEES AND INVESTMENTS

During the year, your Company has not given any loans or provided any guarantees or made any investments covered under 
the provisions of SecƟon 186 of the Companies Act, 2013. 

The detail of the investments made by the Company is given in the notes to the financial statements.

RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

In line with the requirements of the Companies Act, 2013 and SEBI (LisƟng ObligaƟons and Disclosure Requirements) 
RegulaƟons, 2015, your Company has in place a Policy on Related Party TransacƟons which is also available on Company’s 
website at hƩp://www.jjautomoƟve.co.in. The Policy intends to ensure that proper reporƟng; approval and disclosure 
processes are in place for all transacƟons between the Company and Related ParƟes. All Related Party TransacƟons are 
placed before the Audit CommiƩee for review and approval. The Company obtains prior omnibus approvals, if required, 
for Related Party TransacƟons on a quarterly basis for transacƟons which are of repeƟƟve nature and / or entered in the 
Ordinary Course of Business and are at Arm’s Length basis. The provisions of SecƟon 188(1) do not aƩract as all Related 
Party TransacƟons entered during the year were in Ordinary Course of the Business and on Arm’s Length basis. No Material 
Related Party TransacƟons, i.e. transacƟons exceeding ten percent of the annual consolidated turnover as per the last 
audited financial statements, were entered during the year by your Company. Accordingly, the disclosure of Related Party 
TransacƟons as required under SecƟon 134(3)(h) of the Companies Act, 2013 in Form AOC-2 is not applicable. Further, 
details of Related Party TransacƟons as required to be disclosed by AccounƟng Standard – 18 are given in the notes to the 
Financial Statements.

MATERIAL CHANGES AND COMMITMENTS, IF ANY, AFFECTING THE FINANCIAL POSITION OF THE COMPANY WHICH HAVE 
OCCURRED BETWEEN THE END OF THE FINANCIAL YEAR OF THE COMPANY TO WHICH THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS RELATE 
AND THE DATE OF THE REPORT

Your Company had no significant and material changes affecƟng the financial posiƟon of the Company which have occurred 
between the end of the financial year of the Company to which the financial statements relate and the date of the report.

CONSERVATION OF ENERGY, TECHNICAL ABSORPTION AND FOREIGN EXCHANGE EARNINGS AND OUTGO

The informaƟon pursuant to SecƟon 134(3)(m) of the Companies Act, 2013 and read with Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014 
are as follows:
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• CONSERVATION OF ENERGY

 Considering the nature of business of the Company, energy does not form a significant porƟon of the cost for the 
Company. Yet wherever possible, and feasible, conƟnuous efforts are being put for conservaƟon of energy and 
minimizing power cost. 

• TECHNOLOGY ABSORPTION

 We are all aware of latest technology being available in our field of operaƟon. Necessary training is imparted to the 
relevant people, from Ɵme to Ɵme, to make them well acquainted with the latest technology. 

• FOREIGN EXCHANGE EARNINGS AND OUTGO

 During the year under review, there was no inflow or outgo of Foreign Exchange. 

ParƟculars 31st March, 2018 31st March, 2017
Foreign Exchange earned in terms of actual inflows Nil Nil
Foreign Exchange outgo in terms of actual ouƞlows Nil Nil

SLUMP SALE OF AUTO-COMPONENTS DIVISION OF THE COMPANY

Your Company had been running and operaƟng two separate and independent business undertakings viz. (i) Vehicle 
Division and (ii) Auto Components Division. Since the operaƟons of the said two business undertakings of the Company had 
considerably grown and the market was geƫng very compeƟƟve it was decided that it is beƩer for the Company to focus its 
aƩenƟon on the Vehicle Division and to sell, transfer, or dispose of the Auto Components Division. 

The Auto Components Division as termed ‘substanƟal’ in terms of SecƟon 180(1)(a) of the Companies Act, 2013 required 
members’ approval by way of Special ResoluƟon for its disposal, which was obtained by means of Extra-Ordinary General 
MeeƟng dated 14th August, 2017. On 24th August, 2017, the Company entered into an agreement with TVS JJ DistribuƟon 
Private Limited to dispose of its Auto Components Division as a going concern on slump sale basis. Subsequently, both the 
parƟes mutually agreed upon 07th November, 2017 being the closing date for the purpose of the agreement. 

AMENDMENT OF THE MEMORANDUM OF ASSOCIATION

During the year under review, the Company, pursuant to provisions of secƟon 13 of the Companies Act, 2013 and the Special 
ResoluƟon passed by members of the Company vide means of Extra-Ordinary General MeeƟng dated 15th March, 2018 
has altered the Memorandum of AssociaƟon of the Company by way of inserƟon of sub-clause (4) aŌer sub-clause (3) of 
the clause III (A) of the Memorandum of AssociaƟon for the purpose of “carrying on distribuƟon and servicing of Motor 
Insurance policies including add-ons”.

TRANSFER OF UNCLAIMED DIVIDEND TO INVESTOR EDUCATION AND PROTECTION FUND (IEPF)

Pursuant to the provisions of SecƟons 124 and 125 of the Companies Act, 2013, rules made thereunder and Investor 
EducaƟon and ProtecƟon Fund Authority (AccounƟng, Audit, Transfer and Refund) Rules, 2016 read with the relevant 
circulars and amendments thereto, the amount of dividend remaining unpaid or unclaimed for a period of 7 (seven) years 
from the due date is required to be transferred to the Investor EducaƟon and ProtecƟon Fund (IEPF) as consƟtuted by the 
Central Government.

Accordingly, the Company has transferred the unclaimed and unpaid dividends. The details of the unpaid/unclaimed 
dividend due to be transferred to the IEPF, are also uploaded as per the requirements, on the website of the Company i.e. 
hƩp://www.jjautomoƟve.co.in.

CORPORATE SOCIAL RESPONSIBILITY

Since your Company does not fall under the threshold laid down in secƟon 135 of the Companies Act, 2013, the provision of 
secƟon 134(3)(o) of the Companies Act, 2013 is not applicable and hence no disclosure is required by the Board.
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RISK MANAGEMENT POLICY

In terms of the requirement of the Act, the Company has developed and implemented the Risk Management Policy and the 
Audit CommiƩee of the Board reviews the same periodically. The Risk Management policy inter alia provides for review of 
the risk assessment and minimizaƟon procedure, laying down procedure to inform the Board in the maƩer and for periodical 
review of the procedure to ensure that management controls the risks through properly defined framework.

PARTICULARS OF EMPLOYEES

The informaƟon required pursuant to SecƟon 197(12) of the Companies Act, 2013 read with Rule 5(1) of the Companies 
(Appointment and RemuneraƟon of Managerial Personnel) Rules, 2014 in respect of employees of the Company, will be 
provided upon request. In terms of SecƟon 136 of the Act, the Report and Accounts are being sent to Members and others 
enƟtled thereto excluding the informaƟon on employees’ parƟculars which is available for inspecƟon by the members at 
the Registered Office during business hours on working days of the Company up to the date of the ensuing Annual General 
MeeƟng. There are no employees drawing salaries in excess of the limit prescribed under SecƟon 197(12) of the Companies 
Act, 2013 read with Rule 5(2) of the Companies (Appointment and RemuneraƟon of Managerial Personnel) Rules, 2014. The 
Company affirms that remuneraƟon is as per the RemuneraƟon Policy of the Company. 

DISCLOSURE ON REMUNERATION TO EMPLOYEES EXCEEDING SPECIFIED LIMITS

The Company had no employees who were in receipt of remuneraƟon in excess of ` 102 lakh per annum during the year 
ended 31st March, 2018 or of more than ` 8.5 lakh per month during any part thereof, hence no informaƟon under Rule 5(2) 
of the Companies (Appointment and RemuneraƟon of Managerial Personnel) Rules, 2014 is required to be given.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

Corporate Governance refers to a set of systems, procedures and pracƟces which ensure that the company is managed in 
the best interest of all corporate stakeholders, i.e., shareholders, employees, suppliers, customers and society in general. 
We strive to aƩain high standards of corporate governance and adhere to the requirements set out by SecuriƟes Exchange 
Board of India (SEBI). The report on Corporate Governance forms an integral part of this report and is set out as Annexure D. 

Further, the requisite cerƟficate from the Auditors of the Company confirming compliance with the condiƟons of Corporate 
Governance is also appended with this report as Annexure G.

COMMITTEES OF THE BOARD

For details of composiƟon of the Audit CommiƩee, NominaƟon & RemuneraƟon CommiƩee and Stakeholder RelaƟonship 
CommiƩee of the Board, please refer to the Corporate Governance Report as Annexure D to this report.

VIGIL MECHANISM

Pursuant to the requirement of the Act and RegulaƟon 22 of SEBI (LisƟng ObligaƟons and Disclosure Requirements) 
RegulaƟons, 2015, the Company has in place a vigil mechanism policy to report genuine concerns or grievances. The Vigil 
Mechanism Policy has been posted on the website of the Company at hƩp://www.jjautomoƟve.co.in.

SIGNIFICANT AND MATERIAL ORDERS PASSED BY THE REGULATORS 

There are no significant material orders passed by the Regulators/Courts which would impact the going concern status of 
the Company and its future operaƟons. 

INDUSTRIAL RELATIONS

The Company maintained healthy, cordial and harmonious industrial relaƟons at all levels. The enthusiasm and unsƟnƟng 
efforts of employees have enabled the Company to improve producƟvity across organizaƟon. 

DISCLOSURE UNDER SEXUAL HARASSMENT OF WOMEN AT WORKPLACE (PREVENTION, PROHIBITION AND REDRESSAL) 
ACT, 2013

The Company has zero tolerance for sexual harassment at workplace. During the Financial Year 2017-18, no complaints of 
sexual harassment were reported.



J. J. AUTOMOTIVE LIMITED 37TH ANNUAL REPORT 2017ͳ18

ȑ 9 Ȓ

For and on behalf of the Board

 Anil Jhunjhunwala S. P. Mukherjee
 Managing Director Director
 DIN - 00128717 DIN - 00108225

Place  : Kolkata
Dated : 13.08.2018
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Your Directors are thankful to the esteemed Shareholders for their support and encouragement. They also wish to place on 
record their appreciaƟon of the contribuƟon made by employees at all levels.
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FORM NO. MGTͳ9
EXTRACT OF ANNUAL RETURN

AS ON THE FINANCIAL YEAR ENDED ON 31ST MARCH, 2018

[Pursuant to  SecƟ on 92 (3) of the Companies Act, 2013 and rule 12(1) of the Company
(Management & AdministraƟ on ) Rules,  2014.

I. REGISTRATION AND OTHER DETAILS :

(i) CIN : L34103WB1981PLC033996

(ii) RegistraƟ on Date : 19th August, 1981

(iii) Name of the Company : J. J. AutomoƟ ve Limited

(iv) Category/Sub-Category of the Company : Company Limited by Shares 
   Indian Non Government Company

(v) Address of the Registered Offi  ce and contact details : 25-B Park Street, Kolkata-700 016
   Phone No. +91-33-2229-6000

(vi) Whether listed Company (Yes/No) :  Yes

(vii) Name, Address and Contact details of Registrar : M/s. Niche Technologies Pvt. Ltd. 
 and Transfer Agent, if any  D-511, Bagree Market
   71, B. R. B. Basu Road
   Kolkata - 700 001 
   Phone No. +91-33-2235-7271/70
II. PRINCIPAL BUSINESS ACTIVITIES OF THE COMPANY
 All the business acƟ viƟ es contribuƟ ng 10 % or more of the total turnover of the Company shall be stated :

Sl. No. Name and DescripƟ on of main products/services
NIC Code of the

Product/service
% to total turnover of the company

1 Sale of Motor Vehicles, parts and accessories of Motor 
Vehicles and Motor Cycles

4510/30/40* 96.21

*The NIC code of the Product or Service has been menƟ oned as per the Ministry of StaƟ sƟ cs and Product ImplementaƟ on Link: 
hƩ ps://udyogaadhaar.gov.in/UA/Document/nic_2008_17apr09.pdf  
 

III. PARTICULARS OF HOLDING, SUBSIDIARY AND ASSOCIATE COMPANIES

Sl. No. Name And Address of the Company CIN/GLN
Holding/ 

Subsidiary/ 
Associate

% of Shares held Applicable SecƟ on

Company does not have any Holding, Subsidiary or Associate Companies

 

ANNEXURE ͳ A
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VI. SHARE HOLDING PATTERN (Equity Share Capital Breakup as percentage of Total Equity)

 (i) Category-wise Share Holding

Sl. 
No. 

Category of Shareholders

No. of Shares held at the
beginning of the year

No. of Shares held at the
end of the year

% 
Change 
during 

the yearDemat Physical Total
% of Total 

Shares
Demat Physical Total

% of Total 
Shares

A. PROMOTERS

(1) Indian

a)   Individual / HUF 442150 0 442150 40.195 442350 0 442350 40.214 0.019

b)   Central Government Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil

c)   State Government Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil

d)   Bodies Corporate 242850 0 242850 22.077 242850 0 242850 22.077 0.000

e)   Banks / Financial InsƟ tuƟ ons Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil

f)   Any Other Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil

Sub-total (A)(1) 685000 0 685000 62.273 685200 0 685200 62.291 0.018

(2) Foreign

a)   NRIs - Individuals Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil

b)   Other - Individuals Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil

c)   Bodies Corporate Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil

d)   Banks / Financial InsƟ tuƟ ons Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil

e)   Any Other Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil

Sub-total (A)(2) 0 0 0 0.000 0 0 0 0.000 0.000

Total Shareholding of Promoter
(A) = (A)(1) + (A)(2) 685000 0 685000 62.273 685200 0 685200 62.291 0.018

B. PUBLIC SHAREHOLDING

(1) InsƟ tuƟ ons

a)   Mutual Funds Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil

b)   Banks / Financial InsƟ tuƟ ons Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil

c)   Central Governments Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil

d)   State Governments Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil

e)   Venture Capital Funds Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil

f)   Insurance Companies Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil

g)   Foreign InsƟ tuƟ onal Investors (FII) Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil

h)  Foreign Venture Capital Funds Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil

i)   Others (Specify) Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil

Sub-total (B)(1) 0 0 0 0.000 0 0 0 0.000 0.000



J. J. AUTOMOTIVE LIMITED37TH ANNUAL REPORT 2017ͳ18

ȑ 12 Ȓ

Sl. 
No. 

Category of Shareholders

No. of Shares held at the
beginning of the year

No. of Shares held at the
end of the year

% 
Change 
during 

the yearDemat Physical Total
% of Total 

Shares
Demat Physical Total

% of Total 
Shares

(2) Non-InsƟ tuƟ ons
a)  Bodies Corporate

i)   Indian 62800 148100 210900 19.173 62800 148100 210900 19.173 0.000
ii)  Overseas

b)  Individuals
i)   Individual shareholders holding 

nominal share capital upto Rs 
1 lakh 13650 37450 51100 4.645 13650 36450 50100 4.555 -0.090

ii)  Individual shareholders hold-
ing nominal share capital in 
excess of Rs 1 lakh 153000 0 153000 13.909 153000 800 153800 13.982 0.073

c)   Others Specify Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil
1.   NRI Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil
2.   Overseas Corporate Bodies Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil
3.   Foreign NaƟ onals Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil
4.   Clearing Members Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil
5.   Trusts Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil
6.   Foreign Bodies - D.R. Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil

Sub-total (B)(2) 229450 185550 415000 37.727 229450 185350 414800 37.709 -0.018
Total Public Shareholding
(B) = (B)(1) + (B)(2) 229450 185550 415000 37.727 229450 185350 414800 37.709 -0.018

C. Shares held by Custodian for
GDRs & ADRs Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil
GRAND TOTAL (A + B + C) 914450 185550 1100000 100.000 914650 185350 1100000 100.000 0.000

(ii) Shareholding of Promoters

Sl 
No. Shareholder’s Name

Shareholding at the
beginning of the year Shareholding at the end of the year % of

change in
shareholding 

during the 
year

No. of 
Shares

% of total 
shares
of the 

company

% of Shares 
Pledged/

encumbered 
to total shares

No. of 
Shares

% of total 
shares
of the 

company

% of Shares 
Pledged/

encumbered 
to total shares

1 A. K. JHUNJHUNWALA 59400 5.400 0.000 59400 5.400 0.000 0.000
2 ANIL JHUNJHUNWALA 127850 11.623 0.000 128050 11.641 0.000 0.018
3 ANITA KANOI 38900 3.536 0.000 38900 3.536 0.000 0.000
4 J. J. FINANCE CORPORATION LTD. 17900 1.627 0.000 17900 1.627 0.000 0.000
5 J.J. PROJECTS PVT. LTD 136700 12.427 0.000 136700 12.427 0.000 0.000
6 K P JHUNJHUNWALA 31200 2.836 0.000 31200 2.836 0.000 0.000
7 K. P. JHUNJHUNWALA 41300 3.755 0.000 41300 3.755 0.000 0.000
8 KANAKLATA JHUNJHUNWALA 74800 6.800 0.000 74800 6.800 0.000 0.000
9 KOHINOOR STOCK BROKING PVT LTD 88250 8.023 0.000 88250 8.023 0.000 0.000

10 VEDIKA JHUNJHUNWALA 44800 4.073 0.000 44800 4.073 0.000 0.000
11 VIDHI BERI 23900 2.173 0.000 23900 2.173 0.000 0.000

Total 685000 62.273 0.000 685200 62.291 0.000 0.018
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(iii) Change in Promoter’s Shareholding

Sl 
No.

Name

Shareholding at the
beginning of the year

CumulaƟ ve Shareholding
during the year

No. of shares
% of total shares 
of the company

No. of shares
% of total shares 
of the company

1 A. K. JHUNJHUNWALA

a)  At the Beginning of the Year 59400 5.400

b)  Changes during the year        [NO CHANGES DURING THE YEAR]

c)  At the End of the Year 59400 5.400

2 ANIL JHUNJHUNWALA

a)  At the Beginning of the Year 127850 11.623

b)  Changes during the year

Date                        Reason

26/05/2017            Transfer 200 0.018 128050 11.641

c)  At the End of the Year 128050 11.641

3 ANITA KANOI

a)  At the Beginning of the Year 38900 3.536

b)  Changes during the year     [NO CHANGES DURING THE YEAR]

c)  At the End of the Year 38900 3.536

4 J. J. FINANCE CORPORATION LTD.

a)  At the Beginning of the Year 17900 1.627

b)  Changes during the year        [NO CHANGES DURING THE YEAR]

c)  At the End of the Year 17900 1.627

5 J.J. PROJECTS PVT. LTD

a)  At the Beginning of the Year 136700 12.427

b)  Changes during the year        [NO CHANGES DURING THE YEAR]

c)  At the End of the Year 136700 12.427

6 K. P. JHUNJHUNWALA

a)  At the Beginning of the Year 31200 2.836

b)  Changes during the year        [NO CHANGES DURING THE YEAR]

c)  At the End of the Year 31200 2.836

7 K. P. JHUNJHUNWALA

a)  At the Beginning of the Year 41300 3.755

b)  Changes during the year        [NO CHANGES DURING THE YEAR]

c)  At the End of the Year 41300 3.755

8 KANAKLATA JHUNJHUNWALA

a)  At the Beginning of the Year 74800 6.800

b)  Changes during the year        [NO CHANGES DURING THE YEAR]

c)  At the End of the Year 74800 6.800
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Sl 
No.

Name

Shareholding at the
beginning of the year

CumulaƟ ve Shareholding
during the year

No. of shares
% of total shares 
of the company

No. of shares
% of total shares 
of the company

9 KOHINOOR STOCK BROKING PVT LTD

a)  At the Beginning of the Year 88250 8.023

b)  Changes during the year        [NO CHANGES DURING THE YEAR]

c)  At the End of the Year 88250 8.023

10 VEDIKA JHUNJHUNWALA

a)  At the Beginning of the Year 44800 4.073

b)  Changes during the year        [NO CHANGES DURING THE YEAR]

c)  At the End of the Year 44800 4.073

11 VIDHI BERI

a)  At the Beginning of the Year 23900 2.173

b)  Changes during the year        [NO CHANGES DURING THE YEAR]

c)  At the End of the Year 23900 2.173

TOTAL 685000 62.273 685200 62.291

(iv) Shareholding PaƩ ern of top ten Shareholders (other than Directors, Promoters and Holder of GDRs and ADRs) :

Sl. 
No.

For Each of the Top 10 Shareholders

Shareholding at the
beginning of the year

CumulaƟ ve Shareholding
during the year

No. of shares
% of total shares
of the company

No. of shares
% of total shares
of the company

1 ABHINANDAN DISTRIBUTORS PVT. LTD.

a)  At the Beginning of the Year 50000 4.545

b)  Changes during the year        [NO CHANGES DURING THE YEAR]

c)  At the End of the Year 50000 4.545

2 MANORMA ALMAL

a)  At the Beginning of the Year 10600 0.964

b)  Changes during the year     

Date                      Reason

22/04/2017         Transfer 600 0.055 11200 1.018

17/05/2017         Transfer 200 0.018 11400 1.036

c)  At the End of the Year 11400 1.036

3 MRIDUHARI TRADE & INDUSTRIES LTD.

a)  At the Beginning of the Year 40500 3.682

b)  Changes during the year     [NO CHANGES DURING THE YEAR]

c)  At the End of the Year 40500 3.682

4 NIKHIL CHHAWCHHARIA

a)  At the Beginning of the Year 142400 12.945

b)  Changes during the year     [NO CHANGES DURING THE YEAR]

c)  At the End of the Year 142400 12.945
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Sl. 
No.

For Each of the Top 10 Shareholders

Shareholding at the
beginning of the year

CumulaƟ ve Shareholding
during the year

No. of shares
% of total shares
of the company

No. of shares
% of total shares
of the company

5 NITIN FINVEST PRIVATE LIMITED

a)  At the Beginning of the Year 5600 0.509

b)  Changes during the year     [NO CHANGES DURING THE YEAR]

c)  At the End of the Year 5600 0.509

6 RAINBOW SECURITIES PRIVATE LIMITED

a)  At the Beginning of the Year 57000 5.182

b)  Changes during the year    [NO CHANGES DURING THE YEAR]

c)  At the End of the Year 57000 5.182

7 SAMBHAV COMMERCIAL PVT. LTD.

a)  At the Beginning of the Year 31500 2.864

b)  Changes during the year    [NO CHANGES DURING THE YEAR]

c)  At the End of the Year 31500 2.864

8 SANJAY KUMAR MODAK

a)  At the Beginning of the Year 6100 0.555

b)  Changes during the year    [NO CHANGES DURING THE YEAR]

c)  At the End of the Year 6100 0.555

9 VINOD KUMAR R SARAF

a)  At the Beginning of the Year 3200 0.291

b)  Changes during the year    [NO CHANGES DURING THE YEAR]

c)  At the End of the Year 3200 0.291

10 WAHEGURU COMMERCE PVT. LTD.

a)  At the Beginning of the Year 25100 2.282

b)  Changes during the year    [NO CHANGES DURING THE YEAR]

c)  At the End of the Year 25100 2.282

TOTAL 372000 33.818 372800 33.891
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(v) Shareholding of Directors and Key Managerial Personnel

Sl. 
No.

Name

Shareholding at the
beginning of the year

CumulaƟ ve Shareholding
during the year

No. of shares
% of total shares
of the company

No. of shares
% of total shares
of the company

1 ANIL JHUNJHUNWALA

a)  At the Beginning of the Year 127850 11.623

b)  Changes during the year     

Date                     Reason

26/05/2017        Transfer 200 0.018 128050 11.641

c)  At the End of the Year 128050 11.641

2 K. P. JHUNJHUNWALA

a)  At the Beginning of the Year 31200 2.836

b)  Changes during the year        [NO CHANGES DURING THE YEAR]

c)  At the End of the Year 31200 2.836

3 SURJIT SINGH

a)  At the Beginning of the Year 200 1.182

b)  Changes during the year     

Date                    Reason

26/05/2017       Transfer 200 1.182

c)  At the End of the Year 0 0.00

TOTAL 159250 15.641 159250 14.477

V. INDEBTEDNESS
 Indebtedness of the Company including interest outstanding/accrued but not due for payment

(Amount in `)

Secured Loans
 excluding deposits (`)

Unsecured 
Loans  (`)

Deposits (`)
Total 

Indebtedness (`)

Indebtedness at the beginning of the fi nancial year

i) Principal Amount 392539751 226300000 0 618839751

ii) Interest due but not paid 0 2890689 0 2890689

iii) Interest accrued but not due 0 0 0 0

Total (i+ii+iii) 392539751 229190689 0 621730440

Change in Indebtedness during the fi nancial year

AddiƟ ons 0 281158426 0

ReducƟ on 125570476 174699115 0

Net Change (125570476) 106459311 0 (5563578.00)

Indebtedness at the end of the fi nancial year

i) Principal Amount 266969275 335650000 0 602619275

ii) Interest due but not paid 0 13171623 0 13171623

iii) Interest accrued but not due 0 0 0 0

Total (i+ii+iii) 266969275 348821623 0 615790898
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(`)

VI. REMUNERATION OF DIRECTORS AND KEY MANAGERIAL PERSONNEL

A. RemuneraƟ on to Managing Director, Whole-Ɵ me Directors and/or Manager :

Sl. 
No. 

ParƟ culars of RemuneraƟ on
Mr. Anil Jhunjhunwala

(Managing Director)
Total Amount

1

Gross Salary

(a)  Salary as per provisions contained in SecƟ on 17(1) of the 
       Income Tax Act, 1961

` 12,12,000 ` 12,12,000

(b)  Value of perquisites u/s 17(2) Income Tax Act, 1961  – –

(c)  Profi t in lieu of salary under SecƟ on 17(3) Income Tax Act, 1961  – –

2 Stock OpƟ on  – –

3 Sweat Equity  – –

4 Commission  – –

 As % of profi t  – –

Others, specify  – –

5 Others, please specify  – –

Total (A) ` 12,12,000 ` 12,12,000

Ceiling as per the Act
As provided in Part II of Schedule V of 

Companies Act, 2013

B. RemuneraƟ on to other Directors :

Sl. 
No. 

ParƟ culars of RemuneraƟ on Names of Directors

Total
Amount

1 Independent Directors Mr. S. P. 
Mukherjee

Mr. Kamal 
Nain Saraf

Mr. Surjit 
Singh

Mrs. Hilla 
Eruch 

Bhathena

 Fee for aƩ ending board commiƩ ee meeƟ ngs ` 12,000 ` 12,000 ` 12,000 ` 12,000

 Commission  –  – – – –

 Others, please specify –  –  –  – –

Total (1) ` 12,000 ` 12,000 ` 12,000 ` 12,000 ` 48,000

2 Other Non-ExecuƟ ve Directors Mr. K. P. 
Jhunjhunwala

  Fee for aƩ ending board commiƩ ee meeƟ ngs ` 11,000 – – –

  Commission  – – – – –

  Others, please specify  – – – – –

Total (2) ` 11,000 – – – ` 11,000

Total (B) = (1)+(2) 23,000 12,000 12,000 12,000 ` 59,000

Total Managerial RemuneraƟ on – ` 59000

Overall Ceiling as per the Act As provided in Part II of Schedule V of Companies Act, 2013
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C. RemuneraƟ on to Key Managerial Personnel, other than MD/Manager/WTD :

Sl. 
No. 

ParƟ culars of RemuneraƟ on

Key Managerial Personnel

Mr. Partha DuƩ a
(Chief ExecuƟ ve 

Offi  cer)

Mr. Abhijit Das
(Company 
Secretary)

Mr. Ramesh 
Kumar Chitlangia
(Chief Financial 

Offi  cer)

Total
Amount

1 Gross Salary

(a) Salary as per provisions contained in SecƟ on 17(1) of 
the Income Tax Act, 1961 ` 8,64,000 ` 1,50,500 ` 6,72,000 ` 16,86,500

(b) Value of perquisites u/s 17(2) 
      Income Tax Act, 1961 –  –  – –

(c)  Profi t in lieu of salary under SecƟ on 
       17(3) Income Tax Act, 1961 –  –  – –

2 Stock OpƟ on –  –  – –

3 Sweat Equity –  –  – –

4 Commission –  –  – –

–  As % of profi t –  –  – –

–  Others, specify –  –  – –

5 Others, please specify –  –  – –

TOTAL ` 8,64,000 ` 1,50,500 ` 6,72,000 ` 16,86,500

Note: Mr. Abhijit Das, Company Secretary and Compliance Offi  cer resigned w.e.f. 31st October, 2017

VII. PENALTIES / PUNISHMENT/ COMPOUNDING OF OFFENCES

Type SecƟon of the 
Companies Act

Brief 
DescripƟon

Details of Penalty/ 
Punishment/ Compounding 

fees imposed

Authority 
[RD / NCLT/ 

COURT]

Appeal made, 
if any (give 

Details)

A. COMPANY

Penalty

Punishment

Compounding

B. DIRECTORS

Penalty There were no cases of penalƟes, punishments or compounding of offences during the year

Punishment

Compounding

C. OTHER OFFICERS IN DEFAULT

Penalty

Punishment

Compounding
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FORM NO. MR ͳ 3
SECRETARIAL AUDIT REPORT

FOR THE FINANCIAL YEAR ENDED 31ST MARCH, 2018
[Pursuant to secƟ on 204(1) of the Companies Act, 2013 and rule No. 9 of the Companies (Appointment and RemuneraƟ on Personnel) Rules, 2014]

TO,
THE MEMBERS,
J. J. AUTOMOTIVE LTD.
25B PARK STREET 
KOLKATA WB ͵ 700016.

I have conducted the secretarial audit of the compliance of applicable statutory provisions and the adherence to good corporate 
pracƟ ces by J. J. AUTOMOTIVE LTD. (hereinaŌ er called the company). Secretarial Audit was conducted in a manner that provided me a 
reasonable basis for evaluaƟ ng the corporate conducts statutory compliances and expressing my opinion thereon.

Based on my verifi caƟ on of the Company’s, books, papers, minute books, forms and returns fi led and other records maintained by the 
company and also the informaƟ on provided by the Company, its offi  cers, agents and authorized representaƟ ves during the conduct of 
secretarial audit, I hereby report that in my opinion, the company has, during the audit period covering the fi nancial year ended on 
31st, MARCH, 2018 complied with the statutory provisions listed hereunder and also that the Company has proper Board-processes 
and compliance-mechanism in place to the extent, in the manner and subject to the reporƟ ng made hereinaŌ er:

I have examined the books, papers, minute books, forms and returns fi led and other records maintained by J. J. AUTOMOTIVE LTD. (“the 
Company”) for the fi nancial year ended on 31st March 2018, according to the provisions of:

(i) The Companies Act, 2013 (the Act) and the rules made there under;

(ii)  The SecuriƟ es Contracts (RegulaƟ on) Act, 1956 (‘SCRA’) and the rules made there under;

(iii)  The Depositories Act, 1996 and the RegulaƟ ons and Byelaws framed there under:

(iv)  Foreign Exchange Management Act, 1999 and the rules and regulaƟ ons made there under to the extent of Foreign Direct 
Investment, Overseas Direct Investment and External Commercial Borrowings;

(v)  The following RegulaƟ ons and Guidelines prescribed under the SecuriƟ es and Exchange Board of India Act, 1992 (SEBI ‘Act’):-

 (a)  The SecuriƟes and Exchange Board of India (SubstanƟal AcquisiƟon of Shares and Takeovers) RegulaƟons, 2011;

 (b)  The SecuriƟes and Exchange Board of India (ProhibiƟon of Insider Trading) RegulaƟons, 1992;

 (c)  The SecuriƟes and Exchange Board of India (Issue of Capital and Disclosure Requirements) RegulaƟons,-2009; The Company 
has not issued any shares during the year.

 (d)  The SecuriƟes and Exchange Board of India (Employee Stock OpƟon Scheme and Employee Stock Purchase Scheme) Guidelines, 
1999;

  Not applicable, since the Company has not raised any such scheme as per (Employee Stock OpƟon Scheme and Employee 
Stock Purchase Scheme) Guidelines, 1999 during the year.

 (e)  The SecuriƟes and Exchange Board of India (Issue and LisƟng of Debt SecuriƟes) RegulaƟons, 2008;

  Not applicable, since the company has not issued any debt securiƟes during the year (Issue and LisƟng of Debt SecuriƟes 
RegulaƟons, 2008;

 (f)  The SecuriƟes and Exchange Board of India (Registrars to an Issue and Share Transfer Agents) RegulaƟons, 1993 regarding the 
Companies Act and dealing with client;

ANNEXURE ͳ B
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 (g)  The SecuriƟes and Exchange Board of India (DelisƟng of Equity Shares) RegulaƟons, 2009; Not applicable, since the company 
has not applied for delisƟng of shares during the year; and

 (h)  The SecuriƟes and Exchange Board of India (Buyback of SecuriƟes) RegulaƟons, 1998; not applicable, since the Company has 
not bought back of shares during the year.

(vi)  other specifically applicable laws to the Company.

 (a)  Water (PrevenƟon and Control of PolluƟon) Act, 1974 and Air (PrevenƟon and Control of PolluƟon) Act, 1981.

 (b)  Factories License under Factories Act, 1948 for its units situated in different places.

I have also examined compliance with the applicable clauses of the following:

(i)  Secretarial Standards issued by The InsƟtute of Company Secretaries of India.

(ii)  The Company has complied with the provisions of SecuriƟes and Exchange Board of India (LisƟng ObligaƟons and Disclosure 
Requirements) RegulaƟons, 2015.

During the period under review the Company has complied with the provisions of the Act, Rules, RegulaƟons, Guidelines, Standards, etc. 
menƟoned above.

I further report that

The Board of Directors of the Company is duly consƟtuted with proper balance of ExecuƟve Directors, Non-ExecuƟve Directors and 
Independent Directors. No changes has occurred in the composiƟon of the Board of Directors that took place during the period under 
review were carried out in compliance with the provisions of the Act.

Adequate noƟce is given to all directors to schedule the Board MeeƟngs, agenda and detailed notes on agenda were sent at least seven 
days in advance, and a system exists for seeking and obtaining further informaƟon and clarificaƟons on the agenda items before the 
meeƟng and for meaningful parƟcipaƟon at the meeƟng. Majority decision is carried through while the dissenƟng members’ views are 
captured and recorded as part of the minutes.

The Company has disposed off its Auto Component Division to TVS JJ DistribuƟon Pvt. Ltd. as a going concern on a slump sale basis during 
the year and has obtained the approval of the members by special majority in the EGM duly convened as per provisions of Companies Act, 
2013 and the Company has also complied with other applicable laws.

I/we further report that there are adequate systems and processes in the company commensurate with the size and operaƟons of the 

company to monitor and ensure compliance with applicable laws, rules, regulaƟons and guidelines.

 

  ASHOK KUMAR DAGA
Place : Kolkata PracƟ cing Company Secretary
Date  : 03th August, 2018                                                                                                 FCS No. 2699, C P No: 2948  
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ANNEXURE ͳ C

MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS REPORT

INDUSTRY STRUCTURE AND DEVELOPMENTS

Financial Year 2017-18 marked a significant economic measure by the Government as the wheels of change conƟnued to 
roll in the Country with the implement of the Goods and Services Tax (GST) from July, 2017 shiŌing the naƟon to a ‘One 
naƟon - One tax’ regime. While GST would be a long term posiƟve, the overall economy bore the brunt of the changes with 
traders and Medium and Small Scale Enterprises (MSME) geƫng adversely affected. The Indian economy conƟnued to grow 
strongly, as the economy recovered in the second half post stabilizaƟon of the GST regime. Gross DomesƟc Product growth 
rate in FY 2017 – 18 was 6.7%, supported by consumpƟon growth and government spending.  Strong vehicle sales growth 
and improvement in road freight transport following stabilizaƟon of GST are further signs for conƟnuing demand growth. 
The growth of the auto industry is expected to conƟnue in 2018 across all vehicle categories. 

OPPORTUNITIES &THREATS

OPPORTUNITIES 

• Factors like conƟnuous thrust of Government on strengthening infrastructure development, Make in India, Skill India, 
and launch of new models by vehicle manufacturers, changing buying paƩern, replacement demand etc. and overall 
improvement in economic fundamentals will be the posiƟve drivers for automobile industries in the medium to long 
term. 

• Vehicle safety norms-mandatory crash tests for passenger cars, mandatory airbags in cars as well as increasing 
sophisƟcaƟon means higher value added components are likely to be demanded from auto component suppliers. 

• Greater thrust of auto OEM’s on localizaƟon and increased replacement market demand shall increase demand for 
auto components.

• Auto component manufacturers’ gain as more complex components mean greater value realizaƟon per part sold. 

THREATS

• Shrinkage in product lifecycles and managing a wide porƞolio of auto components, due to need for providing spare 
parts for current as well as disconƟnued models. 

SEGMENT–WISE PERFORMANCE

As the Company’s business acƟviƟes fall within a single primary business segment, i.e., dealer of vehicle and motor parts, the 
results for the year under review pertain to the same under a single segment. However, your Company had been running and 
operaƟng two separate and independent business undertakings viz. (i) Vehicle Division and (ii) Auto Components Division. 
Since the operaƟons of the said two business undertakings of the Company had considerably grown and the market was 
geƫng very compeƟƟve it was decided that it was beƩer for the Company to focus its aƩenƟon on the Vehicle Division and 
to sell, transfer, or dispose of the Auto Components Division. 

The Auto Components Division as termed ‘substanƟal’ in terms of SecƟon 180(1)(a) of the Companies Act, 2013 required 
members’ approval by way of Special ResoluƟon for its disposal, which was obtained by means of Extra-Ordinary General 
MeeƟng dated 14th August, 2017.

OUTLOOK

With the Automall Project at Rajarhat becoming fully funcƟonal, we are confident that this will definitely usher a new era in 
the business endeavors of the Company. 

In the years ahead we expect a more stable economy and a growing auto market.

Your Company aims to conƟnue its enduring relaƟonship with exisƟng customers, even as it strives to develop and increase 
business with new customers, by exceeding their expectaƟons. This will be based on an increased focus on the operaƟonal 
efficiency, agility and flexibility.



J. J. AUTOMOTIVE LIMITED37TH ANNUAL REPORT 2017ͳ18

ȑ 22 Ȓ

RISKS & CONCERNS 

RISKS

• The economic environment, pricing pressure could negaƟvely affect our revenues and operaƟng results. 

• Our revenues and expenses are difficult to predict and we may not be able to sustain our previous profit margins or 
levels of profitability. 

• Our inability to manage our growth can disrupt our business and reduce profitability. 

CONCERNS

• Emergence of spurious spare parts.

• CompeƟƟon from imports from China. 

INTERNAL CONTROL SYSTEMS AND THEIR ADEQUACY

The Company has a proper and adequate system of internal control to ensure that all the assets are safeguarded and 
protected against loss from unauthorized use or disposiƟon, and that all transacƟons are authorized, recorded and reported 
correctly. InformaƟon provided to management is reliable and Ɵmely and statutory obligaƟons are adhered to. The Internal 
Control System is supplemented by an extensive programme of internal audits, reviews by management, and documented 
policies, guidelines and procedures.

The internal control system is supplemented by well-documented policies, guidelines and procedures and reviews carried 
out by the Company’s Internal Auditor.

FINANCIAL AND OPERATIONAL PERFORMANCE

During the financial year 2017-18, your Company achieved total revenue from operaƟons of ` 10377.31 lakh in comparison 
to the previous year figure of ` 14959.68 lakh. Profit before Taxes is ` 315.94 lakh this year.

A summary of the financial figures for the year is given in the Directors’ Report. 

OperaƟonally, the Company had a sale of vehicles as 2045 units as compared to 1852 units in the previous year showing an 
increase of 10.42 per cent.

HUMAN RESOURCES/INDUSTRIAL RELATIONS

Your Company follows cogent Human Resources policy with an integrated approach that combines employee recogniƟon, 
training and mentoring. The Company maintains open communicaƟon channels with workforce and keeps them engaged 
with its objecƟves towards aƩainment of healthy employer-employee relaƟonship. 

Industrial relaƟons were cordial throughout the year under review. 

CAUTIONARY STATEMENT

Statements in this Management Discussion and Analysis describes the Company’s objectives, and uses projections, estimates 
and expectations that may be ‘forward looking statements’ within the meaning of applicable laws and regulations. Actual 
results might differ substantially or materially from those expressed or implied. Important developments that could affect 
J. J. Automotive Limited’s operations includes a downslide in the automobile industry-global or domestic or both, cogent 
changes in political and economic environment in India or key markets abroad, tax laws, litigation, labour relation and 
interest costs.

         For and on behalf of the Board of Directors

    
 Anil Jhunjhunwala S. P. Mukherjee
Place: Kolkata Managing Director Director 
Date: 13.08.2018 DIN-00128717 DIN-00108225
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ANNEXURE ͳ D

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT
This report is prepared in accordance with the provisions of SEBI (LisƟ ng ObligaƟ ons and Disclosure Requirements) RegulaƟ ons, 2015. 
The Company believes in ensuring corporate fairness, transparency, professionalism accountability and propriety in total funcƟ oning 
of the Company, which are pre-requisites for aƩ aining sustainable growth in this compeƟ Ɵ ve corporate world. Obeying the law, both 
in leƩ er and spirit, is the foundaƟ on on which the Company’s ethical standards are built. The Company would constantly endeavor to 
improve on these aspects:

COMPANY’S PHILOSOPHY ON CODE OF GOVERNANCE

J. J. AutomoƟ ve Limited (JJ) is fully commiƩ ed to pracƟ cing sound corporate governance and upholding the highest business standards 
in conducƟ ng business. Being a value-driven organizaƟ on, the Company has always worked towards building trust with shareholders, 
employees, customers, suppliers and other stakeholders based on the principles of good corporate governance, viz., integrity, equity, 
transparency, fairness, disclosure, accountability and commitment to values. 

DISCLOSURES TO THE CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT

COMPOSITION OF THE BOARD

The exisƟ ng composiƟ on of the Company’s Board is fully in conformity with the applicable provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 and 
the SEBI (LisƟ ng ObligaƟ ons and Disclosure Requirements) RegulaƟ ons, 2015. Your Company has six (6) Directors consisƟ ng of one (1) 
Managing Director, one (1) Non-ExecuƟ ve Director and four (4) Independent Directors as on 31st March, 2018. 

In terms of the provisions of SecƟ on 149 of the Companies Act, 2013 and RegulaƟ on 17 (1) (a) of SEBI (LisƟ ng ObligaƟ ons and Disclosure 
Requirements), 2015, a Company shall have at least one Woman Director on its Board. Mrs. Hilla Eruch Bhathena is the Woman 
Director on the Board who is an Independent Director. 

Except Mr. K. P. Jhunjhunwala and Mr. Anil Jhunjhunwala who are related to each other, none of the Directors are related to any other 
Director. All Independent Directors bring a wide range of experƟ se and experience to the Board thereby ensuring the best interests of 
stakeholders and the Company. 

OTHER DIRECTORSHIPS ETC.

None of the Directors hold directorship in more than 10 public limited companies nor are a member of more than 10 commiƩ ees or 
Chairman of more than 5 commiƩ ees across all listed public limited companies in which they are Directors.

BOARD MEETING DATES AND ATTENDANCE

The Board of Directors met Twelve (12) Ɵ mes during the fi nancial year 2017-18 on 29th May, 2017, 21st June, 2017, 15th July, 2017, 
21st July, 2017, 24th August,2017 13th September, 2017, 14th September, 2017, 30th October, 2017, 12th December, 2017 and 06th 
February, 2018, 13th February, 2018 and 15th February, 2018.  The Board meets at least four Ɵ mes a year with a maximum gap of one 
hundred and twenty days between any two meeƟ ngs. Table 1 gives the aƩ endance record of the Directors at the Board MeeƟ ngs as 
well as the last Annual General MeeƟ ng (AGM). 

TABLE 1 : BOARD MEETING AND AGM ATTENDANCE RECORD OF THE DIRECTORS IN 2017–18

Name AƩ endance Directorships in other 
Companies as on 

31.03.2018

Total no. of 
Membership of 

CommiƩ ees in other 
Companies as on 

31.03.2018

Total no. of 
Chairmanship of 

CommiƩ ees in other 
Companies as on 

31.03.2018

Board 
MeeƟ ng

Last 
AGM

Listed Public Private Audit 
CommiƩ ee

SRC Audit 
CommiƩ ee

SRC

Mr. K. P. Jhunjhunwala (NED) 11 No – – 5 – – – –

Mr. Anil Jhunjhunwala (MD) 12 Yes 1 – 6 1 1 – 1

Mrs. Hilla Eruch Bhathena (NEID) 12 Yes 1 – – 1 – 1 –

Mr. Kamal Nain Saraf (NEID) 12 Yes – – – – – – –

Mr. S. P. Mukherjee (NEID) 12 Yes – – – – – – –

Mr. Surjit Singh (NEID) 12 Yes – – – – – – –
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MEETING OF INDEPENDENT DIRECTORS

The Company’s Independent Directors meet at least once in every fi nancial year without the presence of ExecuƟ ve Directors or 
management personnel. Such meeƟ ngs are conducted informally to enable Independent Directors to discuss maƩ ers pertaining to the 
Company’s aff airs and put forth their view to the Chairman and Managing Director of the Company.

Sl. No. Name of Independent Director No of meeƟ ngs held No. of meeƟ ngs aƩ ended

1 Mrs. Hilla Eruch Bhathena 1 1

2 Mr. Kamal Nain Saraf 1 1

3 Mr. S. P. Mukherjee 1 1

4 Mr. Surjit Singh 1 1

During the year, a meeƟ ng of Independent Directors was held on 27th November, 2017. All Independent Directors were present in the 
meeƟ ng. 

INFORMATION SUPPLIED TO THE BOARD AND THE COMMITTEES

The Directors of the Company have complete access to all informaƟ on of the Company and are informed about the Agenda of the Board 
MeeƟ ng and CommiƩ ee MeeƟ ngs, containing relevant informaƟ on / supporƟ ng data, as required well in advance, to enable them to 
take informed decisions. MaƩ ers discussed at Board MeeƟ ng are generally related to Company’s performance, approval of related 
party transacƟ ons, general noƟ ce of interest of Directors, review of the meeƟ ng of CommiƩ ees of the Board and compliance with 
their recommendaƟ on, suggesƟ on, compliance of any regulatory, statutory or lisƟ ng regulaƟ ons, etc., any material default in fi nancial 
obligaƟ ons to and by the Company, or substanƟ al non-payment for goods sold by the Company, proposal for investments, brief on 
statutory developments, change in Government or Regulatory Policies, etc. 

COMMITTEES OF THE BOARD

AUDIT COMMITTEE

The Audit CommiƩ ee’s composiƟ on and terms of reference are in compliance with the provisions of SecƟ on 177 of the Companies Act, 
2013 and RegulaƟ on 18 of LisƟ ng RegulaƟ ons, 2015.

Terms of reference of the CommiƩ ee inter alia, include the following:

1. RecommendaƟ on for appointment, remuneraƟ on and terms of appointment of auditors of the company;

2. ExaminaƟ on of the fi nancial statement and the auditors’ report thereon;

3. Approval or any subsequent modifi caƟ on of transacƟ ons of the company with related parƟ es; 

4. ScruƟ ny of inter-corporate loans and investments;

5. ValuaƟ on of undertakings or assets of the company, wherever it is necessary;

6. EvaluaƟ on of internal fi nancial controls and risk management systems;

7. Monitoring the end use of funds raised through public off ers and related maƩ ers;

8. ResponsibiliƟ es as may be given Ɵ me to Ɵ me by the Board of the Company. 

POWERS OF AUDIT COMMITTEE

The Audit CommiƩ ee has the following powers :

1. To invesƟ gate any acƟ vity within its terms of reference.

2. To seek informaƟ on from any employee.

3. To obtain outside legal or other professional advice.

4. To secure aƩ endance of outsiders with relevant experƟ se, if it considers necessary. 
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ROLE OF AUDIT COMMITTEE

The role of Audit CommiƩ ee includes the following :

1.  Oversight of the Company’s fi nancial reporƟ ng process and the disclosure of its fi nancial informaƟ on to ensure that the fi nancial 
statements are correct, suffi  cient and reliable. 

2. To recommend to the Board, the appointment, remuneraƟ on and terms of appointment of auditors of the Company. 

3. To approve payment to statutory auditors for any other services rendered by the statutory auditors. 

4. To review with the management, the annual fi nancial statements, and auditors’ report thereon before submission to the Board 
for approval, with parƟ cular reference to:

 a. MaƩ ers required to be included in the Director’s Responsibility Statement to be included in the Boards’ Report in terms of 
clause (c) of sub-secƟ on 3 of SecƟ on 134 of the Companies Act, 2013. 

 b. Changes, if any, in accounƟ ng policies and pracƟ ces and reasons for the same.

 c. Major accounƟ ng entries involving esƟ mates based on the exercise of judgment by management. 

 d. Signifi cant adjustments made in the fi nancial statements arising out of audit fi ndings.

 e. Compliance with lisƟ ng and other legal requirements relaƟ ng to fi nancial statements. 

 f. Disclosure of any related party transacƟ ons. 

 g. Qualifi caƟ ons in the draŌ  audit report.

5. To review with the management, the quarterly fi nancial statements before submission to the board for approval. 

6. To review with the management, the statement of uses/applicaƟ on of funds raised through an issue (public issue, rights issue, 
preferenƟ al issue, etc.), the statement of funds uƟ lized for purposes other than those stated in the off er document/prospectus/
noƟ ce and the report submiƩ ed by the monitoring agency, monitoring the uƟ lizaƟ on of proceeds of a public or rights issue, and 
making appropriate recommendaƟ ons to the Board to take up steps in this maƩ er.

7. To review and monitor the auditor’s independence and performance, and eff ecƟ veness of audit process.

8. To approve or any subsequent modifi caƟ on of transacƟ ons of the Company with related parƟ es. 

9. ScruƟ ny of inter-corporate loans and investments.

10. ValuaƟ on of undertakings or assets of the Company, wherever it is necessary.

11. EvaluaƟ on of internal fi nancial controls and risk management systems.

12. To review, with the management, performance of statutory and internal auditors, adequacy of the internal control systems. 

13. To review the adequacy of internal audit funcƟ on, if any, including the structure of the internal audit department, staffi  ng and 
seniority of the offi  cial heading the department, reporƟ ng structure coverage and frequency of internal audit. 

14. To discuss with internal auditors any signifi cant fi ndings and follow up thereon. 

15. To review the fi ndings of any internal invesƟ gaƟ ons by the internal auditors into maƩ ers where there is suspected fraud or 
irregularity or a failure of internal control systems of a material nature and reporƟ ng the maƩ er to the Board. 

16. To discuss with Statutory Auditors before the audit commences, about the nature and scope of audit as well as post audit 
discussion to ascertain any area of concern. 

17. To look into the reasons for substanƟ al defaults in the payment to the depositors, debenture holders, shareholders (in case of 
non-payment of declared dividends) and creditors. 

18. To review the funcƟ oning of the Whistle Blower Mechanism.
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19. Approval of appointment of CFO (i.e., the whole Ɵ me fi nance director or any other person heading the fi nance funcƟ on or 
discharging that funcƟ on) aŌ er assessing the qualifi caƟ ons, experience and background etc. of the candidate.

20. Carrying out any other funcƟ on as is menƟ oned in the terms of reference of the Audit CommiƩ ee.

The Audit CommiƩ ee also mandatorily reviews the following informaƟ on: 

1. Management Discussion and Analysis of fi nancial condiƟ on and results of operaƟ ons;

2. Statement of signifi cant related party transacƟ ons, submiƩ ed by management;

3. Managements leƩ ers / leƩ ers of internal control weaknesses issued by the Statutory Auditors, if any;

4. Internal Audit Reports relaƟ ng to internal control weaknesses; 

5. Review by the CommiƩ ee the appointment, removal and terms of remuneraƟ on of the Internal Auditor;

6. Statement of deviaƟ ons, if any.

COMPOSITION OF AUDIT COMMITTEE AND MEETINGS

Table 2 shows the composiƟ on of the Audit CommiƩ ee and the details of aƩ endance. The Audit CommiƩ ee met Twelve (12) Ɵ mes 
during the year under review 29th May, 2017, 21st June, 2017, 15th July, 2017, 21st July, 2017, 24th August, 2017, 13th September, 
2017, 14th September, 2017, 30th October, 2017, 12th December, 2017 and 06th February, 2018, 13th February, 2018 and 15th 
February, 2018. All the members of the Audit CommiƩ ee are fi nancially literate and Mr. S. P. Mukherjee, the Chairman, has experƟ se 
in accounƟ ng and fi nancial management. The Chairman of the Audit CommiƩ ee was present at the last Annual General MeeƟ ng of the 
Company to answer the shareholders’ queries.  

TABLE 2 : COMPOSITION AND ATTENDANCE

Name Category DesignaƟ on No. of MeeƟ ngs aƩ ended in 
2017-18 (Total meeƟ ngs held: 12)

Mr. S. P. Mukherjee Independent Chairman 12

Mr. Kamal Nain Saraf Independent Member 12

Mr. Surjit Singh Independent Member 12

NOMINATION AND REMUNERATION COMMITTEE (NRC)

The NominaƟ on and RemuneraƟ on CommiƩ ee’s composiƟ on and terms of reference are in compliance with the provisions of SecƟ on 
178 of the Companies Act, 2013 and RegulaƟ on 19 of LisƟ ng RegulaƟ ons, 2015.

Terms of Reference of the CommiƩ ee inter alia, include the following : 

a)  The CommiƩ ee shall formulate the criteria for determining qualifi caƟ ons, posiƟ ve aƩ ributes and independence of a director. 

b)  IdenƟ fy persons who are qualifi ed to become Director and persons who may be appointed in Key Managerial and Senior 
Management posiƟ ons in accordance with the criteria laid down in this policy. 

c)  Recommend to the Board, appointment and removal of Director, KMP and Senior Management Personnel. 

ROLE OF NOMINATION AND REMUNERATION COMMITTEE

1. FormulaƟ on of the criteria for determining qualifi caƟ ons, posiƟ ve aƩ ributes and independence of a director and recommend to 
the Board of Directors a policy relaƟ ng to, the remuneraƟ on of the Directors, Key Managerial Personnel and other employees;

2.  FormulaƟ on of criteria for evaluaƟ on of performance of Independent Directors and the Board of Directors;

3.  Devising a policy on Diversity of Board of Directors;

4.  IdenƟ fying persons who are qualifi ed to become directors and who may be appointed in senior management in accordance with 
the criteria laid down, and recommend to the Board their appointment and removal;

5.  To determine whether to extend or conƟ nue the term of appointment of the Independent Director, on the basis of the report of 
performance evaluaƟ on of Independent Directors.
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Table 3 shows the composiƟ on of the NominaƟ on and RemuneraƟ on CommiƩ ee and the details of aƩ endance. The CommiƩ ee met 
twice during the year under review on 27th May, 2017 and 27th October, 2017. The Chairperson of the NominaƟ on and RemuneraƟ on 
CommiƩ ee was present at the last Annual General MeeƟ ng of the Company. 

TABLE 3 : COMPOSITION AND ATTENDANCE

Name Category DesignaƟ on No. of MeeƟ ngs aƩ ended  in 
2017-18 (Total meeƟ ngs held: 2)

Mrs. Hilla Eruch Bhathena Independent Chairperson 2

Mr. S. P. Mukherjee Independent Member 2

Mr.  K. P. Jhunjhunwala Non – ExecuƟ ve Director Member 2

PERFORMANCE EVALUATION CRITERIA FOR INDEPENDENT DIRECTORS

EvaluaƟ on is carried out by the NominaƟ on and RemuneraƟ on CommiƩ ee in accordance with SecƟ on 178 of the Companies Act, 2013 
and Code for Independent Directors as outlined under Schedule IV of the Companies Act, 2013. AddiƟ onally, such evaluaƟ on factors 
are set against a range of criteria including contribuƟ on to the development of business strategy and performance of the Company, 
domain experƟ se, industry knowledge, and parƟ cipaƟ on in discussions, understanding the major risks aff ecƟ ng the Company, clear 
direcƟ on to the Management and contribuƟ on to the board cohesion.  

REMUNERATION OF DIRECTORS

Table 4 gives details of the remuneraƟ on for the fi nancial year ended 31st March, 2018. The Company did not advance any loans to 
any of its Directors in the year under review. 

TABLE 4 : DETAILS OF REMUNERATION OF DIRECTORS FOR THE FINANCIAL YEAR ENDED 31ST MARCH, 2018

RemuneraƟ on to Directors :

(a) The Non-ExecuƟ ve Directors are paid siƫ  ng fees of ` 1000/- per meeƟ ng for aƩ ending the Board meeƟ ngs. 

 The details of remuneraƟ on and siƫ  ng fees paid to each of the Directors during the year ended on 31st March, 2018 are given 
below:

Name of the Director RemuneraƟ on 
(`)  p.a.

Siƫ  ng Fees 
(`)

No. of 
shares held 

Mr. K. P. Jhunjhunwala Nil 11,000/- 31200

Mr. Anil Jhunjhunwala 12,00,000/- 12,000/- 128050

Mrs. Hilla Eruch Bhathena Nil 12,000/- Nil

Mr. Kamal Nain Saraf Nil 12,000/- Nil

Mr. S. P. Mukherjee Nil 12,000/- Nil

Mr. Surjit Singh Nil 12,000/- Nil

 Apart from the above, there were no pecuniary transacƟ ons between the Company and Directors. 

 The performance criteria for the purpose of payment of remuneraƟ on to the Directors are in accordance with NominaƟ on and 
RemuneraƟ on Policy. No employee of the Company is related to any director of the Company. 

CRITERIA OF MAKING PAYMENTS TO NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

The Non-ExecuƟ ve Directors shall be enƟ tled to receive remuneraƟ on as detailed hereunder:

SITTING FEE

Such Director(s) may receive remuneraƟ on by way of fee for aƩ ending meeƟ ngs of the Board or any other meeƟ ng as required by the 
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Companies Act, 2013 and SEBI (LisƟ ng ObligaƟ ons and Disclosure Requirements) RegulaƟ ons, 2015 or other applicable law or for any 
other purpose whatsoever as may be decided by the Board;

REIMBURSEMENT OF ACTUAL EXPENSES INCURRED : 

Non-ExecuƟ ve Directors may also be paid /reimbursed such sums either as fi xed allowance and /or actual for travel, incidental and /or 
actual out of pocket expenses incurred by such Director /Member for aƩ ending Board /CommiƩ ee MeeƟ ngs.  

COMMISSION:

Under the Companies Act, 2013, SecƟ on 197 allows a company to pay remuneraƟ on to its Non-ExecuƟ ve Directors either by way of a 
monthly payment or at a specifi ed percentage of the net profi ts of the company or partly by one way and partly by the other. Further, 
the secƟ on also states that where the company has Managing Director or whole-Ɵ me director or Manager, then a maximum of 1% of its 
net profi ts can be paid as remuneraƟ on to its Non-ExecuƟ ve Directors. In case there is no Managing Director or Whole-Time Director or 
Manager, then a maximum of 3% of net profi t can be paid. Thus, the basis of payment to the Non-ExecuƟ ve Directors is the net profi t 
of the Company.

The Company is however not obligated to remunerate its Non-ExecuƟ ve Directors.

REFUND OF EXCESS REMUNERATION PAID :

If any such director draws or receives, directly or indirectly, by way of fee/remuneraƟ on any such sums in excess of the limit as 
prescribed or without the prior sancƟ on, where it is required, such remuneraƟ on shall be refunded to the Company and unƟ l such sum 
is refunded, hold it in trust for the Company. The Company shall not waive the recovery of any sum refundable to it.

PAYMENT TO INDEPENDENT DIRECTORS :

An independent director shall not be enƟ tled to any stock opƟ on and may receive remuneraƟ on only by way of fees and reimbursement 
of expenses for parƟ cipaƟ on in meeƟ ngs of the Board or commiƩ ee thereof and profi t related commission up to a certain percentage 
of net profi ts in such proporƟ on, as may be permissible under the applicable law.

The above criteria and policy are subject to review by the NominaƟ on and RemuneraƟ on CommiƩ ee and the Board of Directors of 
the Company. 

STAKEHOLDERS’ RELATIONSHIP COMMITTEE (SRC)

The Stakeholders’ RelaƟ onship CommiƩ ee’s composiƟ on and terms of reference are in compliance with the provisions of the Companies 
Act, 2013 and RegulaƟ on 20 of LisƟ ng RegulaƟ ons, 2015. 

Terms of Reference of the CommiƩ ee inter alia, include the following: 

The main agenda of the commiƩ ee would be to address, consider and resolve to the requests and grievances of the stakeholders / 
security holders of the company.

Table 5 shows the composiƟ on of the Stakeholders’ RelaƟ onship CommiƩ ee and the details of aƩ endance. The CommiƩ ee met four 
Ɵ mes during the year under review on 22nd April, 2017, 20th May, 2017, 03rd November, 2017 and 05th February, 2018. The Chairman 
of the Stakeholders’ RelaƟ onship CommiƩ ee was present at the last Annual General MeeƟ ng of the Company.

TABLE 5 : COMPOSITION AND ATTENDANCE

Name Category DesignaƟ on No. of MeeƟ ngs aƩ ended  in 2017-18 
(Total meeƟ ngs held: 4)

Mr. Surjit Singh Independent Chairman 4

Mr. Partha DuƩ a Chief ExecuƟ ve Offi  cer Member 4

INVESTOR GRIEVANCE REDRESSAL

Details of complaints received and resolved by the Company during the fi nancial year 2017-18 are given below:
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Nature of Complaint Pending as on 
31.03.2017

Received during 
the year

Disposed of 
during the year

Pending as on 
31.03.2018

Non receipt of cerƟ fi cates lodged for Transfer/
Transmission, issue of Duplicate shares

NIL NIL NIL NIL

Non-receipt of Dividend NIL NIL NIL NIL

DematerializaƟ on/RematerializaƟ on of shares NIL NIL NIL NIL

Others (Non-receipt of bonus shares/POA/change of 
signatures/address etc.)

NIL NIL NIL NIL

GENERAL BODY MEETINGS

ANNUAL GENERAL MEETING

The informaƟ on relaƟ ng to the locaƟ on and Ɵ me of last three Annual General MeeƟ ngs and the special resoluƟ ons passed there at is as 
under:

TABLE 6 : DETAILS OF THE LAST THREE ANNUAL GENERAL MEETINGS OF THE COMPANY

Financial Year LocaƟ on Date Time Whether any special resoluƟ on passed

2014-15 25B Park Street, Kolkata - 700016 29/08/2015 12:00 P.M. Yes

2015-16 25B Park Street, Kolkata - 700016 14/09/2016 12:00 P.M. Yes

2016-17 25B Park Street, Kolkata - 700016 14/09/2017 12:00 P.M. No

The Company has passed six special resoluƟ ons in the previous three Annual General MeeƟ ngs. No special resoluƟ ons were required 
to be put through postal ballot last year. 

EXTRA-ORDINARY GENERAL MEETING

During the year under review, Two (2) Extra- Ordinary General MeeƟ ngs were held. The details of the locaƟ on, Ɵ me and resoluƟ ons 
passed is as under:

TABLE 7 : DETAILS OF THE EXTRA-ORDINARY GENERAL MEETINGS OF THE COMPANY HELD DURING THE YEAR

Date Time LocaƟ on Special ResoluƟ on Passed VoƟ ng Details

14/08/2017 11:00 A.M 25B, Park Street
Kolkata-700 016

Transfer or sell or otherwise dispose 
of Auto Components Division to 
NKPG Auto Parts Private Limited 
[CIN: U52609TN2017PTC116744], 
a subsidiary of TVS Automobile 
SoluƟ ons Private Limited as a going 
concern on a slump sale basis.

5,19,000 votes were cast in favour 
of the resoluƟ on comprising 100% 
of the members aƩ ending and 
voƟ ng. No member voted against 
the resoluƟ on.

15/03/2018 11:00 A.M 25B, Park Street
Kolkata-700 016

AlteraƟ on of Object Clause in the 
Memorandum of AssociaƟ on of 
the Company.

5,19,800 votes were cast in favour 
of the resoluƟ on comprising 100% 
of the members aƩ ending and 
voƟ ng. No member voted against 
the resoluƟ on.

MEANS OF COMMUNICATION

The quarterly, half-yearly and yearly fi nancial results of the Company are sent to the Stock Exchanges immediately aŌ er these are 
approved by the Board. These are published in The Arthik Lipi and The Echo of India. 

These results are simultaneously posted on the website of the Company at hƩ p://www.jjautomoƟ ve.co.in/ and also uploaded on the 
website of The CalcuƩ a Stock Exchange Ltd. 
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GENERAL SHAREHOLDER INFORMATION

ANNUAL GENERAL MEETING : 

1. Day & Date: Tuesday, 25th September, 2018.

2. Time: 05:00 PM.

3. Venue: 25B, Park Street, Kolkata – 700016.

4. Financial Year: 01st April, 2017 to 31st March, 2018.

5. Dividend payment: Nil.

6. a.  Name and address of the Stock Exchange at which the Company’s SecuriƟ es are listed:

  The CalcuƩ a Stock Exchange Limited
  7, Lyons Range, Kolkata 700001 

 b.  Confi rmaƟ on about Annual LisƟ ng fees: LisƟ ng fees for the year 2018-19 has been paid.

7. Debentures : There are no outstanding debentures. 

8. Registrar to an Issue and Share Transfer Agent : M/s Niche Technologies Pvt. Ltd.
     D-511, Bagree Market, 71, B. R. B. Basu Road, Kolkata - 700 001
     Tel :  033-22357270/7271       
     Fax :  033-22156823      
     Email :  nichetechpl@nichetechpl.com
     URL :  www.nichetechpl.com

9. Share Transfer System: Shares sent for transfer in physical form are registered and returned by our Registrar and Share Transfer 
Agent within 15 days of receipt of the documents, provided the documents are found to be in order. Shares under objecƟ on are 
returned within two week. The Stakeholders’ RelaƟ onship CommiƩ ee considers the share transfer proposals.

DistribuƟ on of Equity Shares :

Table 8 lists the DistribuƟ on Schedule of Equity Shares of the Company as on 31st March, 2018.   

Table 8 : DISTRIBUTION OF SHAREHOLDING AS ON 31ST MARCH, 2018

Sl. No. No. of equity shares held (range) No. of Shareholders % to Total Total Shares % to Total

1. 1 to 500 93 68.3824 21,100 1.9182

2. 501 to 1,000 17 12.5000 12,800 1.1636

3. 1,001 to 5,000 6 4.4118 11,300 1.0273

4. 5,001 to 10,000 2 1.4706 11,700 1.0636

5. 10,001 to 50,000 11 8.0882 3,56,500 32.4091

6. 50,001 to 1,00,000 4 2.9412 2,79,450 25.4045

7. 1,00,001 and above 3 2.2059 4,07,150 37.0136

Total 136 100.00 11,00,000 100.00
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Shareholding PaƩ ern as on 31st March 2018 :

Table 9 lists the shareholding paƩ ern of equity shares of the Company as on 31st March 2018.  

Table 9 : SHAREHOLDING PATTERN AS ON 31ST MARCH 2018

Category No. of Shares % holding

Shareholding of Promoter and Promoter Group

Indian Individuals/Hindu Undivided Family 4,42,350 40.214

Indian Bodies Corporate 2,42,850 22.077

Foreign Bodies Corporate Nil Nil

Public Shareholding

Individual/Hindu Undivided Family 2,03,900 18.536

Financial InsƟ tuƟ ons/Banks Nil Nil

Non insƟ tuƟ onal Body Corporate 2,10,900 19.173

Non-Resident Indians Nil Nil

Clearing Members Nil Nil

TOTAL 11,00,000 100

DEMATERIALIZATION OF SHARES AND LIQUIDITY

The shares of the Company are available for trading in both the depository systems, namely, NaƟ onal SecuriƟ es Depository Limited and 
Central Depository Services (India) Limited. 

Table 10 lists the dematerializaƟ on of equity shares of the Company as on 31st March 2018.  

Table 10 : DEMATERIALIZATION OF SHARES AS ON 31ST MARCH, 2018

Category No. of Shares % holding

Dematerialized Form 914650 83.15

Physical Form 185350 16.85

Total 1100000 100.00

RECONCILIATION OF SHARE CAPITAL AUDIT

A qualifi ed pracƟ cing Company Secretary carries out ReconciliaƟ on of Share Capital Audit every quarter to reconcile the total admiƩ ed 
capital with NaƟ onal SecuriƟ es Depository Limited (NSDL) and Central Depository Services (India) Limited (CDSL) and the total issued 
and listed capital. The audit confi rms that the total issued / paid up capital is in agreement with the aggregate total number of shares 
in physical form and the total number of dematerialized shares held with NSDL and CDSL. 

I. DISCLOSURES 

 TransacƟ ons with related parƟ es, as per requirements of AccounƟ ng Standard 18, are disclosed in notes to accounts annexed to 
the fi nancial statements.

 There are no materially signifi cant transacƟ ons with the related parƟ es viz. Promoters, Directors or the Management, or their 
relaƟ ves or Subsidiaries that had potenƟ al confl ict with the Company’s interests. Suitable disclosure as required by the AccounƟ ng 
Standard (AS 18) has been made in the Annual Report. The Policy on Materiality of Related Party TransacƟ ons and Dealing with 
Related Party TransacƟ ons as approved by the Board is uploaded on the Company’s website at: hƩ p://www.jjautomoƟ ve.co.in/

 The Company has followed all relevant AccounƟ ng Standards noƟ fi ed by the Companies (AccounƟ ng Standards) Rules, 2006 
while preparing Financial Statements.

 There are no pecuniary relaƟ onships or transacƟ ons of Non-ExecuƟ ve Directors vis-à-vis the Company which has potenƟ al 
confl ict with the interests of the Company at large.
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 No penalƟ es or strictures have been imposed on the Company by Stock Exchange or SEBI or any statutory authority on any maƩ er 
related to capital markets during the last three years.

 During the year ended 31st March, 2018 the Company does not have any material listed/unlisted subsidiary companies as 
defi ned in RegulaƟ on 16(1)(c) of the LisƟ ng RegulaƟ ons. The Company has framed the policy for determining material subsidiary 
as required by under RegulaƟ on 16(1)(c) of the LisƟ ng RegulaƟ ons and the same is disclosed on the Company’s website: hƩ p://
www.jjautomoƟ ve.co.in/

 The Company does not have any exposure towards commodity price risks and commodity hedging acƟ viƟ es. 

II. VIGIL MECHANISM/WHISTLE BLOWER POLICY 

 The Company has adopted a Vigil Mechanism/Whistle Blower Policy and has established the necessary Vigil mechanism for 
employees and directors to report concerns about unethical behavior. The Whistle Blower Policy complies with the requirements 
of Vigil mechanism as sƟ pulated under SecƟ on 177(9) of the Companies Act, 2013 and SEBI (LisƟ ng ObligaƟ ons and Disclosure 
Requirements) RegulaƟ ons, 2015.The details of establishment of Vigil Mechanism/Whistle Blower Policy have been disclosed on 
the Company’s website at the link: hƩ p://www.jjautomoƟ ve.co.in/

 The Company affi  rms that no employee/director of the Company has been denied access to the Audit CommiƩ ee. 

III. CODE FOR PREVENTION OF INSIDER TRADING PRACTICES

 In compliance with RegulaƟ on 8(1) of the SEBI (ProhibiƟ on of Insider Trading) RegulaƟ ons, 2015, your Company has adopted 
a Code of PracƟ ces and Procedures for Fair Disclosure of Unpublished Price SensiƟ ve InformaƟ on. As per RegulaƟ on 9(1) of 
the SEBI (ProhibiƟ on of Insider Trading) RegulaƟ ons, 2015, the Company has laid down a comprehensive Code of Conduct for 
prevenƟ on of Insider Trading for its designated employees. This can be viewed at hƩ p://www.jjautomoƟ ve.co.in.

IV. COMPLIANCE WITH MANDATORY REQUIREMENTS

 The Company has complied with all the mandatory requirements of the Code of Corporate Governance as sƟ pulated under 
RegulaƟ on 27(2) of the LisƟ ng RegulaƟ ons. 

V. ADOPTION OF THE NON-MANDATORY REQUIREMENTS

 SEPARATE POSTS OF CHAIRMAN AND CEO

 During the period under review, in every Board MeeƟ ng of the Company, the Board elected the Chairman of the MeeƟ ng and his 
posiƟ on is separate from that of the Chief ExecuƟ ve Offi  cer. 

 SHAREHOLDER RIGHTS 

 The quarterly and half yearly fi nancial performance along with signifi cant events are published in the newspapers and are also 
posted on the Company’s website hƩ p://www.jjautomoƟ ve.co.in. 

 AUDIT QUALIFICATIONS

 During the fi nancial year under review, there is no audit qualifi caƟ on in the Company’s fi nancial statements. The Company 
conƟ nues to adopt best pracƟ ces to ensure regime of unqualifi ed fi nancial statements.

 INTERNAL AUDITOR

 The internal auditor reports directly to the Audit CommiƩ ee. 

VI. CODE OF CONDUCT 

 The Company’s Board has laid down a well-defi ned Code of Ethics & Conduct (the “Code”) to be followed by Board Members and 
employees of the Company for ethical professional conduct. The Code is available on the website of the Company hƩ p://www.
jjautomoƟ ve.co.in/. All Board Members and Senior Management Personnel have affi  rmed compliance with this Code. 

VII. CEO / CFO CERTIFICATION

 The Chief ExecuƟ ve Offi  cer and Chief Financial Offi  cer have issued cerƟ fi cate pursuant to the provisions of RegulaƟ on 17(8) of the 
LisƟ ng RegulaƟ ons cerƟ fying that the fi nancial statements do not contain any materially untrue statement and these statements 
represent a true and fair view of the Company’s aff airs. The said cerƟ fi cate is annexed as Annexure – F and forms part of the 
Annual Report. 
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ANNEXUREͳE

NOMINATION AND REMUNERATION POLICY

The Board of Directors of J. J. AUTOMOTIVE LIMITED (“the Company”) consƟtuted the “NominaƟon and RemuneraƟon CommiƩee” at 
the MeeƟng held on November 13, 2014 with immediate effect, consisƟng of three (3) Non-ExecuƟve Directors of which majority are 
Independent Directors

1. OBJECTIVE 

 The NominaƟon and RemuneraƟon CommiƩee and this Policy shall be in compliance with SecƟon 178 of the Companies Act, 2013 
read along with the applicable rules thereto and the Key ObjecƟves of the CommiƩee would be : 

 1.1. To recommend the Board regarding the appointment and removal of Directors, Key Managerial Personnel and Senior 
Management. 

 1.2. To evaluate the performance of the members of the Board and provide necessary report to the Board for their further 
evaluaƟon. 

 1.3. To recommend to the Board a policy relaƟng RemuneraƟon payable to the Directors, Key Managerial Personnel and Senior 
Management. 

 1.4. To provide to Key Managerial Personnel and Senior Management reward linked directly to their effort, performance, 
dedicaƟon and achievement relaƟng to the Company’s operaƟons. 

 1.5. To retain, moƟvate and promote talent and to ensure long term sustainability of talented managerial persons and create 
compeƟƟve advantage. 

 1.6. To devise a policy in respect of Board diversity. 

 1.7. To develop a successive plan for the Board and to regularly review the same.

2. DEFINITIONS 

 2.1. Act means the Companies Act, 2013 and Rules framed there under, as amended from Ɵme to Ɵme. 

 2.2. Board means Board of Directors of the Company.

 2.3. Directors mean Directors of the Company.

 2.4. Key Managerial Personnel means

  2.4.1. Chief ExecuƟve Officer or the Managing Director or the Manager; 

  2.4.2. Whole-Ɵme director; 

  2.4.3. Chief Financial Officer; 

  2.4.4. Company Secretary; and 

  2.4.5. such other officer as may be prescribed. 

  Senior Management means personnel of the company who are members of its core management team excluding the Board 
of Directors including the personnel holding designaƟon of General Manager and above.

3. ROLE OF COMMITTEE 

 3.1  MaƩers to be dealt with, perused and recommended to the Board by the NominaƟon and RemuneraƟon CommiƩee

  The CommiƩee shall :

  3.1.1 Formulate the criteria for determining qualificaƟons, posiƟve aƩributes and independence of a director. 
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  3.1.2  IdenƟfy persons who are qualified to become Director and persons who may be appointed in Key Managerial and 
Senior Management posiƟons in accordance with the criteria laid down in this policy. 

  3.1.3    Recommend to the Board, appointment and removal of Director, KMP and Senior Management Personnel. 

 3.2  Policy for appointment and removal of Director, KMP and Senior Management 

  3.2.1      Appointment criteria and qualificaƟons 

   a)   The CommiƩee shall idenƟfy and ascertain the integrity, qualificaƟon, experƟse and experience of the person 
for appointment as Director, KMP or at Senior Management level and recommend to the Board his / her 
appointment. 

   b)  A person should possess adequate qualificaƟon, experƟse and experience for the posiƟon he / she is 
considered for appointment. The CommiƩee has discreƟon to decide whether qualificaƟon, experƟse and 
experience possessed by a person is sufficient / saƟsfactory for the concerned posiƟon. 

   c)  The Company shall not appoint or conƟnue the employment of any person as Whole-Ɵme Director who has 
aƩained the age of seventy years. Provided that the term of the person holding this posiƟon may be extended 
beyond the age of seventy years with the approval of shareholders by passing a special resoluƟon based on 
the explanatory statement annexed to the noƟce for such moƟon indicaƟng the jusƟficaƟon for extension of 
appointment beyond seventy years. 

  3.2.2   Term / Tenure 

   a) Managing Director/Whole-Ɵme Director : 

    The Company shall appoint or re-appoint any person as its ExecuƟve Chairman, Managing Director or ExecuƟve 
Director for a term not exceeding five years at a Ɵme. No re-appointment shall be made earlier than one year 
before the expiry of term. 

   b) Independent Director : 

    – An Independent Director shall hold office for a term up to five consecuƟve years on the Board of the 
Company and will be eligible for re-appointment on passing of a special resoluƟon by the Company and 
disclosure of such appointment in the Board's report. 

    – No Independent Director shall hold office for more than two consecuƟve terms, but such Independent 
Director shall be eligible for appointment aŌer expiry of three years of ceasing to become an 
Independent Director. Provided that an Independent Director shall not, during the said period of three 
years, be appointed in or be associated with the Company in any other capacity, either directly or 
indirectly. However, if a person who has already served as an Independent Director for 5 years or more 
in the Company as on October 1, 2014 or such other date as may be determined by the CommiƩee as 
per regulatory requirement; he/ she shall be eligible for appointment for one more term of 5 years only. 

    – At the Ɵme of appointment of Independent Director it should be ensured that number of Boards on 
which such Independent Director serves is restricted to seven listed companies as an Independent 
Director and three listed companies as an Independent Director in case such person is serving as a 
Whole-Ɵme Director of a listed company or such other number as may be prescribed under the Act. 

  3.2.3 EvaluaƟon 

   The CommiƩee shall carry out evaluaƟon of performance of every Director, KMP and Senior Management Personnel 
at regular interval (yearly). 



J. J. AUTOMOTIVE LIMITED 37TH ANNUAL REPORT 2017ͳ18

ȑ 35 Ȓ

  3.2.4 Removal 

   Due to reasons for any disqualificaƟon menƟoned in the Act or under any other applicable Act, rules and regulaƟons 
thereunder, the CommiƩee may recommend, to the Board with reasons recorded in wriƟng, removal of a Director, 
KMP or Senior Management Personnel subject to the provisions and compliance of the said Act, rules and regulaƟons. 

  3.2.5 ReƟrement 

   The Director, KMP and Senior Management Personnel shall reƟre as per the applicable provisions of the Act and the 
prevailing policy of the Company. The Board will have the discreƟon to retain the Director, KMP, Senior Management 
Personnel in the same posiƟon/ remuneraƟon or otherwise even aŌer aƩaining the reƟrement age, for the benefit of 
the Company. 

   a) Minimum RemuneraƟon : 

    If, in any financial year, the Company has no profits or its profits are inadequate, the Company shall pay 
remuneraƟon to its Whole-Ɵme Director/Managing Director in accordance with the provisions of Schedule 
V of the Act and if it is not able to comply with such provisions, with the previous approval of the Central 
Government. 

   b) Provisions for excess remuneraƟon : 

    If any Whole-Ɵme Director draws or receives, directly or indirectly by way of remuneraƟon any such sums in 
excess of the limits prescribed under the Act or without the prior sancƟon of the Central Government, where 
required, he / she shall refund such sums to the Company and unƟl such sum is refunded, hold it in trust for 
the Company. The Company shall not waive recovery of such sum refundable to it unless permiƩed by the 
Central Government.

  3.2.6  RemuneraƟon to Non- ExecuƟve / Independent Director :

   a) RemuneraƟon / Commission : 

    The remuneraƟon / commission shall be fixed by the CommiƩee and approved by the Board wherever 
necessary. 

   b) Siƫng Fees : 

     The Non- ExecuƟve / Independent Director may receive remuneraƟon by way of fees for aƩending meeƟngs 
of Board or CommiƩee thereof. Provided that the amount of such fees shall not exceed Rupees One Lac per 
meeƟng of the Board or CommiƩee or such amount as may be prescribed by the Central Government from 
Ɵme to Ɵme.

   c) Commission : 

    Commission may be paid within the monetary limit approved by shareholders, subject to the limit not 
exceeding 1% of the profits of the Company computed as per the applicable provisions of the Act. 

   d) Stock OpƟons : 

    An Independent Director shall not be enƟtled to any stock opƟon of the Company. 

4. MEMBERSHIP 

 4.1 The CommiƩee shall consist of a minimum 3 non-execuƟve directors, majority of them being independent. 

 4.2 Minimum two (2) members shall consƟtute a quorum for the CommiƩee meeƟng. 

 4.3 Membership of the CommiƩee shall be disclosed in the Annual Report. 

 4.4 Term of the CommiƩee shall be conƟnued unless terminated by the Board of Directors. 
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5. CHAIRPERSON 

 5.1 Chairperson of the CommiƩee shall be an Independent Director. 

 5.2 Chairperson of the Company may be appointed as a member of the CommiƩee but shall not be a Chairman of the 
CommiƩee. 

 5.3 In the absence of the Chairperson, the members of the CommiƩee present at the meeƟng shall choose one amongst them 
to act as Chairperson. 

 5.4 Chairman of the NominaƟon and RemuneraƟon CommiƩee meeƟng could be present at the Annual General MeeƟng or may 
nominate some other member to answer the shareholders’ queries. 

6. FREQUENCY OF MEETINGS 

 The meeƟng of the CommiƩee shall be held at such regular intervals as may be required. 

7. COMMITTEE MEMBERS’ INTERESTS 

 7.1 A member of the CommiƩee is not enƟtled to be present when his or her own remuneraƟon is discussed at a meeƟng or 
when his or her performance is being evaluated. 

 7.2 The CommiƩee may invite such execuƟves, as it considers appropriate, to be present at the meeƟngs of the CommiƩee. 

8. SECRETARY 

 The Company Secretary of the Company, if any, shall act as Secretary of the CommiƩee. 

9. VOTING 

 9.1 MaƩers arising for determinaƟon at CommiƩee meeƟngs shall be decided by a majority of votes of Members present and 
voƟng and any such decision shall for all purposes be deemed a decision of the CommiƩee. 

 9.2 In the case of equality of votes, the Chairman of the meeƟng will have a casƟng vote. 

10. NOMINATION DUTIES 

 The duƟes of the CommiƩee in relaƟon to nominaƟon maƩers include: 

 10.1 Ensuring that there is an appropriate inducƟon in place for new Directors and members of Senior Management and 
reviewing its effecƟveness; 

 10.2 Ensuring that on appointment to the Board, Non-ExecuƟve Directors receive a formal leƩer of appointment in accordance 
with the Guidelines provided under the Act;  

 10.3 IdenƟfying and recommending Directors who are to be put forward for reƟrement by rotaƟon;

 10.4 Determining the appropriate size, diversity and composiƟon of the Board; 

 10.5 Seƫng a formal and transparent procedure for selecƟng new Directors for appointment to the Board; 

 10.6 Developing a succession plan for the Board and Senior Management and regularly reviewing the plan;

 10.7 EvaluaƟng the performance of the Board members and Senior Management in the context of the Company’s performance 
from business and compliance perspecƟve; 

 10.8 Making recommendaƟons to the Board concerning any maƩers relaƟng to the conƟnuaƟon in office of any Director at any 
Ɵme including the suspension or terminaƟon of service of an ExecuƟve Director as an employee of the Company subject to 
the provision of the law and their service contract. 

 10.9 DelegaƟng any of its powers to one or more of its members or the Secretary of the CommiƩee; 
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 10.10 Recommend any necessary changes to the Board; and 

 10.11 Considering any other maƩers, as may be requested by the Board. 

11.  REMUNERATION DUTIES 

 The duƟes of the CommiƩee in relaƟon to remuneraƟon maƩers include : 

 11.1 to consider and determine the RemuneraƟon Policy, based on the performance and also bearing in mind that the 
remuneraƟon is reasonable and sufficient to aƩract retain and moƟvate members of the Board and such other factors as the 
CommiƩee shall deem appropriate all elements of the remuneraƟon of the members of the Board. 

 11.2 to approve the remuneraƟon of the Senior Management including key managerial personnel of the Company maintaining a 
balance between fixed and incenƟve pay reflecƟng short and long term performance objecƟves appropriate to the working 
of the Company. 

 11.3 to delegate any of its powers to one or more of its members or the Secretary of the CommiƩee. 

 11.4 to consider any other maƩers as may be requested by the Board. 

 11.5 Professional indemnity and liability insurance for Directors and senior management. 

12. MINUTES OF COMMITTEE MEETING 

 Proceedings of all meeƟngs must be minuted and signed by the Chairman of the CommiƩee at the subsequent meeƟng. Minutes 
of the CommiƩee meeƟngs will be tabled at the subsequent Board and CommiƩee meeƟng.
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ANNEXUREͳF

COMPLIANCE CERTIFICATE FROM CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER & CHIEF FINANCIAL OFFICER PURSUANT 
TO REGULATION 17Έ8Ή AND PART B OF SCHEDULE II OF SEBI ΈLISTING OBLIGATIONS AND DISCLOSURE 
REQUIREMENTSΉ REGULATIONS, 2015

We have reviewed the Financial Statements and the Cash Flow Statement of J. J. AutomoƟ ve Limited for the year ended March 31, 2018 
and that to the best of their knowledge and belief: 

A)  (1)  these statements do not contain any materially untrue statement or omit any material fact or contain statements that might 
be misleading;

 (2) these statements together present a true and fair view of the listed enƟ ty’s aff airs and are in compliance with exisƟ ng 
accounƟ ng standards, applicable laws and regulaƟ ons. 

B) These are, to the best of our knowledge and belief, no transacƟ ons entered into by the listed enƟ ty’s during the year which are 
fraudulent, illegal or violaƟ ve of the listed enƟ ty’s Code of Conduct. 

C) We accept responsibility for establishing and maintaining internal controls for fi nancial reporƟ ng and that we have evaluated the 
eff ecƟ veness of internal control systems of the listed enƟ ty pertaining to fi nancial reporƟ ng and have disclosed to the auditors 
and the Audit CommiƩ ee, defi ciencies in the design or operaƟ on of such internal controls, if any, of which we are aware and the 
steps we have taken or propose to take to recƟ fy these defi ciencies. 

D) We have indicated to the Auditors and the Audit CommiƩ ee : 

 (1) there are no signifi cant changes in internal control over fi nancial reporƟ ng during the year; 

 (2) there are no signifi cant changes in accounƟ ng policies made during the year; and 

 (3) there are no instances of fraud involving the management or an employee having a signifi cant role in the listed enƟ ty’s  
internal control system over fi nancial reporƟ ng.

                   For J. J. AutomoƟ ve Limited

Place : Kolkata                                                       Partha DuƩ a Ramesh Kumar Chitlangia
Date  : 13th August, 2018                                                                        Chief ExecuƟ ve Offi  cer Chief Financial Offi  cer    

DECLARATION UNDER REGULATION 26(3) AND PART D OF SCHEDULE V OF 
SEBI (LISTING OBLIGATIONS AND DISCLOSURE REQUIREMENTS) REGULATIONS, 2015

Pursuant to RegulaƟ on 26(3) and Part D of Schedule V of SEBI (LisƟ ng ObligaƟ ons and Disclosure Requirements) RegulaƟ ons, 2015, 
it is hereby declared that the members of the Board of Directors and Senior Management Personnel of J. J. AutomoƟ ve Limited have 
affi  rmed compliance with the Code of Conduct for the year ended 31st March, 2018.

           
    
   For J. J. AutomoƟ ve Limited
   

Place: Kolkata                                                                                                                                     Partha DuƩ a
Date: 13th August, 2018 Chief ExecuƟ ve Offi  cer 
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ANNEXUREͳG

CERTIFICATE ON COMPLIANCE WITH THE CONDITIONS OF CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

To the Members of J. J. AutomoƟ ve Limited,

We have examined the compliance of condiƟ ons of Corporate Governance by J. J. AutomoƟ ve Limited, for the year ended March 31, 
2018 as sƟ pulated in Chapter IV of the SecuriƟ es and Exchange Board of India (LisƟ ng ObligaƟ ons and Disclosure Requirements) Regula-
Ɵ ons, 2015 pursuant to the LisƟ ng Agreement of the said Company with Stock Exchange in India.

The compliance of condiƟ ons of Corporate Governance is the responsibility of the Company’s management. Our examinaƟ on was 
limited to the procedures and implementaƟ on thereof, adopted by the Company for ensuring the compliance of the condiƟ ons of Cor-
porate Governance. It is neither an audit nor an expression of the opinion on the fi nancial statements of the Company.

In our opinion and the best of our informaƟ on and explanaƟ ons given to us, we cerƟ fy that the Company has complied with the condi-
Ɵ ons of Corporate Governance as sƟ pulated in the above menƟ oned SecuriƟ es and Exchange Board of India (LisƟ ng ObligaƟ ons and 
Disclosure Requirements) RegulaƟ ons, 2015. 

We state that in respect of investor grievances received during the year ended 31st March, 2018, no investor grievances are pending 
against the Company as on 03.08.2018 as per the records maintained by the Company. 

We further state that such compliance is neither an assurance as to the future viability of the Company nor the effi  ciency or eff ecƟ ve-
ness with which the management has conducted the aff airs of the Company.

Place : Kolkata   ASHOK KUMAR DAGA
Date  : 03rd August, 2018  PracƟ cing Company Secretary
     FCS No. 2699, C P No: 2948
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INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORT
To The Members of J. J. AutomoƟ ve Limited

1. Report on the IndAS Financial Statements 

 We have audited the accompanying Ind AS financial statements of M/s J. J. AutomoƟve Limited (“the Company”), which comprise 
the Balance Sheet as at 31st March, 2018, and the Statement of Profit and Loss (including Other Comprehensive Income), the Cash 
Flow Statement and the Statement of Changes in Equity for the year then ended, and a summary of the significant accounƟng poli-
cies and other explanatory informaƟon. 

2.  Management’s Responsibility for the IndAS Financial Statements 

 The Company’s Board of Directors is responsible for the maƩers stated in SecƟon 134(5) of the Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act”) 
with respect to the preparaƟon of theseInd AS financial statements that give a true and fair view of the financial posiƟon, financial 
performance including other comprehensive income, cash flows and changes in equity of the Company in accordance with the 
accounƟng principles generally accepted in India, including the Indian AccounƟng Standards (Ind AS) prescribed under SecƟon 133 
of the Act.

 This responsibility also includes maintenance of adequate accounƟng records in accordance with the provisions of the Act for 
safeguarding the assets of the Company and for prevenƟng and detecƟng frauds and other irregulariƟes; selecƟon and applicaƟon 
of appropriate accounƟng policies; making judgements and esƟmates that are reasonable and prudent; and design, implementaƟon 
and maintenance of adequate internal financial controls, that were operaƟng effecƟvely for ensuring the accuracy and completeness 
of the accounƟng records, relevant to the preparaƟon and presentaƟon of the  Ind AS financial statements that give a true and fair 
view and are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

3.  Auditor’s Responsibility 

 Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these Ind AS financial statements based on our audit.

 In conducƟng our audit, we have taken into account the provisions of the Act,the accounƟng and audiƟng standards and maƩers 
which are required to be included in the audit report under the provisions of the Act and the Rules made thereunder. 

 We conducted our audit of the Ind AS financial statementsin accordance with the Standards on AudiƟng specified under SecƟon 
143(10) of the Act. Those Standards require that we comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain 
reasonable assurance about whether the Ind AS financial statements are free from material misstatement.

 An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and the disclosures in the  Ind AS financial 
statements.The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s judgement, including the assessment of the risks of material 
misstatement of the Ind AS financial statements whether due to fraud or error. In making those risk assessments, the auditor 
considers internal financial control relevant to the Company’s preparaƟon of the  Ind AS financial statementsthat give a true 
and fair view in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances. An audit also includes evaluaƟng 
the appropriateness of the accounƟng policies used and the reasonableness of the accounƟng esƟmates made by the Company’s 
Directors, as well as evaluaƟng the overall presentaƟon of the  Ind AS financial statements.

 We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion on the Ind 
AS financial statements.

4.  Opinion 

 In our opinion and to the best of our informaƟon and according to the explanaƟons given to us, the aforesaid Ind AS financial 
statements give the informaƟon required by the Act in the manner so required and give a true and fair view in conformity with the 
accounƟng principles generally accepted in India;

 a. In the case of Balance Sheet  of the Company as at 31st March, 2018;

 b. In the case of the Statement of Profit or Loss and Total Comprehensive Income for the year ended on that date; and

 c. In the case of Cash Flow Statement, of the Cash Flows for the year ended on that date.

 d. In the case of Statement of Changes in Equity for the year ended on that date.
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5.  Other MaƩers

 The comparaƟve financial informaƟon of the Company for the year ended 31st March, 2017 and the transiƟon date opening Balance 
Sheet as at 1st April, 2016 included in these  Ind AS financial statements, are based on the statutory financial statements prepared 
in accordance with the Companies (AccounƟng Standards) Rules, 2006 audited by the previous auditors whose report for the year 
ended 31st March, 2017 and 31st March, 2016 dated 29th May, 2017and 30th May, 2016 respecƟvely expressed an unmodified 
opinion on those  financial statements, as adjusted for the differences in the accounƟng principles adopted by the Company on 
transiƟon to the Ind AS, which have been audited by us. Our opinion on the Ind AS financial statements and our report on Other 
Legal and Regulatory Requirements below is not modified in respect of these maƩers. 

6.  Report on other Legal and Regulatory Requirements 

 i) As required by SecƟon 143(3) of the Act, based on our audit, we report to the extent applicable that:

  a) We have sought and obtained all the informaƟon and explanaƟons which to the best of our knowledge and belief were 
necessary for the purposes of our audit.

  b) In our opinion, proper books of accounts as required by law have been kept by the Company so far as it appears from 
our examinaƟon of those books.

  c) The Balance Sheet, the Statement of Profit and Loss including Other Comprehensive Income, the Cash Flow Statement 
and Statement of Changes in Equity dealt with by this Report arein agreement with the relevant books of accounts.

  d) In our opinion, the aforesaid Ind AS financial statements comply with the Indian AccounƟng Standards prescribed under 
SecƟon 133 of the Act, read with relevant rules issued thereunder.

  e) On the basis of the wriƩen representaƟons received from the Directors as on 31st March, 2018 taken on record by the 
Board of Directors, none of the Directors is disqualified as on 31st March, 2018 from being appointed as a director in 
terms of SecƟon 164(2) of the Act.

  f) With respect to the adequacy of the internal financial controls over financial reporƟng of the Company and the operaƟng 
effecƟveness of such controls, refer to our separate report in “Annexure A”. Our report expresses an unmodified opinion 
on the adequacy and operaƟng effecƟveness of the Company’s internal financial controls over financial reporƟng.

  g) With respect to the other maƩers to be included in the Auditor’s Report in accordance with the Rule 11 of the Companies 
(Audit and Auditors) rules, 2014,as amended, in our opinion and to the best of our informaƟon and according to the 
explanaƟons given to us:

   i. The Company has disclosed the impact of pending liƟgaƟons on its financial posiƟon in its Ind AS financial 
statements. 

   ii. The Company has made provision, as required under the applicable law or accounƟng standards, for material 
foreseeable losses on long term contracts including derivaƟve contracts.

   iii. There has been no delay in transferring amounts, which were required to be transferred to the Investor educaƟon 
and ProtecƟon Fund by the Company.

 ii)  As required by the Companies (Auditor’s Report) Order, 2016 (“the Order”) issued by the Central Government of India in terms 
of sub-secƟon (11) of secƟon 143 of the Act, we give in “Annexure B”, a statement on the maƩers specified in paragraphs 3 
and 4 of the Order, to the extent applicable.

For Agrawal Subodh &Co.
Chartered Accountants 

       Firm’s RegistraƟon No – 319260E

       Mohammad Kothawala
Place : Kolkata      Partner
Date  : 30th May, 2018.     Membership No. – 309995
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ANNEXURE “A” TO THE INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORT
(Referred to in paragraph 1(f) under ‘Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements’ SecƟon of our report of even date)

Report on the Internal Financial Controls Over Financial ReporƟng under Clause (i) of Sub-secƟon 3 of SecƟon 143 of the Companies Act, 
2013 (“the Act”).

We have audited the internal financial controls over financial reporƟng of M/s J.J. AutomoƟve Limited (“the Company”) as of 31st March, 
2018 in conjuncƟon with our audit of the Ind AS financial statements of the Company for the year ended on that date.

Management’s Responsibility for Internal Financial controls 

The Company's management is responsible for establishing and maintaining internal financial controlsbased on the internal control over 
financial reporƟng criteria established by the Company considering theessenƟal components of internal control stated in the Guidance 
Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial ReporƟng issued by the InsƟtute of Chartered Accountants of India.

These responsibiliƟes include the design, implementaƟon and maintenance of adequate internal financial controls that were operaƟng 
effecƟvely for ensuring the orderly and efficient conduct of its business, including adherence to company’s policies, the safeguarding of 
its assets, the prevenƟon and detecƟon of frauds and errors, the accuracy and completeness of the accounƟng records, and the Ɵmely 
preparaƟon of reliable financial informaƟon, as required under the Companies Act, 2013. 

Auditors’ Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the Company’s internal financial controls over financial reporƟng based on our audit. We 
conducted our audit in accordance with the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls over Financial ReporƟng (the “Guidance 
Note”) issued by the InsƟtute of Chartered Accountants of India and the Standards on AudiƟng, prescribed under SecƟon 143(10) of the 
Companies Act, 2013, to the extent applicable to an audit of internal financial controls. Those Standards and the Guidance Note require 
that we comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether adequate 
internal financial controls over financial reporƟng was established and maintained and if such controls operated effecƟvely in all material 
respects.

Our audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the adequacy of the internal financial controls system over 
financial reporƟng and their operaƟng effecƟveness. Our audit of internal financial controls over financial reporƟng included obtaining 
an understanding of internal financial controls over financial reporƟng, assessing the risk that a material weakness exists, and tesƟng and 
evaluaƟng the design and operaƟng effecƟveness of internal control based on the assessed risk. The procedures selected depend on the 
auditor’s judgement, including the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or 
error.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion on the Company’s 
internal financial controls system over financial reporƟng. 

Meaning of Internal Financial Controls over Financial ReporƟng 

A company’s internal financial control over financial reporƟng is a process designed to provide reasonable assurance regarding the 
reliability of financial reporƟng and the preparaƟon of financial statements for external purposes in accordance with generally accepted 
accounƟng principles. A company’s internal financial control over financial reporƟng includes those policies and procedures that:

(1) Pertain to the maintenance of records that, in reasonable detail, accurately and fairly reflect the transacƟons and disposiƟons of the 
assets of the company; 

(2) Provide reasonable assurance that transacƟons are recorded as necessary to permit preparaƟon of financial statements in 
accordance with generally accepted accounƟng principles, and that receipts and expenditures of the company are being made only 
in accordance with authorizaƟons of management and directors of the company; and 

(3) Provide reasonable assurance regarding prevenƟon or Ɵmely detecƟon of unauthorized acquisiƟon, use, or disposiƟon of the 
Company’s assets that could have a material effect on the financial statements. 
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Inherent LimitaƟons of Internal Financial Controls over Financial ReporƟng 

Because of the inherent limitaƟons of internal financial controls over financial reporƟng, including the possibility of collusion or improper 
management override of controls, material misstatements due to error or fraud may occur and not be detected. Also, projecƟons of any 
evaluaƟon of the internal financial controls over financial controls over financial reporƟng to future periods are subject to the risk that 
the internal financial control over financial reporƟng may become inadequate because of changes in condiƟons, or that the degree of 
compliance with the policies or procedures may deteriorate. 

Opinion 

In our opinion, the Company has, in all material respects, an adequate internal financial controls system over financial reporƟng and such 
internal financial controls over financial reporƟng were operaƟng effecƟvely as at 31st March 2018, based on the internal control over 
financial reporƟng criteria established by  the  Company considering the essenƟal components of internal control stated in the Guidance 
Note on Audit of  Internal Financial Controls Over Financial ReporƟng issued by the InsƟtute of Chartered Accountants of  India.

For Agrawal Subodh &Co.
Chartered Accountants 

       Firm’s RegistraƟon No – 319260E

       Mohammad Kothawala
Place : Kolkata      Partner
Date  : 30th May, 2018.     Membership No. – 309995
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ANNEXURE “B” TO THE INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORT
(Referred to in paragraph 2 under ‘Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements’ secƟon of our report of even date)

i. (a) The Company has maintained proper records showing full parƟculars, including quanƟtaƟve details and situaƟon of fixed 
assets.

 (b)  The Company has a regular programme of physical verificaƟon of its fixed assets by which all fixed assets are verified 
in a phased manner over a period of three years. In accordance with this programme, certain fixed assets were verified 
during the year and no material discrepancies were noƟced on such verificaƟon.  In our opinion, this periodicityof physical 
verificaƟon is reasonable having regard to the size of the Company and the nature of its assets.

 (c)   According to the informaƟon and explanaƟons given to us and the records examined by us including registered Ɵtle deeds, 
we report that, the Ɵtle deeds, comprising all the immovable properƟes of land and buildings which are freehold, are held 
in the name of the Company as at the Balance Sheet date. 

ii. According to the informaƟon and explanaƟons given to us, the inventory has been physically verified during the year by the 
management.  In our opinion, no material discrepancies were noƟced on such physical verificaƟon.

iii. The Company has not granted any loans, secured or unsecured, to companies, firms, LLP or other parƟes covered in the register 
maintained under SecƟon 189 of the Act. Accordingly, paragraph 3(iii) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

iv. In our opinion and according to the informaƟon and explanaƟons given to us, there are no loans, guarantees and securiƟes granted 
in respect of which provisions of SecƟon 185 and 186 of the Companies Act 2013 are applicable.

v. In our opinion and according to the informaƟon and explanaƟons given to us, the Company has not accepted any deposit from 
the public in accordance with the provisions of SecƟons 73 to 76 or any other relevant provisions of the Act and the rules framed 
thereunder. Accordingly, paragraph 3(v) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

vi. We have been informed, that the Central Government has not prescribed the maintenance of cost records under secƟon 148(1) of 
the Act.

vii. According to the informaƟon and explanaƟons given to us in respect of statutory dues:

 (a) The Company has generally been regular in deposiƟng undisputed statutory dues, including Provident Fund, Employees’ 
State Insurance, Income Tax, Sales Tax, Service Tax, Customs Duty, Excise Duty, Value Added Tax, Goods and Service Tax, 
Cess and other statutory dues to the appropriate authoriƟes during the year.There were no undisputed amounts payable in 
respect of Provident Fund, Employees’ State Insurance, Income Tax, Sales Tax, Service Tax, Customs Duty, Excise Duty, Value 
Added Tax, Goods and Service Tax, Cessand other statutory dues in arrears as at 31st March, 2018 for a period of more than 
six months from the date they became payable 

 (b) Details of dues of Income tax, CentralSales Tax, Service Tax, Excise Duty, Entry Tax and Value Added Tax ,Goods and Service 
tax which have not been deposited as on 31st March, 2018 on account of disputes are given below:

Sl 
No.

Nature of Statute Nature of Dues Period to which 
it Pertain

Demand Forum where the Dispute 
Pending

1 West Bengal
Sales Tax Act, 1994

Central Sales Tax 2002-03 95,856.00 Addl.  Commissioner of Sales 
Tax,  Kolkata

2 West Bengal
Sales Tax Act, 1994

West Bengal Sales 
Tax

2003-04 1,04,11,699.00 Special Commissioner of Sales 
Tax, Kolkata

3 West Bengal
Sales Tax Act, 1994

Central Sales Tax 2003-04 14,506.00 Special Commissioner of Sales 
Tax,  Kolkata

4 West Bengal
Sales Tax Act, 1994

West Bengal Sales 
Tax

2004-05 1,30,59,745.00 Appellate Revision Board of 
Sales Tax, Kolkata
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Sl 
No.

Nature of Statute Nature of Dues Period to which 
it Pertain

Demand Forum where the Dispute 
Pending

5 West Bengal
Value added Tax Act, 
2003

VAT 2005-06 6,28,295.00 Appellate Revision Board of 
Sales Tax, Kolkata

6 Income Tax Act Income Tax 2014-15 4,89,910.00 CIT(A)

7 Income Tax Act Income Tax 2015-16 1,55,690.00 CIT(A)

viii. In our opinion and according to the informaƟon and explanaƟons given to us, the Company has not defaulted during the year in 
repayment of loans or borrowings to financial insƟtuƟons, bankers and the government. The Company did not have any outstanding 
debentures during the year.

ix. The Company did not raise any money by way of iniƟal public offer and further public offer (including debt instrument). To the best 
of our knowledge and belief and according to the informaƟon and explanaƟons given to us, term loans availed by the company 
were applied for the purpose for which the loans were obtained.

x. To the best of our knowledge and according to the informaƟon and explanaƟons given to us, no fraud by the Company and no fraud 
on the Company by its officers or employees has been noƟced or reported during the year.

xi. According to the informaƟon and explanaƟons given to us, the company has paid/ provided for managerial remuneraƟons in 
accordance with the requisite approvals mandated by the provisions of Sec 197 read with Schedule V to the Act.  

xii. In our opinion and according to the informaƟon and explanaƟons given to us, the Company is not a Nidhi company. Accordingly, 
paragraph 3 (xii) of the Order is not applicable.

xiii. According to the informaƟon and explanaƟons given to us and based on our examinaƟon of the records of the Company, transacƟons 
with the related parƟes are in compliance with secƟons 177 and 188 of the Act where applicable and details of such transacƟons 
have been disclosed in the Ind AS Financial Statements as required by the applicable Indian AccounƟng Standards.

xiv. According to the informaƟon and explanaƟons given to us and based on our examinaƟon of the records, the company has not made 
any preferenƟal allotment or private placement of shares or fully or partly converƟble debentures during the year.

xv. According to the informaƟon and explanaƟons given to us and based on our examinaƟon of the records of the Company, the 
Company has not entered into non-cash transacƟons with directors or persons connected with them.Accordingly, paragraph 3 (xv) 
of the Order is not applicable.

xvi. According to informaƟon and explanaƟons given to us, the Company is not required to be registered under SecƟon 45 IA of the 
Reserve Bank of India Act, 1934. Accordingly, paragraph 3 (xvi) of the Order is not applicable.

       
For Agrawal Subodh &Co.

Chartered Accountants 
       Firm’s RegistraƟon No – 319260E

       Mohammad Kothawala
Place : Kolkata      Partner
Date  : 30th May, 2018.     Membership No. – 309995
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For and on behalf of the Board of Directors

 Anil Jhunjhunwala K.P. Jhunjhunwala
 Managing Director Director
 DIN - 00128717 DIN - 00108065

 Hilla Eruch Bhathena Ramesh Kumar Chitlangia
 Director Chief Financial Offi  cer
 DIN - 06909249

As per our report of even date aƩ ached

For  Agrawal Subodh & Co.
Chartered Accountants
(Firm Regn. No. 319260E)

Mohammad Kothawala
Partner
(Mem. No. 309995)

Place : Kolkata  
Date  :  30th May, 2018

ParƟculars Notes  As at 
31st March 2018 

 ` 

 As at 
31st March 2017 

 `  

 As at 
1st April 2016

 `  
ASSETS 
Non-current assets 
 Property, plant and equipment 4            7,21,15,231 4,39,46,316  4,45,16,021 
 Capital work-in-progress 5                         –   47,61,51,039 39,20,23,794 
 Investment Property 6          40,67,34,373 –    –   
 Financial assets 7
 - Investment in Shares & SecuriƟes 7.1            2,77,63,547 92,78,618  83,40,956 
 - Deposit with Banks 7.2              25,29,372 54,05,000 1,00,000 
 - Other non-current financial assets 7.3              73,07,326 91,08,124  42,48,132 
 Deferred tax Assets (Net) 8            1,70,31,023 1,79,12,710   1,84,44,836 
 Other non-current assets 9              45,15,595 45,15,595    45,15,595 

         53,79,96,467 56,63,17,402   47,21,89,334 
Current assets 
Inventories 10          25,06,56,937          29,77,92,918      26,95,38,348 
Financial assets 11
 - Trade receivables 11.1            2,65,14,845          12,23,85,799      11,31,96,500 
 - Cash and cash equivalents 11.2              72,61,336              42,70,696        1,12,86,518 
 - Other Current Financial Assets 11.3              73,40,582            3,51,86,294        3,69,40,629 
Current Tax Assets (Net) 12              52,90,879              32,95,730          27,78,923 
Other current assets 13            4,96,85,457            1,74,89,713          98,92,846 

         34,67,50,036          48,04,21,150      44,36,33,764 
Total Assets       88,47,46,503    1,04,67,38,552   91,58,23,098 

EQUITY AND LIABILITIES 
Equity
Equity Share capital     14            1,10,00,000            1,10,00,000        1,10,00,000 
Other Equity 15          16,61,56,475          14,98,98,134      15,80,15,599 

         17,71,56,475          16,08,98,134      16,90,15,599 
LIABILITIES
Non-current liabiliƟes 
Financial liabiliƟes
 - Borrowings 16                         –            18,32,06,641      21,65,87,779 
 - Others 17              50,71,617              64,35,133          65,46,905 

             50,71,617          18,96,41,774      22,31,34,684 
Current liabiliƟes 
Financial liabiliƟes 18
 - Borrowings 18.1          61,57,90,898          50,37,19,055      33,74,05,739 
 - Trade payables 18.2            4,25,26,932            6,37,56,721        5,46,47,141 
 - Other financial liabiliƟes 18.3            3,44,29,987            4,98,72,342        6,31,95,744 
Other current liabiliƟes 19              97,70,594            7,88,50,526        6,84,24,190 

         70,25,18,411          69,61,98,644      52,36,72,814 
Total Equity and LiabiliƟes       88,47,46,503    1,04,67,38,552   91,58,23,098 

Corporate InformaƟon & Significant AccounƟng Policies 1 & 2
First Time adopƟon of Ind AS 3
Accompanying notes to the financial statements 4 to 35

BALANCE SHEET AS AT 31ST MARCH, 2018
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For and on behalf of the Board of Directors

 Anil Jhunjhunwala K.P. Jhunjhunwala
 Managing Director Director
 DIN - 00128717 DIN - 00108065

 Hilla Eruch Bhathena Ramesh Kumar Chitlangia
 Director Chief Financial Offi  cer
 DIN - 06909249

As per our report of even date aƩ ached

For  Agrawal Subodh & Co.
Chartered Accountants
(Firm Regn. No. 319260E)

Mohammad Kothawala
Partner
(Mem. No. 309995)

Place : Kolkata  
Date  :  30th May, 2018

ParƟculars Notes 2017-18
` 

2016-17
` 

Income
Revenue from OperaƟons 20  1,03,77,30,988     1,49,59,67,791 
Other Income 21       7,86,28,843             86,08,846 
Total Revenue  1,11,63,59,831     1,50,45,76,637 
Expenses
Purchase of traded goods 22.1     98,87,49,148     1,37,76,70,472 
Changes in Inventories 22.2      (4,90,15,368)         (2,82,54,570)
Employee Benefits Expense 22.3       5,27,37,896          5,13,52,950 
Finance Costs 22.4       5,46,57,179          3,66,48,476 
DepreciaƟon & AmorƟzaƟon Expenses 22.5       1,29,24,826             18,46,572 
Other Expenses 22.6       5,57,11,753          7,01,06,086 
Total Expenses  1,11,57,65,434     1,50,93,69,986 

Profit before excepƟonal items and tax            5,94,397            (47,93,349)
ExcepƟonal items       3,10,00,000                          -   
Profit before tax       3,15,94,397            (47,93,349)

Tax Expense: 8
    Current Tax          59,51,583             31,00,000 
    Deferred Tax            8,81,687               5,32,126 

          68,33,270             36,32,126 

Profit/(Loss) for the year from conƟnuing operaƟons       2,47,61,127            (84,25,475)
Profit/(Loss) from DisconƟnued operaƟons      (1,06,38,746)                          -   
Profit/(Loss) for the year       1,41,22,381            (84,25,475)
Other comprehensive income
A) Items that will not be reclassified to profit or loss
  - Changes in fair value of Equity Instruments          19,53,043             10,04,434 
  - Remeasurement of net defined benefit liabiliƟes           (1,77,185)              (6,96,425)
  - Tax Expense relaƟng to above items
Other comprehensive income/(loss) for the year          17,75,858               3,08,009 

Total comprehensive income/(loss) for the year       1,58,98,239            (81,17,466)
 (Profit + other comprehensive income)
Earnings per equity share (conƟnued operaƟons) Basic & Diluted 24                 22.51                     (7.66)
Earnings per equity share (for disconƟnued operaƟons) Basic & Diluted                  (9.67)                          -   
Earnings per equity share (for disconƟnued & conƟnuing operaƟons) Basic & 
Diluted

                12.84                     (7.66)

Corporate InformaƟon & Significant AccounƟng Policies 1 & 2
First Time adopƟon of Ind AS 3

Accompanying notes to the financial statements 4 to 35

STATEMENT OF PROFIT AND LOSS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31ST MARCH, 2018
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 2017–2018 
`

 2016–2017  
`

CASH FLOW FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES :

Profit before tax from

  ConƟnuing OperaƟons       3,15,94,397            (47,93,349)

  DisconƟnued OperaƟons      (1,06,38,746)                        –   

Profit before income tax including DisconƟnued OperaƟons    2,09,55,651          (47,93,349)

Adjusted for :

DepreciaƟon and amorƟsaƟon expense       1,29,24,826             18,46,572 

Dividend Income            (32,600)                (33,975)

Finance Cost       5,46,57,179           3,66,48,476 

Interest Income        (10,58,152)              (5,83,102)

LiabiliƟes no longer required wriƩen back        (38,40,802)            (61,22,701)

Extra Ordinary items      (3,10,00,000)                        –   

Loss/(Profit)  on sale of Property, Plant and Equipment      (7,01,69,040)                (66,261)

OPERATING PROFIT BEFORE WORKING CAPITAL CHANGES      (1,75,62,938)           2,68,95,661 

Adjusted for :

Increase/(decrease) in trade payables      (2,12,29,789)             91,09,580 

Increase/(decrease) in other current & long term liabiliƟes      (8,45,22,287)            (28,97,066)

Increase/(decrease) in inventories       4,71,35,981         (2,82,54,570)

Increase/(decrease) in trade receivables       9,58,70,954            (91,89,299)

Increase/(decrease) in long term and short term loans and advances and other current assets        (66,39,924)            (54,35,223)

CASH GENERATED FROM OPERATIONS       1,30,51,997            (97,70,917)

Direct Taxes paid / adjusted        (79,46,732)            (36,16,807)

Cash flow before extra ordinary items          51,05,265         (1,33,87,724)

Extra Ordinary items       3,10,00,000                        –   

Net cash from OperaƟng acƟviƟes (A)       3,61,05,265         (1,33,87,724)

CASH FLOW FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES :

AddiƟons to Property, Plant and Equipment      (7,52,24,896)            (13,29,563)

AddiƟons to Capital Work in Progress      (6,67,63,429)         (8,39,01,499)

Sale of Property, Plant and Equipment     34,60,62,813               1,18,957 

Interest Received          10,58,152               5,83,102 

Dividend Received              32,600                  33,975 

Net Cash from invesƟng acƟviƟes (B)     20,51,65,240         (8,44,95,028)

CASH FLOW STATEMENT FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31ST MARCH, 2018
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CASH FLOW STATEMENT FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31ST MARCH, 2018

 2017–2018 
`

 2016–2017  
`

CASH FLOW FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES :

Proceeds/(repayment) of  Borrowings–      (7,24,98,314)         13,28,20,406 

Finance Cost paid      (5,46,57,179)         (3,66,48,476)

Preference Share RedempƟon    (11,40,00,000)                        –   

Net Cash from Financing acƟviƟes (C)    (24,11,55,493)           9,61,71,930 

NET INCREASE IN CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS (A+ B+ C)           1,15,012            (17,10,822)

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AT THE BEGINNING OF THE YEAR          96,75,696           1,13,86,518 

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AT THE END OF THE YEAR          97,90,708             96,75,696 

  01.  Proceeds from long term and other borrowings are shown net of repayment.

  02.  Cash and Cash equivalents represent 

         Balances with Banks :

             '– In Current Accounts

             '– In Unpaid Dividend Account

             '– In Fixed Deposit Account 

         Cash–in–hand

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors

 Anil Jhunjhunwala K.P. Jhunjhunwala
 Managing Director Director
 DIN - 00128717 DIN - 00108065

 Hilla Eruch Bhathena Ramesh Kumar Chitlangia
 Director Chief Financial Offi  cer
 DIN - 06909249

As per our report of even date aƩ ached

For  Agrawal Subodh & Co.
Chartered Accountants
(Firm Regn. No. 319260E)

Mohammad Kothawala
Partner
(Mem. No. 309995)

Place : Kolkata  
Date  :  30th May, 2018
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NOTES FORMING PART OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR YEAR ENDED 31ST MARCH, 2018
SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

1. CORPORATE INFORMATION

 J.J. AutomoƟve Limited (“the Company”) is a public limited company domiciled and incorporated in India and its 
shares are listed with the CalcuƩa Stock Exchange (“CSE”), India. The registered office of the company is situated at 
25B, Park Street, Kolkata – 700016.

 The company is carrying on the business of i) Automobile Dealership for sale and service of Hyundai vehicles and ii) 
DistribuƟon and sale of automobile parts and components through retail stores at different places in Eastern India. 
During the financial year 2017-18, the company sold the business as referred to in point (ii) by way of slump sale (Refer 
Note 31).

 The financial statements were authorised for issue in accordance with a resoluƟon passed by the Board of Directors 
on 30th May, 2018.

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

2.1  Basis of preparaƟon

 The financial statements (Separate financial statements) have been prepared on accrual basis in accordance with 
Indian AccounƟng Standards (Ind AS) noƟfied under the Companies (Indian AccounƟng Standards) Rules, 2015 and 
the provisions of the Companies Act, 2013.

 For all periods up to and including the year ended 31st March 2017, the Company prepared its financial statements 
in accordance with accounƟng standards noƟfied under secƟon 133 of the Companies Act 2013, read together with 
paragraph 7 of the Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014 (previous GAAP). These financial statements for the year ended 
31st March 2018 are the first the Company has prepared in accordance with Ind AS. Refer to note 3 for an explanaƟon 
of how the transiƟon from previous GAAP to Ind AS has effected presentaƟon of company’s financial posiƟon, financial 
performance and cash flows.

 The financial statements have been prepared on a historical cost basis, except for certain financial assets and liabiliƟes 
which have been measured at fair value (refer accounƟng policy regarding financial instruments).

 The financial statements are presented in Indian Rupees (“INR” or “`”) and all amounts are rounded to the nearest 
lacs, except as stated otherwise.

2.2  EsƟmates and Judgements

 The preparaƟon of the financial statements in conformity with Ind AS requires management to make esƟmates, 
judgments and assumpƟons. These esƟmates, judgments and assumpƟons effect the applicaƟon of accounƟng 
policies and the reported amounts of assets and liabiliƟes, the disclosures of conƟngent assets and liabiliƟes at the 
date of the financial statements and reported amounts of revenues and expenses during the period. ApplicaƟon of 
accounƟng policies that require criƟcal accounƟng esƟmates involving complex and subjecƟve judgments and the 
use of assumpƟons in these financial statements. AccounƟng esƟmates could change from period to period. Actual 
results may differ from those esƟmates. Appropriate changes in esƟmates are made as management becomes aware 
of changes in circumstances surrounding the esƟmates. Changes in esƟmates are reflected in the financial statements 
in the period in which changes are made and, if material, their effects are disclosed in the notes to the financial 
statements.

2.3  Current versus non-current classificaƟon

 The Company presents assets and liabiliƟes in the balance sheet based on current/non-current classificaƟon. 

 An asset is treated as current when it is:

  Expected to be realised or intended to be sold or consumed in normal operaƟng cycle

  Held primarily for the purpose of trading

  Expected to be realised within twelve months aŌer the reporƟng period, or

  Cash or cash equivalent unless restricted from being exchanged or used to seƩle a liability for at least twelve 
months aŌer the reporƟng period
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NOTES FORMING PART OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR YEAR ENDED 31ST MARCH, 2018 (Contd.)

 All other assets are classified as non-current.

 A liability is current when:

  It is expected to be seƩled in normal operaƟng cycle

  It is held primarily for the purpose of trading

  It is due to be seƩled within twelve months aŌer the reporƟng period, or

  There is no uncondiƟonal right to defer the seƩlement of the liability for at least twelve months aŌer the 
reporƟng period

 All other liabiliƟes are classified as non-current.

 Deferred tax assets and liabiliƟes are classified as non-current assets and liabiliƟes.

2.4  Property, Plant and Equipment

 Freehold land and capital work-in-progress are carried at cost. All other items of property, plant and equipment are 
stated at cost less accumulated depreciaƟon and accumulated impairment loss, if any. 

 The cost of an item of property, plant and equipment comprises of its purchase price, any costs directly aƩributable 
to its acquisiƟon and an iniƟal esƟmate of the costs of dismantling and removing the item and restoring the site on 
which it is located, the obligaƟon for which the company incurs when the item is acquired. Subsequent costs are 
included in the asset’s carrying amount or recognised as a separate asset, as appropriate, only when it is probable that 
future economic benefits associated with the item will flow to the company and the cost of the item can be measured 
reliably. All other repairs and maintenance are charged to profit or loss during the reporƟng period in which they are 
incurred.

 On transiƟon to Ind-AS, the company has elected to conƟnue with the carrying value of all its property, plant and 
equipment recognised as at 1st April 2016 measured as per the previous GAAP and use that carrying value as the 
deemed cost of the property, plant and equipment.

 DepreciaƟon on property, plant and equipment is calculated using the wriƩen down value basis to allocate their 
cost, net of their residual values, over their esƟmated useful lives. The useful lives esƟmated for the major classes of 
property, plant and equipment are as follows :

Class of property, plant and equipment Useful life (in years)

Buildings 60

Plant & Machineries 5-15

Furniture & Fixtures 10

Vehicles 8

Electrical InstallaƟons 10

Office Equipments 5

Data Processing Machines 3

 The useful lives have been determined based on technical evaluaƟon done by the management’s experts, which in 
some cases may differ from the lives as specified by Schedule II to the Companies Act, 2013. The residual values are 
not more than 5% of the original cost of acquisiƟon of the asset including the assets as on the date of transiƟon. The 
asset’ residual values and useful lives are reviewed, and adjusted if appropriate, at the end of each reporƟng period. 

 An item of property, plant and equipment and any significant part iniƟally recognised is derecognised upon disposal 
or when no future economic benefits are expected from its use or disposal. Any gain or loss arising on de-recogniƟon 
of the asset is included in the statement of profit and loss when the asset is derecognised.
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2.5  Investment Property

 Investment properƟes are measured iniƟally at cost, including transacƟon costs and borrowing costs, wherever 
applicable. Subsequent to iniƟal recogniƟon, investment properƟes are stated at cost less accumulated depreciaƟon 
and accumulated impairment loss, if any. Subsequent expenditure is capitalised to the asset’s carrying amount only 
when it is probable that future economic benefits associated with the expenditure will flow to the company and the cost 
of the item can be measured reliably. All other repairs and maintenance costs are expensed when incurred.  

 The building component of the investment properƟes are depreciated using the straight-line method over 60 years 
from the date of original purchase, being their useful life as esƟmated by the management. The esƟmated useful life 
of the building is same as that prescribed in Schedule II to the Companies Act, 2013.

 The company discloses the fair value of investment properƟes as at the end of the year, which is determined by 
registered accredited independent valuers.

 Investment properƟes are derecognised upon disposal or when no future economic benefits are expected from its use 
or disposal. Any gain or loss arising on de-recogniƟon of investment properƟes are included in profit and loss in the 
period of de-recogniƟon. 

2.6  DisconƟnued OperaƟons 

 A disconƟnued operaƟon is a component of an enƟty that has either been disposed of or that is classified as held 
for sale, which represents a separate major line of business or geographical area of operaƟons and is part of a single 
coordinated plan to dispose of a separate line of business or geographical area of operaƟons. In accordance with the 
rules regarding the presentaƟon of disconƟnued operaƟons, the assets, liabiliƟes and acƟvity of Auto component 
division business have been reclassified as a disconƟnued operaƟon for the period upto 7th November 2017.

2.7  Inventories

 Automobile Segment

 Traded Goods are valued at lower of cost and net realizable value. Cost is determined on FIFO basis. The cost of 
inventories includes freight and other costs incurred in bringing the inventories to their present locaƟon and condiƟon.

 Net realizable value is the esƟmated selling price in the ordinary course of business, less esƟmated costs of compleƟon 
and the esƟmated costs necessary to make the sale.

2.8  Cash and Cash Equivalent

 Cash and cash equivalent in the balance sheet comprise cash at banks and on hand and short-term deposits maturing 
within twelve months from the date of balance Sheet, which are subject to an insignificant risk of changes in value. 
Bank overdraŌs are shown under borrowings in the balance sheet.

2.9  Financial Instruments

 A.  Financial Instruments - IniƟal recogniƟon and measurement

  Financial assets and financial liabiliƟes are recognised in the company’s statement of financial posiƟon when 
the company becomes a party to the contractual provisions of the instrument. The company determines the 
classificaƟon of its financial assets and liabiliƟes at iniƟal recogniƟon. All financial assets are recognised iniƟally 
at fair value plus, in the case of financial assets not recorded at fair value through profit or loss, transacƟon costs 
that are aƩributable to the acquisiƟon of the financial asset.

 B.1.  Financial assets –Subsequent measurement 

  The Subsequent measurement of financial assets depends on their classificaƟon which is as follows:

  a. Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss

            Financial assets at fair value through profit and loss include financial assets held for sale in the near term 
and those designated upon iniƟal recogniƟon at fair value through profit or loss.
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  b. Financial assets measured at amorƟsed cost

   Loans and receivables are non derivaƟve financial assets with fixed or determinable payments that are 
not quoted in an acƟve market. Trade receivables do not carry any interest and are stated at their nominal 
value as reduced by appropriate allowance for esƟmated irrecoverable amounts based on the ageing of 
the receivables balance and historical experience. AddiƟonally, a large number of minor receivables are 
grouped into homogenous groups and assessed for impairment collecƟvely. Individual trade receivables 
are wriƩen off when management deems them not to be collecƟble.

  c. Financial assets at fair value through OCI

   All equity investments, except investments in subsidiaries, joint ventures and associates, falling within the 
scope of Ind AS 109, are measured at fair value through Other Comprehensive Income (OCI). The company 
makes an irrevocable elecƟon on an instrument by instrument basis to present in other comprehensive 
income subsequent changes in the fair value. The classificaƟon is made on iniƟal recogniƟon and is 
irrevocable.

   If the company decides to designate an equity instrument at fair value through OCI, then all fair value 
changes on the instrument, excluding dividends, are recognized in the OCI. 

 B.2.  Financial assets –DerecogniƟon

  The company derecognises a financial asset when the contractual rights to the cash flows from the assets expire 
or it transfers the financial asset and substanƟally all the risks and rewards of ownership of the asset.

  Upon derecogniƟon of equity instruments designated at fair value through OCI, the associated fair value 
changes of that equity instrument is transferred from OCI to Retained Earnings. 

 C.1.  Financial liabiliƟes –Subsequent measurement 

  The Subsequent measurement of financial liabiliƟes depends on their classificaƟon which is as follows:

  a. Financial liabiliƟes at fair value through profit or loss

        Financial liabiliƟes at fair value through profit or loss include financial liabiliƟes held for trading, if any.

  b. Financial liabiliƟes measured at amorƟsed cost

          Interest bearing loans and borrowings are subsequently measured at amorƟsed cost using the effecƟve 
interest rate method (EIR). AmorƟsed cost is calculated by taking into account any discount or premium 
on acquisiƟon and fee or costs that are integral part of the EIR. The EIR amorƟsed is included in finance 
costs in the statement of profit and loss.

 C.2.  Financial liabiliƟes –DerecogniƟon

  A financial liability is derecognised when the obligaƟon under the liability is discharged or expires. 

 D.  Offseƫng financial instruments

  Financial assets and financial liabiliƟes are offset and the net amount reported in the statement of financial 
posiƟon, if and only if, there is a currently enforceable legal right to offset the recognised amounts and there is 
an intenƟon to seƩle on a net basis, or to realise the assets and seƩle the liabiliƟes simultaneously.

 E.  Fair value measurement 

  The company measures certain financial instruments at fair value at each reporƟng date. Fair value is the 
price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly transacƟon between 
market parƟcipants at the measurement date. The fair value measurement is based on presumpƟon that the 
transacƟon to sell the asset or transfer the liability takes place either:

   In the principal market for the assets or liability or 

   In the absence of a principal market, in the most advantageous market for the asset or liability.
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  The principal or the most advantageous market must be accessible to the company.

  The company uses valuaƟon technique that are appropriate in the circumstances and for which sufficient data 
are available to measure fair value, maximising the use of relevant observable inputs and minimising the use of 
unobservable inputs. 

2.10  Revenue RecogniƟon

 Revenue is recognised to the extent that it is probable that the economic benefits will flow to the Company and the 
revenue can be reliably measured, regardless of when the payment is received. Revenue is measured at the fair value 
of the consideraƟon received or receivable, taking into account contractually defined terms of payment and excluding 
taxes, duƟes or other charges collected on behalf of the government/authoriƟes.

 The specific recogniƟon criteria for the various types of the company’s acƟviƟes are described below:

 Sale of Goods & Real Estate Units

 Revenue from sale of goods & real estate units are recognised when the significant risks and rewards of ownership 
have been transferred to the buyer, recovery of the consideraƟon is probable, the associated cost can be esƟmated 
reliably, there is no conƟnuing effecƟve control or managerial involvement with the goods and the amount of revenue 
can be measured reliably.

 Sale of Services

 Revenue from sale of services is recognised as per the terms of the contract with buyer based on stage of compleƟon 
when the outcome of the transacƟons involving rendering of services can be esƟmated reliably. Percentage of 
compleƟon method requires the Company to esƟmate the services performed to date as a proporƟon of the total 
services to be performed.

 Other OperaƟng Income

 Commission/Discount related to operaƟons is recognised in the statement of profit & loss on accrual basis subject to 
certainty of realisaƟon.

 Interest income

 Interest income from debt instruments (including Fixed Deposits) is recognised using the effecƟve interest rate 
method. The effecƟve interest rate is that rate that exactly discounts esƟmated future cash receipts through the 
expected life of the financial asset to the gross carrying amount of a financial asset. While calculaƟng the effecƟve 
interest rate, the company esƟmates the expected cash flows by considering all the contractual terms of the financial 
instrument (for example, prepayment, extension, call and similar opƟons) but does not consider the expected credit 
losses.

 Dividends

 Revenue is recognised when the Company’s right to receive the payment is established.

  Other Income

 Other Income is accounted for on accrual basis except, where the receipt of income is uncertain.

2.11  Employee benefits

 Short Term employee benefits

 LiabiliƟes for wages, salaries and other employee benefits that are expected to be seƩled within twelve months of 
rendering the service by the employees are classified as short term employee benefits. Such short term employee 
benefits are measured at the amounts expected to be paid when the liabiliƟes are seƩled.

 Post employment benefits

 (a) Defined contribuƟon plans

  The company pays provident fund contribuƟon to publicly administered provident funds as per the local 
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regulaƟons. The contribuƟons are accounted for as defined contribuƟon plans and are recognised as employee 
benefit expense when they are due.

 (b) Defined benefit plans

  The liabiliƟes recognised in the balance sheet in respect of defined benefit plan, namely gratuity, are the present 
value of the defined benefit obligaƟon at the end of the year less the fair value of plan assets, if any. The defined 
benefit obligaƟon is calculated by actuaries using the projected unit credit method.

  The present value of the defined benefit obligaƟon is determined by discounƟng the esƟmated future cash 
ouƞlows by reference to market yields at the end of the reporƟng period on government bonds that have terms 
approximaƟng to the terms of the related obligaƟon.

  The net interest cost is calculated by applying the discount rate to the net balance of the defined benefit 
obligaƟon and fair value of plan assets. This cost is included in employee benefit expense in the statement of 
profit and loss.

  Remeasurement gains and losses arising from experience adjustments and changes in actuarial assumpƟons are 
recognised in the period in which they occur, directly in other comprehensive income. They are included in the 
retained earnings in the statement of changes in equity and in the balance sheet.

2.12  Leases

 A lease is classified at the incepƟon date as a finance lease or an operaƟng lease. 

 A lease that transfers substanƟally all the risks and rewards incidental to ownership to the company is classified as 
a finance lease. Finance leases are capitalised at the commencement of the lease at the incepƟon date at the fair 
value of the leased property or, if lower, at the present value of the minimum lease payments. Lease payments are 
apporƟoned between finance charges and reducƟon of the lease liability so as to achieve a constant rate of interest 
on the remaining balance of the liability. Finance charges are recognised in finance costs in the statement of profit and 
loss.

 A leased asset is depreciated over the useful life of the asset. However, if there is no reasonable certainty that the 
company will obtain ownership by the end of the lease term, the asset is depreciated over the shorter of the esƟmated 
useful life of the asset and the lease term.

 Leases in which a significant porƟon of the risks and rewards of ownership are not transferred to the company are 
classified as operaƟng lease. OperaƟng lease payments are recognised as an expense in the statement of profit and 
loss on a straight-line basis over the lease term, unless the payments are structured to increase in line with expected 
general inflaƟon.

2.13  Finance Costs

 Borrowing costs that are aƩributable to the acquisiƟon or construcƟon of qualifying assets are capitalized as a part 
of the cost of such assets. A qualifying asset is one that necessarily takes substanƟal period of Ɵme to get ready for 
intended use. All other borrowing costs are charged to revenue.

2.14  Taxes

 Current Tax

 The current tax expense for the period is determined as the amount of tax payable in respect of taxable income for the 
period, based on the applicable income tax rates. 

 Current tax relaƟng to items recognised in other comprehensive income or equity is recognised in other comprehensive 
income or equity, respecƟvely.

 Deferred Tax

 Deferred tax is provided using the liability method on temporary differences between the tax bases of assets and 
liabiliƟes and their carrying amounts for financial reporƟng purposes at the reporƟng date.
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 Deferred tax liabiliƟes are recognised for all taxable temporary differences. Deferred tax assets are recognised for all 
deducƟble temporary differences and, the carry forward of unused tax credits and any unused tax losses. Deferred tax 
assets are recognised to the extent that it is probable that taxable profit will be available against which the deducƟble 
temporary differences, the carry forward of unused tax credits and unused tax losses can be uƟlised.

 Deferred tax assets and liabiliƟes are measured at the tax rates that are expected to apply in the year when the asset 
is realised or the liability is seƩled, based on tax rates (and tax laws) that have been enacted at the reporƟng date.

 Deferred tax relaƟng to items recognised in other comprehensive income or equity is recognised in other comprehensive 
income or equity, respecƟvely.

 Deferred tax assets and deferred tax liabiliƟes are offset if a legally enforceable right exists to set off current tax assets 
against current tax liabiliƟes.

2.15  Provisions, ConƟngent LiabiliƟes and ConƟngent Assets

 A provision is recognised when the company has present determined obligaƟons as a result of past events an ouƞlow 
of resources embodying economic benefits will be required to seƩle the obligaƟons. Provisions are recognised at the 
best esƟmate of the expenditure required to seƩle the present obligaƟon at the balance sheet date.

 If the effect of the Ɵme value of money is material, provisions are discounted using a current pre tax rate that reflects, 
where appropriate, the risks specific to the liability. Where discounƟng is used, the increase in the provision due to the 
passage of Ɵme is recognised as a finance cost.

 A ConƟngent liability is not recognised but disclosed in the notes to the accounts, unless the probability of an ouƞlow 
of resources is remote.

 A conƟngent asset is generally neither recognised nor disclosed.

2.16  Earnings per share

 The Basic earnings per share (EPS) is calculated by dividing the net profit or loss for the year aƩributable to the equity 
shareholders by the weighted average number of equity shares outstanding during the year.

 For the purpose of calculaƟng Diluted earnings per share, the net profit or loss for the year aƩributable to the equity 
shareholders and the weighted average number of equity shares outstanding during the year are adjusted for the 
effects of all diluƟve potenƟal equity shares.

2.17  Dividends

 Provision is made for the amount of any dividend declared, being appropriately authorised and no longer at the 
discreƟon of the company, on or before the end of the reporƟng period but not distributed at the end of the reporƟng 
period.

2.18  ExcepƟonal items

 ExcepƟonal items refer to items of income or expense within statement of profit and loss from ordinary acƟviƟes which 
are non-recurring and are of such size, nature or incidence that their separate disclosure is considered necessary to 
explain the performance of the company.

2.19  Impairment of assets

 The company assesses, at each reporƟng date, whether there is an indicaƟon that an asset may be impaired. If any 
indicaƟon exists, or when annual impairment tesƟng for an asset is required, the company esƟmates the asset’s 
recoverable amount. An asset’s recoverable amount is the higher of an asset’s or cash-generaƟng unit’s (CGU) fair 
value less costs of disposal and its value in use. Recoverable amount is determined for an individual asset, unless the 
asset does not generate cash inflows that are largely independent of those from other assets or groups of assets. 
When the carrying amount of an asset or CGU exceeds its recoverable amount, the asset is considered impaired and 
is wriƩen down to its recoverable amount.

 In assessing value in use, the esƟmated future cash flows are discounted to their present value using a pre-tax 
discount rate that reflects current market assessments of the Ɵme value of money and the risks specific to the asset. In 
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determining fair value less costs of disposal, recent market transacƟons are taken into account. If no such transacƟons 
can be idenƟfied, an appropriate valuaƟon model is used.

 Impairment losses of conƟnuing operaƟons, including impairment on inventories, are recognised in the statement of 
profit and loss.

2.20  CriƟcal accounƟng esƟmates 

 Property, plant and equipment 

 Property, plant and equipment represent a significant proporƟon of the asset base of the Company. The charge in 
respect of periodic depreciaƟon is derived aŌer determining an esƟmate of an asset’s expected useful life and the 
expected residual value at the end of its life. The useful lives and residual values of company's assets are determined 
by management at the Ɵme the asset is acquired and reviewed periodically, including at each financial year end. The 
lives are based on historical experience with similar assets as well as anƟcipaƟon of future events, which may impact 
their life, such as changes in technology. 

 Recoverability of Trade Receivable and provision for the same

 Judgements are required in assessing the recoverability of overdue trade receivables and determining whether a 
provision against those receivables is required. Factors considered include the credit raƟng of the counterparty, the 
amount and Ɵming of anƟcipated future payments and any possible acƟons that can be taken to miƟgate the risk of 
non-payment. The provision for debtors is done for those debtors which are outstanding for more than three years. 
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3  FIRST TIME ADOPTION OF Ind AS

 These separate financial statements of J.J. AutomoƟve Limited for the year ended March, 31, 2018 have been prepared 
in accordance with Ind AS. For the purposes of transiƟon to Ind AS, the Company has followed the guidance prescribed 
in Ind AS 101 - First Time adopƟon of Indian AccounƟng Standard, with 1st April, 2016 as the transiƟon date and Indian 
GAAP as the previous GAAP.

 The transiƟon to Ind AS has resulted in changes in the presentaƟon of the financial statements, disclosures in the 
notes there to and accounƟng policies and principles. The accounƟng policies set out in Note 2 have been applied in 
preparing the separate financial statements for the year ended 31st March, 2018 and the comparaƟve informaƟon. An 
explanaƟon of how the transiƟon from previous GAAP to Ind AS has effected the Company’s Balance Sheet, Statement 
of Profit and Loss is explained in Note 3.2. ExempƟons on first Ɵme adopƟon of Ind AS availed in accordance with Ind 
AS 101 have been set out in Note 3.1.        

3.1 ExempƟons availed on first Ɵme adopƟon 

 Ind-AS 101 allows first-Ɵme adopters certain exempƟons from the retrospecƟve applicaƟon of certain requirements 
under Ind AS. The Company has accordingly applied the following exempƟons.

 (a) EsƟmates        

  Ind AS 101 provides that an enƟty's esƟmates as per Ind AS 8 "AccounƟng Policies, Changes in Accounitng 
EsƟmates and Errors" at the date of transiƟon shall be consistent with the esƟmates made for same date in 
accordance with previous GAAP, unless there is objecƟve evidence that those esƟmates were in error.

  Accordingly, the company has made Ind AS esƟmates as at the transiƟon date i.e. 1st April 2016 which are 
consistent with esƟmates made by it under the previous GAAP for the same date. The company made esƟmates 
for following items in accordance with Ind AS at the date of transiƟon since these were not required under 
previous GAAP : 

  i) Redeemable Preference Shares designated as 'Borrowings' at Fair Value.

  ii) Investment in equity instruments designated at Fair Value through OCI.

 (b) Deemed Cost        

  Ind AS 101 provides an opƟon under Ind AS 16 "Property, Plant and Equipment", to conƟnue with the carrying 
value of all its property, plant and equipment as recognised in financial statements as on transiƟon date, 
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measured as per the previous GAAP and use that as its deemed cost aŌer making necessary adjustments for 
de-commissioning liabilites instead of measuring at fair value on the transiƟon date.

  The company has elected to measure all of its property, plant and equipments as on the transiƟon date at their 
previous GAAP carrying value. 

3.2 ReconciliaƟons between previous GAAP and Ind AS

 The following reconciliaƟons provide the effect of transiƟon to Ind AS from previous GAAP in accordance with Ind AS 
101 :

 a)  Equity as at 1st April, 2016 and as at 31st March, 2017

 b)  Total comprehensive income for the year ended 31st March, 2017.   

a) ReconcilaƟon of Equity as at 1st April, 2016 and as at 31st March, 2017. 

ParƟculars As at 1st April, 2016 As at 31st March, 2017

ASSETS Previous GAAP Adjustments Ind AS Previous GAAP Adjustments Ind AS
Non–current assets 
 Property, plant and equipment 4,45,16,021 4,45,16,021 4,39,46,316 4,39,46,316 
 Capital work–in–progress 39,25,25,515 –5,01,721 39,20,23,794 47,64,27,014 –2,75,975 47,61,51,039 
 Investment Property –   –   –    –   
 Financial assets
 – Investment in Shares & SecuriƟes 23,90,223 59,50,733 83,40,956 24,88,625 67,89,993 92,78,618 
 – Deposit with Banks 1,00,000 1,00,000 54,05,000       –   54,05,000 
 – Other non–current financial assets 42,48,132     –   42,48,132 91,08,124        –   91,08,124 
 Deferred tax Assets (Net) 46,18,178 1,38,26,658 1,84,44,836 40,10,391 1,39,02,319 1,79,12,710 
 Other non–current assets 45,15,595     –   45,15,595  45,15,595     –   45,15,595 
Current assets       –     –   
Inventories 26,95,38,348   –   26,95,38,348 29,77,92,918        –   29,77,92,918 
Financial assets –   –   
 – Trade receivables 11,31,96,500 11,31,96,500 12,23,85,799      –   12,23,85,799 
 – Cash and cash equivalents 1,12,86,518   –   1,12,86,518 42,70,696 –   42,70,696 
 – Other Current Financial Assets 3,69,40,629   –   3,69,40,629 3,51,86,294  –   3,51,86,294 
Current Tax Assets (Net) 27,78,923   –   27,78,923 32,95,730      –   32,95,730 
Other current assets 98,92,846    –   98,92,846 1,74,89,714 –1 1,74,89,713 
Total Assets 89,65,47,428 1,92,75,670 91,58,23,098 1,02,63,22,216 2,04,16,336 1,04,67,38,552 

EQUITY AND LIABILITIES 
Equity
Equity Share capital     1,10,00,000   –   1,10,00,000 9,60,00,000 –8,50,00,000 1,10,00,000 
Other Equity 16,00,19,043 –20,03,444 15,80,15,599 15,66,59,360 –67,61,226 14,98,98,134 
LIABILITIES   –        –   
Non–current liabiliƟes   –      –   
Financial liabiliƟes     –     –   
 – Borrowings 20,04,47,055 1,61,40,724 21,65,87,779 7,61,00,696 10,71,05,945 18,32,06,641 
 – Others 14,08,516 51,38,389 65,46,905 13,63,516 50,71,617 64,35,133 
Current liabiliƟes                            –           –   
Financial liabiliƟes                            –   –   
 – Borrowings 33,74,05,739                            –   33,74,05,739 50,37,19,055                            –   50,37,19,055 
 – Trade payables 5,46,47,141                            –   5,46,47,141 6,37,56,721                            –   6,37,56,721 
 – Other financial liabiliƟes 6,31,95,744                            –   6,31,95,744 4,98,72,342 4,98,72,342 
Other current liabiliƟes 6,84,24,190                            –   6,84,24,190 12,87,22,868 –4,98,72,342 7,88,50,526 
Total Equity and LiabiliƟes 89,65,47,428         1,92,75,670 91,58,23,098 1,02,63,22,216        2,04,16,336 1,04,67,38,552 
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b) ReconciliaƟaƟon of Total comprehensive Income for the year ended 31st March, 2017

 ParƟculars  Previous GAAP  Adjustment  Ind AS 
 Income 

I.  Revenue from operaƟons 1,49,59,67,791.00  –    1,49,59,67,791.00 
II.  Other Income  85,10,444.00   98,402.00     86,08,846.00 
III.  Total Income (I + II)   1,50,44,78,235.00   98,402.00    1,50,45,76,637.00 
IV.  Expenses 

 Purchases of traded goods       1,37,76,70,472.00      –   1,37,76,70,472.00 
 Changes in inventories of stock in trade –2,82,54,570.00       –   –2,82,54,570.00 
 Employee benefits expense   6,10,06,053.00 –96,53,103.00   5,13,52,950.00 
 Finance costs   3,09,09,001.00    57,39,475.30 3,66,48,476.30 
 DepreciaƟon and amorƟzaƟon expense     18,46,572.00    –         18,46,572.00 
 Other expenses     6,09,52,603.44    91,53,482.06     7,01,06,085.50 
 Total Expenses   1,50,41,30,131.44   52,39,854.36   1,50,93,69,985.80 

V.  Profit/(loss) before excepƟonal Items and tax (III - IV)    3,48,103.56 –51,41,452.36 –47,93,348.80 
VI.  ExcepƟonal Items 
VII.  Profit/ (loss) before tax (V - VI)   3,48,103.56 –51,41,452.36 –47,93,348.80 
VIII.  Tax Expenses 

 (a) Current Tax  31,00,000.00 –       31,00,000.00 
 (b) Deferred Tax    6,07,787.00 –75,661.28      5,32,125.72 

IX  Profit (Loss) for the period from conƟnuing operaƟons (VII-VIII)  –33,59,683.44 –50,65,791.07 –84,25,474.51 
X  Profit/(loss) from disconƟnued operaƟons 
XI  Tax expense of disconƟnued operaƟons 
XII  Profit/(loss) from DisconƟnued operaƟons (aŌer tax) (X-XI) 
XIII  Profit/(loss) for the period (IX+XII)   –33,59,683.44  –50,65,791.07 –84,25,474.51 
XIV  Other comprehensive income 

 A (i) Items that will not be reclassified to profit or loss  
 Investment in Equity Instruments through other comprehensive income  10,04,434.00  10,04,434.00 
 Acturial Gain –6,96,425.00   –6,96,425.00 

XV  Total Comprehensive Income for the period (XIII+XIV) (Comprising Profit (Loss) and Other 
Comprehensive Income for the period) 

–33,59,683.44  –47,57,782.07 –81,17,465.51 

c) There are no material adjustments to the statements of cash flows as reported under the previous GAAP.

d) Notes to first Ɵme adopƟon      

 Note 1 : Change in Fair valuaƟon of Financial Instruments      
 Under the previous GAAP, investments in equity instruments were classified as long term investments based on the 

intended holding period and realisaƟon. Long-term investments were carried at cost less provision for other than 
temporary decline in the value of such investments. Under Ind AS, these investments are required to be measured at 
fair value at each reporƟng period. Fair value changes with respect to investments in equity instrument designated fair 
value through OCI have been recognised in Equity Investment Reserve as at the date of transiƟon and subsequently in 
other comprehensive income for the year ended 31st March 2017.  

 Note 2 : RecogniƟon of Redeemable Preference Shares      
 Under the previous GAAP, redeemble preference shares were classified as equity and disclosed as preference share 

capital at their face value. Ind AS 109 requires redeemable preference shares to be classified as a financial liability under 
the head ‘Borrowings’ and subsequently, to be measured at fair value.The company has measured such redeemable 
preference shares at amorƟsed cost through effecƟve interest rate method.     
Note 3 : Deferred Tax Adjustments        

 Tax adjustments relaƟng to above adjustments are recognised and adjusted in retained earnings on the date of 
transiƟon. Deferred tax adjustments relaƟng to the year ended 31st March, 2017 have been adjusted in the statement 
of profit and loss for the said year.       

 Note 4 : Acturial Gain or Loss        
 As per Ind AS 1 actuarial  gain or loss are  reclassified from employee benefit expense to other comprehensive 

income        

NOTES FORMING PART OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR YEAR ENDED 31ST MARCH, 2018 (Contd.)
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 AS AT 
 31.03.2018 

 AS AT 
 31.03.2017 

 AS AT 
 01.04.2016 

7 FINANCIAL ASSETS - NON CURRENT  `  `  ` 

7.1 INVESTMENT IN SHARES & SECURITIES Face Value

Others   ` 

a. Investment in Equity Instruments (fully paid-up) :

i. Quoted

Jullundur Motor (Agencies) Limited [NIL (31.03.2017 
- 300, 31.03.2016 - 300) Nos.]

10                           –                53,670              56,985 

MaruƟ Suzuki India Limited [150 (31.03.2017 - 200, 
31.03.2016 - 200) Nos.]

5 13,29,165          12,03,140            7,43,820 

Federal Mogul Goetzes (India) Limited [800 
(31.03.2017 - 1000, 31.03.2016 - 1000) Nos.]

10                  
3,35,240 

           5,47,850            3,24,000 

 J.J. Finance CorporaƟon Limited [27,100 Nos.] 10 12,47,955            3,92,950            4,20,050 

Reliance CommunicaƟons Limited [500 Nos.] 5                    10,875              19,150              25,000 

Reliance Industries Limited [NIL (31.03.2017 - 200, 
31.03.2016 - 200) Nos.]

10                           –              1,31,920            1,04,526 

 IFCI Limited [2000 Nos.] 10                    39,100              59,300              49,200 

Century TexƟles and Industries Limited [NIL 
(31.03.2017 - 300, 31.03.2016 - 300) Nos.]

10                           –              3,15,990            1,58,610 

Noida Toll Bridge Company Limited [5000 Nos.] 10                    60,250              56,250            1,12,000 

Peninsula Land Limited [1000 Nos.] 2                    20,300              18,750              17,200 

Larson and Toubro Limited [1250 (31.03.2017 - 900, 
31.03.2016 - 900) Nos.]

2 16,38,625            9,46,611            7,29,756 

    46,81,510          37,45,581          27,41,147 

ii. Unquoted

Narbheram & Co. Limited [1800 Nos.] 10                    82,387              82,387              84,406 

J.J. Projects Private Limited [20,698 Nos.] 10 14,76,456          14,76,456          23,92,532 

Kohinoor Stockbroking Private Limited [10,000 Nos.] 10                3,47,608            3,47,608            3,38,201 

KPJ Estates Private Limited [10,000 Nos.] 10 12,20,006          12,20,006            8,84,056 

Bengal Motor Services Private Limited [3,500 Nos.] 10 24,01,581          24,01,581          18,95,615 

TVS JJ DistribuƟon Private Limited [17,55,000 
(31.03.2017 - NIL, 31.03.2016 - NIL) Nos.]

10 1,75,50,000                    –                      –   

2,30,78,037          55,28,037          55,94,809 

b. In Post Office NaƟonal Saving CerƟficates 
(Unquoted)

                     4,000 5,000 5,000 

(Deposited with Sales Tax AuthoriƟes)

          2,77,63,547        92,78,618        83,40,956 

Aggregate amount of Quoted Investments and 
Market Value thereof 46,81,510  37,45,581 27,41,147 

Aggregate amount of Unquoted Investments 2,30,82,037 55,33,037 55,99,809 

7.2 DEPOSIT WITH BANKS

With a Scheduled Bank - Pledged              25,29,372        54,05,000          1,00,000 

7.3 OTHER NON-CURRENT FINANCIAL ASSETS

Security Deposits              73,07,326        91,08,124        42,48,132 

NOTES FORMING PART OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR YEAR ENDED 31ST MARCH, 2018 (Contd.)
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8 INCOME TAXES
(i) The major components of tax expense for the years ended 31 March 2018 and 31 March 2017 are :

2017 - 2018 2016 - 2017

Current Tax :

Current tax expenses for current year              67,10,000             31,00,000 

Current tax expenses pertaining to prior periods              (7,58,417)                          –   

             59,51,583             31,00,000 

Deferred tax obligaƟons                 
8,81,687 

              5,32,126 

Total tax expense reported in the statement of profit or loss            68,33,270           36,32,126 

(ii) The reconciliaƟon of esƟmated income tax expense at statutory income tax rate to 
income tax expenses reported in statement of profit and loss is as follows : 2017 – 2018 2016 – 2017

Profit before income taxes         2,09,55,651         (47,93,349)

At statutory income tax rate 20.39% 30.90%

Expected Income Tax expenses             42,73,000                          –   

Tax effects of adjusments to reconcile expected income tax expense to reported income 
tax expense

Income exempt from tax            23,62,146                 (10,498)

Non deducƟble expenses for tax purposes                    11,852             27,24,430 

Tax expenses pertaining to prior periods         (7,58,417)

Rounding Off                    63,002               3,86,068 

Total Income Tax expenses            59,51,583           31,00,000 

(iii) Significant components of net deferred tax assets and liabiliƟes for the year ended on 31st March, 2018 is as follows :

Opening Balance Recognised/ 
reversed 

through Profit 
and Loss

Recognised/ 
reversed in other 
comprehensive 

income

Closing Balance

Deferred Tax Assets/Liabilites in relaƟon to:
Property, plant and equipment and investment property  12,48,300           20,78,623                           –               33,26,923 

Land 1,39,02,319           (3,08,752)                           –            1,35,93,567 
Entry tax payable 26,86,832         (26,86,832)                           –                            –   
Investment in listed equity shares –             (1,43,273)                           –                (1,43,273)
Bonus payable   75,259             1,78,546                           –                 2,53,805 

Net Deferred Tax Assets/(LiabiliƟes) 1,79,12,710           (8,81,687)                           –            1,70,31,023 

Significant components of net deferred tax assets and liabiliƟes for the year ended on 31st March, 2017 is as follows :

Opening Balance Recognised/ 
reversed 

through Profit 
and Loss

Recognised/ 
reversed in other 
comprehensive 

income

Closing Balance

Deferred Tax Assets/Liabilites in relaƟon to:
Property, plant and equipment and investment property  13,46,223  (97,923)  –    12,48,300 

Land  1,38,26,657  75,661  –    1,39,02,319 
Entry tax payable  31,91,435  (5,04,603)  –    26,86,832 
Bonus payable  80,520  (5,261)  –    75,259 

Net Deferred Tax Assets/(LiabiliƟes)  1,84,44,836  (5,32,126)  –    1,79,12,710 

NOTES FORMING PART OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR YEAR ENDED 31ST MARCH, 2018 (Contd.)
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NOTES FORMING PART OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR YEAR ENDED 31ST MARCH, 2018 (Contd.)

 AS AT 
 31.03.2018 

`

 AS AT 
 31.03.2017 

`

 AS AT 
 01.04.2016 

`

9 OTHER NON-CURRENT ASSETS
(Unsecured, considered good)
Capital Advances  45,15,595  45,15,595  45,15,595 

10 INVENTORIES
Stock-in-trade
Vehicles  23,95,66,058  19,17,94,699  15,76,26,966 
Parts & accessories (*)  1,10,90,879  10,59,98,219  11,19,11,382 

 25,06,56,937  29,77,92,918  26,95,38,348 
(*) Includes Goods in transit –  4,62,530  10,78,602 

11 FINANCIAL ASSETS-CURRENT
11.1 TRADE RECEIVABLES

(Unsecured, Considered Good)
Due for more than six months  45,000  86,53,309  73,58,527 
Others  2,64,69,845  11,37,32,490  10,58,37,973 

 2,65,14,845  12,23,85,799  11,31,96,500 

11.2 CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS

Balances with Banks :
- In Current Accounts  33,66,057  23,56,830  11,29,780 
- In Unpaid Dividend Account  86,126  1,88,469  2,54,028 
- In Fixed Deposit Account (*)  34,05,000  1,00,000  65,00,000 
Cash-on-hand  4,04,153  16,25,397  34,02,710 

 72,61,336  42,70,696  1,12,86,518 
(*) Pledged  9,05,000  –    65,00,000 

11.3 OTHER CURRENT FINANCIAL ASSETS

(Unsecured, Considered Good)
Interest accrued and due on deposits  6,50,506  5,00,940  3,87,467 

Claims and other receivable from suppliers  29,62,874  3,04,55,925  1,55,41,272 
IncenƟve Receivable  37,27,202  42,29,429  2,10,11,890 

 73,40,582  3,51,86,294  3,69,40,629 

12 CURRENT TAX ASSETS (NET)
TaxaƟon Advances  4,41,00,879  4,81,95,730  4,45,78,923 
Less: Provision for Income Tax  3,88,10,000  4,49,00,000  4,18,00,000 

 52,90,879  32,95,730  27,78,923 

13 OTHER CURRENT ASSETS
(Unsecured, considered good)
Advance to suppliers  6,02,608  1,17,36,678  49,36,325 
Balances with Govt. AuthoriƟes  4,54,65,575  25,11,343  25,44,447 
Gratuity Fund  2,69,186  4,90,253  5,62,302 
Advance recoverable in kind  13,20,639  14,68,923  9,45,421 
Prepaid Expenses  20,27,449  12,82,516  9,04,351 

 4,96,85,457  1,74,89,713  98,92,846 
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NOTES FORMING PART OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR YEAR ENDED 31ST MARCH, 2018 (Contd.)

 AS AT 
 31.03.2018 

`

 AS AT 
 31.03.2017 

`

 AS AT 
 01.04.2016 

`

14 EQUITY SHARE CAPITAL
Authorised :
2000000 Equity shares of  ` 10/- each  2,00,00,000  2,00,00,000  2,00,00,000

Issued, Subscribed and Paid up :
1100000 Equity shares of   ` 10/- each fully paid up   1,10,00,000  1,10,00,000  1,10,00,000 

a) Details of shareholders holding more than 5% of the Equity Shares in the company : 

Name of Shareholder As at 31.03.2018 As at 31.03.2017 As at 01.04.2016

 Nos. % holding  Nos. % holding  Nos. % holding 

J.J. Projects Private Limited   1,36,700 12.43   1,36,700 12.43   1,36,700 12.43 

Anil Jhunjhunwala 1,28,050 11.64 1,27,850 11.62 79,350 7.21 

A.K. Jhunjhunwala (HUF) 59,400 5.40 59,400 5.40 59,400 5.40 

Kanaklata Jhunjhunwala 74,800    6.80 74,800 6.80 74,800 6.80 

Rainbow SecuriƟes Private Limited (Formerly known 
as Brand Equity Private Limited) 

     57,000 5.18      57,000     5.18      57,000 5.18 

Nikhil Chhawchharia 1,42,400 12.95 1,42,400 12.95              –     –   

Kohinoor Stock Broking Private Limited 88,250 8.02 88,250 8.02 88,250 8.02 

b) Term/Rights aƩached to Equity Shares :

The company has only  one class  of equity shares having a par value of  `10/- per share. Each holder of equity shares is enƟtled 
to one vote per share. The holder of equity shares is enƟtled to receive dividends as declared from Ɵme to Ɵme. The dividend 
proposed  by  the  Board of Directors is subject to the approval of the shareholders in the ensuing Annual General MeeƟng. In  the 
event  of  liquidaƟon  of  the company, the holders of equity shares will be enƟtled to receive remaining assets of the company, 
aŌer distribuƟon of all preferenƟal amounts and payment to PreferenƟal shareholders. The distribuƟon will be in proporƟon to the 
number of equity shares held by the shareholders.       

 AS AT 
 31.03.2018 

`

 AS AT 
 31.03.2017 

`

 AS AT 
 01.04.2016 

`

15 OTHER EQUITY
a) SecuriƟes Premium Reserve –  2,45,00,000  2,45,00,000

b) Retained Earnings
General Reserve  1,10,28,166  1,10,28,166  1,10,28,166

Surplus in the statement of Profit and Loss
Balance as per last Account  11,41,04,768  12,25,30,242  12,44,90,877 
Add: Profit/(loss) for the year  1,41,22,381  (84,25,475)  –   
Reversal of Provision for DiminuƟon in Value of Investments (Net) –  8,55,153
Paid for NCRP premium (95,00,000) 
Transfer to Capital RedempƟon Reserve  (8,50,00,000)   –  –  
Deferred tax on opening Ind AS recognised through retained earning   1,38,26,657
RedempƟon of Preference Shares 3,40,00,000 
AmorƟsaƟon of preference shares as per Ind AS  (1,66,42,445)
Remeasurement of net defined benefit liabiliƟes   –   –  –   

 6,77,27,149  11,41,04,768  12,25,30,242 
Total Retained Earnings  7,87,55,315  12,51,32,934  13,35,58,408 



J. J. AUTOMOTIVE LIMITED 37TH ANNUAL REPORT 2017ͳ18

ȑ 67 Ȓ

NOTES FORMING PART OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR YEAR ENDED 31ST MARCH, 2018 (Contd.)

 AS AT 
 31.03.2018 

`

 AS AT 
 31.03.2017 

`

 AS AT 
 01.04.2016 

`

15 OTHER EQUITY (Contd.)

c) Capital RedempƟon Reserve
As per last Account   –  –  –
Add : Transfer from Statement of Profit & Loss  8,50,00,000 – –

 8,50,00,000 – –

d) OCI Reserve
As per last Account  (6,96,425) –  –
Actuarial Loss  (1,77,185)  (6,96,425) –
Total  (8,73,610) (6,96,425) –

e) Equity Investment Reserve
As per last Account  9,61,625  (42,809)    – 
Changes in fair value of equity instruments  19,53,043   10,04,434   (42,809)
Profit or loss on sale on transfer to Retained Earnings upon realisaƟon  3,60,102   –  – 

 32,74,770  9,61,625 (42,809) 

TOTAL  16,61,56,475  14,98,98,134  15,80,15,599 

Nature of Reserves :

General Reserve
General reserve is used from Ɵme to Ɵme transfer of profits form surplus in statement of Profit and Loss for appropriaƟon purposes. 

Capital RedempƟon Reserve
Capital redempƟon reserve is created form retained earnings upon redempƟon of share capital. 

Equity Investment Reserve
This reserve represents the cumulaƟve gains and losses arising on the revaluaƟon of equity instruments measured at fair value 
through other comprehensive income, net off amounts reclassified to retained earnings when those assets have been disposed 
off. 
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NOTES FORMING PART OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR YEAR ENDED 31ST MARCH, 2018 (Contd.)

 AS AT 
 31.03.2018 

`

 AS AT 
 31.03.2017 

`

 AS AT 
 01.04.2016 

`

FINANCIAL LIABILITIES - NON CURRENT
16 BORROWINGS 

Secured
Term Loans :   –  –  –
(i)  From Bank:

Indian Overseas Bank
Term Loan-I    –  1,89,06,956  2,36,86,269 

i)    Secured  by equitable mortgage of Land & Building and hypothecaƟon of 
enƟre project (Project at Rajarhat, Kolkata) assets by way of exclusive first 
charge and,

ii)   Collaterally secured by equitable mortgage of Flat at 92/F, Ground Floor, 
Alipore Road, Kolkata and pledge of fixed deposits receipts and,

iii)   Personal guarantee of two directors of the Company.
Terms of Repayment: In 60 monthly installments of  ` 28,35,000/- 
each starƟng from February, 2015.
Term Loan-II    –  9,59,37,765  13,02,79,065 
i)    Secured  by equitable mortgage of Land & Building and hypothecaƟon of 

enƟre project (Project at Rajarhat, Kolkata) assets by way of exclusive first 
charge and,

ii)   Collaterally secured by  equitable mortgage of Flat at 92/F, Ground Floor, 
Alipore Road, Kolkata and,

iii)  Personal guarantee of two directors of the Company. 
Terms of Repayment : 
i)    In 8 quarterly installments of  ` 12,50,000/- each starƟng from April, 2016 

Ɵll March, 2018
ii)   In 8 quarterly installments of  ` 37,50,000/- each starƟng from April, 2018 

Ɵll March, 2020
iii)  In 4 quarterly installments of  ` 50,00,000/- each starƟng from April, 2020 

Ɵll March, 2021
Unsecured
Redeemable Preference Shares

8500000 6% Non CumulaƟve Redeemable Preference Shares of ` 10/- 
each fully paid up *

   –  10,73,81,920  10,16,42,445 

Terms & Rights:

The Preference Shares confer on the holders thereof, the right to a fixed 
preferenƟal dividend @ 6% per annum from the date of allotment, on the 
capital for the Ɵme being alloted, as and when declared. Such Preference 
Shares shall carry preferenƟal right of repayment on the winding of the 
company, in priority to the equity shares of the company, but shall not 
confer any further or other right to parƟcipate either in profits or assets. The 
Preference Share Holders shall not have the right to vote at any meeƟng of the 
company save to the extent and in the manner provided in SecƟon 47 of the 
Companies Act, 2013, whenever applicable. The Shares are redeemable at the 
opƟon of the company at any Ɵme within 20 years from the date of allotment 
alongwith a premium of ` 1/- per share for each completed year from the date 
of allotment.

   –  22,22,26,641  25,56,07,779 
Less: Current Maturity (Refer Note No. 17.3)    –  3,90,20,000  3,90,20,000 

   –  18,32,06,641  21,65,87,779 

* By Board ResoluƟon dated 14.09.2017, 8500000 6% Non CumulaƟve Redeemable Preference Shares of  ` 10/- each fully paid up  
were redeemed by the Company as per the terms of agreement with a premium of  ` 4/- per share amounƟng to ` 340 lacs total 
redempƟon amounƟng to ` 1190 lacs.
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NOTES FORMING PART OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR YEAR ENDED 31ST MARCH, 2018 (Contd.)

 AS AT 
 31.03.2018 

`

 AS AT 
 31.03.2017 

`

 AS AT 
 01.04.2016 

`

17 OTHER FINANCIAL LIABILITIES
Deferred Gain on Unqouted Investments  50,71,616.80  50,71,616.80  51,38,389.00 
Trade Deposits  –    13,63,516  14,08,516.00 

 50,71,617  64,35,133  65,46,905 

18 FINANCIAL LIABILITIES - CURRENT
18.1 BORROWINGS

Secured
Cash Credit
-  From Indian Overseas Bank  21,53,51,381  24,66,55,136 18,57,05,739 
i)     Secured by hypothecaƟon of stocks, book debts and other current assets, 

both present and future, of the company by way of exclusive first charge 
and,

ii)   Collaterally secured by  equitable mortgage of Flat at 92/F, Ground Floor, 
Alipore Road, Kolkata and,

iii)  Personal guarantee of two directors of the Company.

-  From State Bank of India  14,86,205  –    –   
Secured by hypothecaƟon of stocks.

Dealer Funding
-  From HDFC Bank  1,42,76,808  1,40,20,972  –   
Secured by hypothecaƟon of stocks.

-  From ICICI Bank  62,48,236  1,45,09,840  –   
Secured by hypothecaƟon of stocks.

-  From IndusInd Bank  54,37,313  9,85,196  –   
Secured by hypothecaƟon of stocks.

-  From Kotak Mahindra Bank  61,28,529  12,47,911  –   
Secured by hypothecaƟon of stocks.

-  From Yes Bank  5,866  –    –   
Secured by hypothecaƟon of stocks.

-  From State Bank of India  1,80,34,937  –    –   
Secured by hypothecaƟon of stocks.

Unsecured
Loan Repayable on Demand
- from related parƟes  34,88,21,623  22,63,00,000  14,87,00,000 
- from others  –    –    30,00,000 

 61,57,90,898  50,37,19,055  33,74,05,739 
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NOTES FORMING PART OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR YEAR ENDED 31ST MARCH, 2018 (Contd.)

 AS AT 
 31.03.2018 

`

 AS AT 
 31.03.2017 

`

 AS AT 
 01.04.2016 

`

18 FINANCIAL LIABILITIES - CURRENT (Contd.)

 18.2 TRADE PAYABLES

 - Dues of Micro and Small Enterprises  –    –    –   
 - Others  4,25,26,932  6,37,56,721  5,46,47,141 

 4,25,26,932  6,37,56,721  5,46,47,141 
The Company has not received any informaƟon from its suppliers regarding 
registraƟon under the Micro, Small and Medium Enterprises Development Act, 
2006. Hence, the informaƟon required to be given in accordance with secƟon 
22 of the said Act and Schedule III to the Companies Act, 2013 is considered Nil 
(Previous Year Nil). 

 18.3 OTHER FINANCIAL LIABILITIES
Current maturiƟes of long-term borrowings (Refer Note No.15)  –    3,90,20,000  3,90,20,000 
Interest accrued and due on borrowings  3,75,964  30,23,356  1,59,32,314 
Unclaimed Dividends  73,650  1,70,675  2,31,375 
Trade Deposits  10,000  30,000  30,000 
Other LiabiliƟes  3,39,70,373  76,28,311  79,82,055 

 3,44,29,987  4,98,72,342  6,31,95,744 

19 OTHER CURRENT LIABILITIES
Advance from customers  18,71,246  3,50,87,822  3,70,13,180 
Statutory liabiliƟes  78,99,348  4,37,62,704  3,14,11,010 

 97,70,594  7,88,50,526  6,84,24,190 

For the year ended 
31st March, 2018

`

For the year ended 
31st March, 2017

`

 20 REVENUE FROM OPERATIONS
Sale of Traded Goods
- Vehicles  88,96,28,506  83,06,40,307 
- Parts & Accessories  10,88,26,543  64,55,80,065 
Sale of Services
- Service Charges  4,38,53,726  3,62,59,755 
Less : Discount / TOD Paid  (21,34,312) (90,22,274)
Less : Cash Discount Paid  (24,43,476) (79,94,069)
- Other Income  0  5,04,007 

 1,03,77,30,988  1,49,59,67,791 

 21 OTHER INCOME
Interest  10,58,152  5,83,102 
Dividend  32,600  33,975 
LiabiliƟes WriƩen Back  38,40,802  61,22,701 
Investments wriƩen back –  –   
Provision for DiminuƟon w/back –  98,402 
Profit On Sale of Investment  6,96,88,548  66,261 
Miscellaneous Income  40,08,741  17,04,405 

 7,86,28,843  86,08,846 
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For the year ended 
31st March, 2018

`

For the year ended 
31st March, 2017

`

22.1 PURCHASES
Vehicles  94,18,09,444  87,10,67,296 
Parts & Accessories  9,83,18,306  58,75,51,849 
Freight & Entry Tax  29,69,442  1,00,99,518 
Less : Commission Received  (3,79,47,573)  (4,48,12,425)
Less : Discount Received  (1,62,35,145)  (3,74,80,218)
Less : Cash  Discount Received  (1,65,326)  (87,55,548)

 98,87,49,148  1,37,76,70,472 

22.2 CHANGES IN INVENTORIES
Opening Stock :
Vehicles  19,17,94,699  15,76,26,966 
Parts & Accessories (Includes Goods In Transit ` 4,62,530/- (P.Y. ` 10,78,602/-)  98,46,870  11,19,11,382 

 20,16,41,569  26,95,38,348 
Less: Closing Stock:
Vehicles  23,95,66,058  19,17,94,699 
Parts & Accessories (Includes Goods In Transit NIL (P.Y. ` 4,62,530/-)  1,10,90,879  10,59,98,219 

 25,06,56,937  29,77,92,918 

 (4,90,15,368)  (28,254,570)

22.3 EMPLOYEE BENEFITS EXPENSE
Salary, wages and other allowances  4,90,98,565  4,67,37,352 
ContribuƟon to Provident & Other Funds  26,66,224  22,58,070 
Staff welfare expenses  9,73,107  23,57,528 

 5,27,37,896  5,13,52,950 

22.4 FINANCE COSTS
Interest  4,30,39,099  3,04,72,199 
Interest on Preference shares as per Ind AS  1,16,18,080  57,39,475 
Other Borrowing costs  –    4,36,802 

 5,46,57,179  3,66,48,476 

22.5 DEPRECIATION
On Fixed Assets  1,02,58,176  18,46,572 
On Investments - Immovable ProperƟes  26,66,650  –   

 1,29,24,826  18,46,572 

NOTES FORMING PART OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR YEAR ENDED 31ST MARCH, 2018 (Contd.)
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NOTES FORMING PART OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR YEAR ENDED 31ST MARCH, 2018 (Contd.)

For the year ended 
31st March, 2018

`

For the year ended 
31st March, 2017

`

22.6 OTHER EXPENSES
Rent  67,51,555  1,00,94,538 
Rates and Taxes  62,529  3,44,287 
Insurance  18,27,075  14,62,929 
Travelling and Conveyance  11,91,250  54,05,213 
Legal & Professional Charges  20,65,869  12,29,062 
Repairs and Maintenance :
  To Building  1,91,730  4,70,901 
  To Others  67,04,131  49,35,456 
Electricity Expenses  48,87,841  37,74,598 
AdverƟsement & Sales PromoƟon  55,47,573  51,29,569 
Vehicle RegistraƟon Charges  32,32,877  26,73,871 
DemonstraƟon Charges  46,06,847  31,50,059 
Service Charges  68,48,199  52,51,237 
Auditors RemuneraƟon
- For Statutory Audit  55,000  1,09,300 
- For Tax Audit  13,000  32,500 
- For Other Services  52,000  1,74,800 
Provision for DimuniƟon as per Ind AS  –    98,402 
Miscellaneous Expenses  1,16,74,277  2,57,69,363 

 5,57,11,753  7,01,06,085 

31.03.2018 
`

  31.03.2017 
`

 01.04.2016 
`

23 AUTHORISED CAPITAL
The total authorised capital of the company is as follows :
20,00,000 Equity Shares of ` 10/- each  2,00,00,000  2,00,00,000  2,00,00,000 
1,30,00,000 Preference Shares of ` 10/- each  13,00,00,000  13,00,00,000  13,00,00,000 

 15,00,00,000  15,00,00,000  15,00,00,000 

24 EARNINGS PER SHARE
The earnings per share has been calculated as specified in Ind-AS 33 on “Earnings Per Share” prescribed by Companies (AccounƟng Standards) 
Rules, 2015 and related disclosures are as below :

For the year ended 
31st March, 2018

`

For the year ended 
31st March, 2017

`
For CalculaƟng Basic and Diluted earnings per share

a)  Profits aƩributable to equity holders of the company (` in Lacs)  247.61  (84.25)
     Profit/(Loss) from DisconƟnued operaƟons  (106.39)  –   
     Profit/(Loss) for the year  141.22  (84.25)
b)  Weighted average number of equity shares used as the  
      denominator in calculaƟng EPS (Nos.)

 11.00  11.00 

c)   Earnings per equity share (conƟnued operaƟons) Basic & Diluted  22.51  (7.66)
d)  Earnings per equity share (for disconƟnued operaƟons) Basic & Diluted  (9.67)  –   
e)  Earnings per equity share (for disconƟnued & conƟnuing operaƟons) Basic & Diluted  12.84  (7.66)
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25 COMMITMENTS AND CONTINGENCIES
a.  Other Commitments       
 EsƟmated amount of contracts remaining to be executed on capital account and not provided for amounts to ` 48.29 lacs (P.Y. ` 200.80 lacs); 

against which the company has given advance of  ` 45.15 lacs (P.Y. ` 45.15 Lacs).      
 

b.  Gurantees       
 The conƟngencies in respect of various guarantees at the end of the reporƟng period are as follows :

31.03.2018
(` in lacs)

31.03.2017
(` in lacs)

Bank Gurantees  36.12  36.12 

c.   ConƟngent liabiliƟes

ConƟngent Liability (not provided for) in respect of  the following claims/demands : 2017-2018
(` in lacs)

2016-2017
(` in lacs)

Sales Tax  242.10  242.10 
Income Tax  41.19  35.98 

NOTES FORMING PART OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR YEAR ENDED 31ST MARCH, 2018 (Contd.)

26 FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

26.1 Financial Instruments by category

The carrying value of financial instruments by categories as on 31st March, 2018 are as follows: (` in Lacs)

ParƟculars Note 
Reference

Fair Value 
through 

Profit & Loss

Fair Value 
through OCI

AmorƟsed 
Cost

Total 
carrying 

value

Total Fair 
Value

Financial Assets

Investments

   - Equity Instruments 7.1 –   277.60  –    277.60 277.60 

- Government SecuriƟes 7.1 –   –   0.04 0.04  0.04 

Non Current Deposits with Banks 7.2 –   –   25.29    25.29 25.29 

Non Current Deposits with Others 7.3 –   –   73.07   73.07 73.07 

Trade Receivables 11.1 –   –   265.15     265.15 265.15 

Cash & Cash Equivalents 11.2 –   –   72.61 72.61 72.61 

Other financial assets 11.3 –   –   73.41 73.41 73.41 

Total Financial Assets –   277.60 509.57 787.17 

Financial LiabiliƟes

Borrowings 16 & 18.1 –   –   6,157.91 6,157.91 6,157.91 

Trade Payables 18.2 –   –   425.27 425.27 425.27 

Other financial liabiliƟes 18.3 –   –   344.30 344.30 344.30 

Total Financial LiabiliƟes –   –   6,927.48 6,927.48 
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The carrying value of financial instruments by categories as on 31st March, 2017 are as follows : (` in Lacs)

ParƟculars Note 
Reference

Fair Value 
through 

Profit & Loss

Fair Value 
through OCI

AmorƟsed 
Cost

Total 
carrying 

value

Total Fair 
Value

Financial Assets

Investments

– Equity Instruments 7.1 –   92.74   –   92.74 92.74 

– Government SecuriƟes 7.1 –   –   0.05 0.05 0.05 

Non Current Deposits with Banks 7.2 –   –   54.05 54.05 54.05 

Non Current Deposits with Others 7.3 –   –   91.08 91.08 91.08 

Trade Receivables 11.1 –   –   1,223.86 1,223.86 1,223.86 

Cash & Cash Equivalents 11.2 –   –   42.71 42.71 42.71 

Other financial assets 11.3 –   –   351.86 351.86 351.86 

Total Financial Assets      –   92.74 1,763.61 1,856.35 

Financial LiabiliƟes

Borrowings 16 & 18.1 1073.82 –   5,795.44 6,869.26 6,869.26 

Trade Payables 18.2 –   –   637.57 637.57 637.57 

Deposits 17 –   –   64.35 64.35 64.35 

Other financial liabiliƟes 18.3 –   –   498.72 498.72 498.72 

Total Financial LiabiliƟes 1073.82 –   6,996.08 8,069.90 

The carrying value of financial instruments by categories as on 1st April, 2016 are as follows : (` in Lacs)

ParƟculars Note 
Reference

Fair Value 
through 

Profit & Loss

Fair Value 
through OCI

AmorƟsed 
Cost

Total 
carrying 

value

Total Fair 
Value

Financial Assets

Investments

– Equity Instruments 7.1 –   83.36   –   83.36 83.36 

– Government SecuriƟes 7.1 –   –   0.05 0.05 0.05 

Non Current Deposits with Banks 7.2 –   –   1.00 1.00 1.00 

Non Current Deposits with Others 7.3 –   –   42.48 42.48 42.48 

Trade Receivables 11.1 –   –   1,131.97 1,131.97 1,131.97 

Cash & Cash Equivalents 11.2 –   –   112.87 112.87 112.87 

Other financial assets 11.3 –   –   369.41 369.41 369.41 

Total Financial Assets –   83.36 1,657.77 1,741.13 

Financial LiabiliƟes

Borrowings 16 & 18.1 1,016.42 –   4,523.51 5,539.94 5,539.94 

Trade Payables 18.2 –   –   546.47 546.47 546.47 

Deposits 17 –   –   65.47 65.47 65.47 

Other financial liabiliƟes 18.3 –   –   631.96 631.96 631.96 

Total Financial LiabiliƟes 1,016.42 –   5,767.41 6,783.83 
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 Management esƟmaƟons and assumpƟons      

 a)  The management assessed that cash and cash equivalents, trade receivables, trade payables, bank overdraŌs and other current 
liabiliƟes approximate their carrying amounts largely due to the short-term maturiƟes of these instruments.  

 b)  The fair value of the financial assets and liabiliƟes is included at the amount at which the instrument could be exchanged in a 
current transacƟon between willing parƟes, other than in a forced or liquidaƟon sale. The following methods and assumpƟons 
were used to esƟmate the fair values:      

  (i)  The fair values of the quoted shares are based on price quotaƟons at the reporƟng date. 

  (ii)  The fair values of the unquoted equity shares have been determined based on cerƟficaƟons from valuers who have used 
Net Asset Value approach for determining the fair values.

26.2 Fair value hierarchy
 The following table presents the fair value hierarchy of assets and liabiliƟes measured at fair value on a recurring basis :

(` in Lacs)

ParƟculars Note 
Reference

Fair value measurement at end of the reporƟng 
period/year using

Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total

As on 31st March, 2018
Financial Assets
Equity Instruments 7.1               46.82                      –                 230.82             277.64 

As on 31st March, 2017
Financial Assets
Equity Instruments 7.1               37.46                      –                   55.28               92.74 

As on 1st April, 2016
Financial Assets
Equity Instruments 7.1               27.41                      –                   55.95               83.36 

 Level 1 : Quoted Prices in acƟve markets for idenƟcal assets or liabiliƟes.

 Level 2 : Inputs other than quoted prices included within Level 1 that are observable for the asset or liability, either directly (i.e. as 
prices) or indirectly (i.e. derived from prices).      

 Level 3 : Inputs for the assets or liabiliƟes that are not based on observable market data (unobservable inputs).

 The company’s policy is to recognize transfers into and the transfers out of fair value hierarchy levels as at the end of the reporƟng 
period. There are no transfers between level 1 and level 2 during the end of the reported periods.

26.3 Financial Risk Management  

 The Company’s principal financial liabiliƟes comprise loans and borrowings, trade and other payables. The main purpose of these 
financial liabiliƟes is to finance the Company’s operaƟons. The Company’s principal financial assets include loans, trade and other 
receivables, and cash and cash equivalents that derive directly from its operaƟons.     

 The Company’s acƟviƟes expose it to various financial risks: market risk, credit risk and liquidity risk. The company tries to foresee 
the unpredictable nature of financial markets and seek to minimise potenƟal adverse impact on its financial performance. The senior 
management of the company oversees the management of these risks. The Audit CommiƩee has addiƟonal oversight in the area of 
financial risks and controls. It is the Company’s policy that no trading in derivaƟves for speculaƟve purposes may be undertaken.

27 CAPITAL MANAGEMENT      
 The following are the objecƟves of Capital management policy of the company :

 (i) Safeguard its ability to conƟnue as a going concern, so that it can conƟnue to provide returns for shareholders and benefits for 
other stakeholders, and 

 (ii)  Maintain an opƟmal capital structure to reduce the cost of capital

 As a part of capital management strategy, the company may adjust the amount of dividends paid to shareholders, issue new shares, 
raise debt capital  or sell assets  to reduce debt. The company monitors capital basis a gearing raƟo which is calculated by dividing the 
total borrowings by total equity. The company’s strategy is to maintain a gearing raƟo as possible as lower. In order to achieve this 
overall objecƟve, the company ensures to meet its financial covenants aƩached to the interest bearing loans and borrowings. There 
have never been any breaches in financial covenants of any interest bearing loans and borrowings in the past and also in the current 
period.      

NOTES FORMING PART OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR YEAR ENDED 31ST MARCH, 2018 (Contd.)
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28 SEGMENT INFORMATION      

 In accordance with Indian AccounƟng Standard 108  “OperaƟng Segments” prescribed by Companies (AccounƟng Standards) Rules, 
2015, the company has determined its primary business segments as a single segment of Trading of Motor Vehicles and its parts. Since 
there are no other business segments in which the company operates, there are no other primary reportable segments. Therefore, 
the segment revenue, segment results, segment assets, segment liabiliƟes, total cost incurred to acquire segment assets, depreciaƟon 
charge are all as is reflected in the financial statements.      

29 RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS      

 Related parƟes and transacƟons with them as specified in the Ind-AS 24 on “Related ParƟes Disclosures” presribed under Companies 
(AccounƟng Standards) Rules, 2015 has been idenƟfied and given below on the basis of informaƟon available with the company and 
the same has been relied upon by the auditors.      

 a) Related ParƟes

  ParƟculars     

  (i) Key management personnel and their relaƟves  RelaƟonship 

   Mr. K.P. Jhunjhunwala Director 

   Mr. Anil Jhunjhunwala Managing Director 

   Mr. Ramesh Kumar Chitlangia Chief Financial Officer 

   Mr. Partha DuƩa Chief ExecuƟve Officer 

   Mr. Abhijit Das Company Secretary

  (ii) Enterprises over which Key Managerial Person and relaƟves of such personel are able to exercise significant influence

    Country 

   J.J. Finance CorporaƟon Limited India

   J.J. Projects Private Limited India 

   KPJ Estates Private Limited India 

   Bengal Motor Services Private Limited India 

   Matador Services India 

   K.P. Jhunjhunwala Family Trust India 

   J.J. Motors Private Limited India 

   J.J. Motors Parts LLP India 

   Auto Enterprises India 
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(` in Lacs)

Nature of TransacƟons For the year ended March 31, 2018 For the year ended March 31, 2017

Key Management 
Personnel & their 

relaƟves

Enterprises over which 
Key Managerial Person 

and their relaƟves 
are able to exercise 
significant influence 

Key Management 
Personnel & their 

relaƟves

Enterprises over which 
Key Managerial Person 

and their relaƟves 
are able to exercise 
significant influence 

Income

Sale of Vehicle, Parts & Accessories –   670.97  –   526.43 

Expenses

Pre Delivery InspecƟon,Goodwill and 
Other Services Paid

–   3.29  –   23.85 

Purchase of Parts & Accessories –   71.09 –   64.63 

Rent Paid –   23.51 –   23.09 

Directors' Fees Paid 0.23 –   0.15 –   

Directors' RemuneraƟon Paid 12.00 –   12.00  –   

KMP  RemuneraƟon Paid 16.87   –   17.94 –   

Interest on Loans from Related ParƟes 99.47 340.30  0.43 276.73 

Year End Receivable

Sale of Vehicle Parts and Accessories   – 6.97 – 0.08 

Year End Payable

Pre Delivery InspecƟon,Goodwill and 
Other Services Paid

 –  1.70  –   0.01 

Purchase of Parts & Accessories – 15.72  –   0.62 

Loans 1,107.00 3,573.50 530.00 1,733.00 

Interest Accrued on Loans 89.52 306.27  0.39 249.06 

Sale of Vehicle Parts and Accessories – 12.98  –   30.60 

b) The table below describes the compensaƟon to key managerial personnel :

ParƟculars Year Ended 31 
March, 2018

Year Ended 31 
March, 2017

Short term employee benefits                     12.23       12.15 

                    12.23       12.15 

c) No amount has been wriƩen back/wriƩen off during the year in respect of due to/from related parƟes.

NOTES FORMING PART OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR YEAR ENDED 31ST MARCH, 2018 (Contd.)
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NOTES FORMING PART OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR YEAR ENDED 31ST MARCH, 2018 (Contd.)

30 ASSETS SECURED FOR BORROWINGS
 The carrying amounts of assets secured for current and non current borrowings is given in the following table :

` in lacs

ParƟculars Notes 31st March, 
2018

31st March, 
2017

1st April, 
2016

Non Current Assets

Property, Plant and Equipments  –      386.92    386.94 

Capital Work In Progress   –   4,761.51 3,920.24 

Deposits with Banks 25.29     54.05    1.00 

Total 25.29 5,202.48 4,308.18 

Current Assets

Trade Receivables 265.15 1,223.86 1,131.97 

Cash and Cash Equivalents    46.75 39.82 110.32 

Inventories 2,506.57  2,977.93 2,695.38 

Other Financial Assets 73.41 351.86  369.41 

Total 2,891.88 4,593.47  4,307.08 

31 DISCONTINUED OPERATION
 The carrying amounts of assets secured for current and non current borrowings is given in the following table :

 (a) DescripƟon          

  In terms of Agreement dated 24th August, 2017, the company has sold its ‘Auto Components Division’ by way of slump sale to 
M/s. TVS JJ DistribuƟon Private Limited (Purchaser) for a lumpsum consideraƟon of ` 2100.00 lacs, revised to ` 2134.78 lacs for 
the addiƟonal assets of  `34.78 lacs over and above the minimum assets of ` 1580.00 lacs transferred to the Purchaser as on 
the Closing date i.e. 7th November, 2017 at book value. Out of the total lumpsum consideraƟon ̀  2134.78 lacs, as per the terms 
of the agreement, the Purchaser has retained a sum of ` 210.00 lacs towards Receivables over 180 days and Inventory over 
1 year, which the Purchaser is liable to pay only on realisaƟon against these. In view of uncertainty of the recovery of the same, 
this differenƟal amount will be accounted for on realisaƟon.

(b)      Financial performance (` in lacs)

ConƟngent Liability (not provided for) in respect of  the following claims/demands : Period ended
07.11.2017

2016-2017
31.03.2017

Revenue 2422.24 5708.74
Expenses 2528.63 5611.58
Profit / (Loss) for the period from DisconƟnued operaƟon (106.39) 97.16 

(c)      The carrying amounts of Assets & LiabiliƟes as at the date of Sale (07.11.2017) were as follows :
(` in lacs)

As on
07.11.2017

Property, plant and equipment  11,95,246 
Financial assets  1,04,55,469 
Inventories  8,06,19,956 
Trade & other receivable  11,77,50,415 
Other current assets  22,32,535 
Total Assets  21,22,53,622 

Trade payable 4,62,45,122
Other current liabiliƟes 45,30,423
Total LiabiliƟes 5,07,75,545
Net Assets  16,14,78,077 
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32 During the financial year 2017-18, the company completed the construcƟon of its ongoing commercial project at Rajarhat, Kolkata. 
The Board of Directors vide its resoluƟon dated 30th October, 2017 had decided to hold it to earn rentals or for capital appreciaƟon 
or both, aŌer keeping a showroom and some offices for its self use. Accordingly, the capital work in progress and land related to 
units held for earning rentals or capital appreciaƟon or both have been transferred to ‘Investment Property’ on 01st November, 
2017. 

33 Balance of Trade Receivables, Trade Payables and Other Advances are subject to confirmaƟon.

34 On the basis of physical verificaƟon of assets, as specified in Ind AS - 36 and cash generaƟon capacity of those assets, in the 
management percepƟon there is no impairment of such assets as appearing in the balance sheet as on 31.03.2018.

35 Previous years figures have been regrouped/rearranged, wherever found necessary.     
     

NOTES FORMING PART OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR YEAR ENDED 31ST MARCH, 2018 (Contd.)

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors

 Anil Jhunjhunwala K.P. Jhunjhunwala
 Managing Director Director
 DIN - 00128717 DIN - 00108065

 Hilla Eruch Bhathena Ramesh Kumar Chitlangia
 Director Chief Financial Offi  cer
 DIN - 06909249

As per our report of even date aƩ ached

For  Agrawal Subodh & Co.
Chartered Accountants
(Firm Regn. No. 319260E)

Mohammad Kothawala
Partner
(Mem. No. 309995)

Place : Kolkata  
Date  :  30th May, 2018
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